
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to name the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the 


Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller as Authorized Representatives to file applications for 


financial assistance from the State of Wisconsin Environmental Improvement Fund 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 6-0 


 
Fiscal Impact: None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-128 -2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 25, 2020 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, a municipal corporation, to file 


applications for state financial assistance for its drinking water and/or sanitary sewer treatment facilities 


under the Wisconsin Environmental Improvement Fund (ss. 281.58, 281.59, 281.60, and 281.61, Wis. 


Stats.), and 


WHEREAS, it is necessary to designate a representative for filing said applications, and 


WHEREAS, on August 17, 2020 the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved and recommended to the 


Stoughton Common Council that the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the Stoughton Director of 


Finance/Comptroller be named as Authorized Representatives to file applications for financial assistance 


from the State of Wisconsin Environmental Improvement Fund, now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Stoughton Utilities Director 


and/or the Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller be hereby appointed as authorized representatives 


for the City of Stoughton for the purpose of filing these applications, and that these representatives are 


further authorized and empowered to do all things necessary in connection with said applications. 


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Tim Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, August 17, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  2 


Wastewater 2019 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR):  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and 


discussed the 2019 CMAR.  Staff informed the committee that annual submittal of an electronic CMAR form 


(eCMAR) is required to be completed no later than June 30, however the 2020 submission date was extended 


to August 31, 2020 due to the ongoing COVID-19 public health crisis.  Staff further informed the committee that 


there were no concerns noted in the CMAR.  Discussion followed.  


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Thoren, to approve the 2019 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


and recommend the approval and adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council 


on August 25, 2020.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Naming the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller as 


Authorized Representatives to File Applications for Financial Assistance from the State of Wisconsin 


Environmental Improvement Fund:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the requirement of any 


application for funding assistance from the State of Wisconsin Environmental Improvement Fund to designate a 


representative for filing financial assistance applications.  As part of its Lead Service Line (LSL) Replacement 


Program, Stoughton Utilities currently plans to apply for funding assistance from the State of Wisconsin 


Environmental Improvement Fund.  This funding will provide assistance to private property owners for the 


replacement of their privately-owned lead service line.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Kallas, to approve that the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the 


Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller be named as Authorized Representatives to file applications for 


financial assistance from the State of Wisconsin Environmental Improvement Fund, and be further authorized 


and empowered to do all things necessary in connection with any applications for financial assistance, and 


recommend the approval and adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on 


August 25, 2020.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Program Summary: Stoughton Utilities COVID-19 Community Recharge Incentive:  Stoughton Utilities staff 


presented and discussed the recently concluded Community Recharge incentive program offered to Stoughton 


Utilities customers in partnership with the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce.   


Staff informed the committee that program funds were exhausted on August 5, 2020, well ahead of schedule, 


and in the 30 days following the first promotions of the program, 347 customers purchased a total of 639 


Chamber Bucks Certificates.  Stoughton Utilities matched these purchases, and as a grand total, this program 


resulted in 1,378 Chamber Bucks certificates totaling $36,166 being printed to be spent at local Stoughton 


businesses.  


Staff further informed the committee that customer feedback was very positive, with information about the 


program and its benefits being shared on social media by numerous customers and local small businesses, and 


a sampling of customer feedback was presented.  Discussion followed. 


Customer Collections Status Report:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed an update on the 


current status of customer collections as a result of the COVID-19 public health crisis and recent actions taken 


by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).   


Staff informed the committee that the PSCW recently voted to extend the electric and water service disconnection 


moratorium until September 1, 2020, resulting in adjustments having to be made to SU’s collection schedule that 


had been previously presented to the committee.  Service disconnections will resume on September 2, delayed 



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


  


Date:   
  


August 12, 2020 


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  Naming the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the Stoughton Director of 


Finance/Comptroller as Authorized Representatives to File Applications for Financial 


Assistance from the State of Wisconsin Environmental Improvement Fund 


As part of its Lead Service Line (LSL) Replacement Program, Stoughton Utilities currently plans to apply 


for funding assistance from the State of Wisconsin Environmental Improvement Fund.  This funding will 


provide assistance to private property owners for the replacement of their privately-owned lead service 


line. 


As part of any application for funding assistance from the State of Wisconsin Environmental Improvement 


Fund, it is necessary to designate a representative for filing financial assistance applications. 


It is requested that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve and recommende to the Stoughton Common 


Council at their August 25, 2020 meeting that the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the Stoughton 


Director of Finance/Comptroller be named as Authorized Representatives to file applications for financial 


assistance from the State of Wisconsin Environmental Improvement Fund, and be further authorized and 


empowered to do all things necessary in connection with any applications for financial assistance. 





		08a-Resolution - DNR Authorized Representative

		08b-Utilities - DNR Authorized Representative










City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with True North 


Consultants for Site Investigation Services for the Former Public Works Facility 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee – -0 (with Mayor voting yes) 


  
Fiscal Impact:  $18,605 


 


    
File Number: 


 
R-129- 2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 25, 2020 


 


WHEREAS, the DNR has directed the City to conduct further site investigation at the former Public 


Works Facility at 501/515 S. Fourth Street; and:  


 


WHEREAS, the City has obtained proposals from four environmental consulting firms for services 


related to the site investigation ranging in pricing from $18,605 to over $30,000; and 


 


WHEREAS, approximately $34,000 remains from the building demolition project budget, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has met and recommends entering into an agreement with True 


North Consultants for site investigation services for an initial estimated cost of $18,605; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with True North Consultants for an estimated 


cost of $18,605 using remaining funds from the building demolition project.  


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 
 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-2020 Resolution - Site Investigation Services.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
 
Date:  August 19, 2020 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Site Investigation Services – Former Public Works Site 
 
In July, the City received notification from the DNR that the City is responsible to further 
investigate the former Public Works Facility.  The Phase II Environmental Assessment 
completed as part of a grant revealed contamination that requires additional evaluation.   
 
As recommended by the DNR directive, the City is working to hire an environmental consultant.  
We have received and reviewed proposals from four firms for the investigation process.  All 
firms have experience with this type of investigation and associated reporting requirements to the 
DNR.  The proposals varied in methods and pricing.  The proposals ranged from $18,605 to over 
$30,000.  Once a firm is hired, they will prepare a Site Investigation Work Plan that will be 
submitted to the DNR.  Following DNR input, the scope of services may need to be adjusted.   
 
After review of the proposals, we recommend proceeding with True North Consultants for an 
initial estimated cost of $18,605.  We recommend using the remaining funds from the former 
Public Works building demolition project (approximately $34,000 remaining) that came in under 
budget. 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 
 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with True North 


Consultants for Site Investigation Services for the Former Public Works Facility 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee – -0 (with Mayor voting yes) 
  


Fiscal Impact:  $18,605 
 


    
File Number: 


 
R - - 2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 25, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, the DNR has directed the City to conduct further site investigation at the former Public 
Works Facility at 501/515 S. Fourth Street; and:  
 
WHEREAS, the City has obtained proposals from four environmental consulting firms for services 
related to the site investigation ranging in pricing from $18,605 to over $30,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, approximately $34,000 remains from the building demolition project budget, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has met and recommends entering into an agreement with True 
North Consultants for site investigation services for an initial estimated cost of $18,605; now therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 
hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with True North Consultants for an estimated 
cost of $18,605 using remaining funds from the building demolition project.  
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-2020 Resolution - Site Investigation Services.docx 







 


    


 
August 10, 2020 
 
Mr. Rodney Scheel 
City of Stoughton 
Department of Planning & Development 
207 S. Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


  
 
Dear Mr. Scheel: 
 
True North Consultants, Inc. (True North) is pleased to provide this proposal to site 
investigation services at the Stoughton Public Works Garage property located at 501 & 515 
South 4th Street in Stoughton, Wisconsin (property, see Figure 1). The following sections of this 
proposal present the purpose of the assessment, scope of services, estimated costs, schedule, and 
limitations. 
 


 
A Phase II Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was completed by AECOM Technical 
Services, Inc. (AECOM) in May 2020 for the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
(WDNR).  The Phase II ESA was completed to investigate the potential for soil and groundwater 
impacts relative to recognized environmental conditions that were identified in a Phase I ESA 
conducted by Vierbicher Associates, Inc. (Vierbicher) dated March 15, 2015.   
 
The WDNR issued a responsible party (RP) letter to the City of Stoughton on July 14, 2020 for 
the contamination identified by AECOM in their Phase II ESA.  This proposal was prepared to 
initiate site investigation activities required by the WDNR. 


 
True North will complete Site Investigation (SI) activities at the property. The scope of work 
will include the following: 


 Prepare a Site Investigation Workplan (SIWP) for submittal to the WDNR. 







 


 


 Coordinate drilling and laboratory subcontractors, arrange for utility clearance, and 
correspond with appropriate Client and site contacts to facilitate field activities. 


 Prepare Site Specific Health and Safety Plan (HASP) applicable to True North 
employees and subcontractors. 


 Supervise the installation of nine (9) soil borings at approximate locations identified 
on Figure 2 using direct-push technology (DPT) drilling methods to a maximum depth 
of 15 feet below ground surface (bgs) or groundwater, whichever is encountered first. 


 Collect a maximum of two (2) soil samples from each boring for laboratory analysis of 
volatile organic compounds (VOCs), polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) and 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) metals.   


 Supervise the conversion of six (6) soil borings to 2-inch diameter groundwater 
monitoring wells at locations identified on Figure 2 using hollow-stem auger (HSA) 
drilling techniques.  Wells will be completed to depths between ten (10) and twenty (20) 
feet bgs, depending on groundwater levels encountered.  


 Perform well development activities on each well installed. 


 Survey each well to establish well-head elevations to measure groundwater elevation 
at each well and calculate a groundwater flow direction. 


 Collect depth to groundwater data and groundwater samples from each well.  
Groundwater samples to be submitted for laboratory analysis of VOCs, PAHs, and 
RCRA metals. 


 Collect one waste profile characterization sample from representative materials at the 
property.  Submit the sample for laboratory analysis of VOCs, semi-volatile organic 
compounds (SVOCs), RCRA metals, gasoline range organics (GRO), diesel range 
organics (DRO), and polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), total sulfur, total sulphate, 
reactive sulfide, and Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP) sulfur. 


 Prepare a brief summary report that will include figures and tables, soil boring logs, a 
description of site activities, and a summary of findings with conclusions and 
recommendations for additional activities, if warranted. 


True North assumes that the City of Stoughton (Client) will assist with arranging unrestricted 
access for the site investigation.  Additionally, True North will arrange for a utility locate 
utilizing Digger’s Hotline and a private utility locating service to clear all soil boring locations 
prior to advancing the borings. 
 
All site investigation wastes will be stored on-site pending proper profiling and disposal.  







 


 


True North proposes to conduct the above scope of services on a not to exceed, time and materials 
basis with an estimated cost of $18,605.  True North will not exceed this cost without prior 
written approval from Client.  The estimated costs are detailed as follows: 
 


 
Any additional work requested by Client and performed by True North will be completed in 
accordance with the attached 2020 Civil and Environmental Engineering Fee Schedule.    
Standard laboratory turnaround time is two weeks and assumed for the pricing in this proposal.  
Site investigation waste disposal is NOT included in this cost estimate.
 







 


 


True North estimates that its work can commence immediately upon receiving a signed copy of 
this agreement.  Timing will be dependent on driller availability but True North is anticipating 
that this work can be completed within six to eight weeks of receiving authorization to proceed.     


It is assumed for purposes of this estimate that access to the property is available during normal 
working hours.    
 
The results reported and any opinions reached by True North are for the benefit of Client and, 
unless agreed to by True North in writing, are not to be disclosed to or relied upon by any third 
party.  
 
This proposal is valid for a period of 45 days from the date of this proposal.  In the event that 
authorization is received after 45 days from the date of this proposal, True North reserves the 
right to resubmit a new cost estimate for approval to reflect any additional costs associated with 
the proposed scope of work, if necessary. 
 


If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign the attached service agreement and return 
it to our office via mail, fax or e-mail.  This agreement for professional services represents a 
contract between True North Consultants, Inc. and Client.  Our Schedule of Terms and 
Conditions are hereby incorporated as part of this agreement. Written authorization to proceed 
will form a binding contract and indicates your acceptance of our Schedule of Terms and 
Conditions.  Any changes to our Schedule of Terms and Conditions must be agreed to in writing 
by both parties prior to your authorization to proceed. 
  







 


 


True North appreciates the opportunity to offer this change order for environmental consulting 
services.  If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-577-8315. 
 
Regards, 


  
Christopher H. Valcheff 
Principal Consultant 
 
 
True North Project # T2002-059 is hereby accepted and the conditions attached and outlined 
herein agreed to:  
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON AUTHORIZATION TRUE NORTH CONSULTANTS, INC. 


By: By:               Christopher H. Valcheff 


Signature: Signature:  


Date: Date:          August 10, 2020 







FIGURE 


PROJECT NUMBER 


DATE 


NOT TO SCALE 







FIGURE 


PROJECT NUMBER 


DATE 


NOT TO SCALE 







 
 


GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS OF SERVICES 
 


1.0 PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE 


The following terms and conditions ("Terms") shall apply to and are the only terms that govern the attached Master Service 
Agreement, Proposal or Quotation (collectively, “Agreement”) between True North Consultants, Inc. (“True North”) and the Client 
named in the Agreement ("Client"). Client's acceptance of the Agreement includes acceptance of these Terms and any terms 
and conditions proposed by the Client will be deemed to materially alter the Terms and are hereby objected to and rejected by 
True North. Acceptance of the Agreement, including acceptance of the Terms, shall occur upon the notification of True North by 
Client, in writing, electronically or orally, to commence performance in accordance with the requested Consulting Services (as 
defined in the Agreement) and the Terms. In the event of a conflict between these Terms and the Agreement, the terms of the 
Agreement will prevail unless otherwise agreed to by the parties in writing. 


2.0 LIMITED WARRANTY 


2.1 Professional Standard of Care: True North warrants that it will perform the Consulting Services consistent with 
the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by other professional consultants in the same locale and under 
similar circumstances at the same time the Consulting Services are performed. 


2.2 Exclusive Remedy: True North’s sole and exclusive liability and Client’s sole and exclusive remedy for breach 
of this warranty shall be as follows: 


2.2.1 True North will use reasonable commercial efforts to promptly cure any breach; provided, that if True 
North cannot cure such breach within a reasonable time (but no more than thirty (30) days) after Client’s 
notice of such breach, Client may, at its option, terminate the Agreement by service of written notice of 
termination. 


2.2.2 In the event the Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 2.2.1 above, True North will within thirty 
(30) days after the effective date of termination refund to Client any fees paid by Client as of the date of 
termination for the Consulting Services, less a deduction equal to the fees for receipt or use of such Consulting 
Services up to and including the date of termination on a pro-rated basis. 


2.2.3 The foregoing remedy shall not be available unless Client provides written notice of such breach within 
thirty (30) days after acceptance of such Consulting Services to True North. 


2.3 Disclaimer of Implied Warranties: EXCEPT FOR THE LIMITED WARRANTY SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 2, 
TRUE NORTH MAKES NO WARRANTY WHATSOEVER WITH RESPECT TO THE CONSULTING SERVICES UNDER 
THE AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ANY (A) WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY; OR (B) WARRANTY OF FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE; OR (C) WARRANTY OF TITLE; WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BY LAW, 
COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, USAGE OR TRADE OR OTHERWISE. 


3.0 SUBCONTRACTED AND OTHER SERVICES 


3.1 True North will select reputable subcontractors for test borings and/or other explorations or services based on oral or 
written competitive prices. The subcontractors’ invoices shall be billed in accordance with the Agreement. Nothing in this 
Section 3 shall require that services or equipment be obtained through competitive bidding or be available from multiple 
sources. True North shall not be responsible for the means and methods utilized by its subcontractors. 


3.2 On occasion, True North engages the specialized services of individual consultants or other companies to participate in 
a project. When considered necessary, the cost of such services will be billed in addition to True North’s fee schedules 
set forth in the Agreement. 


4.0 SITE ACCESS AND SITE CONDITIONS 


4.1 Client shall grant or obtain free access to the site for all equipment and personnel for True North to perform the Consulting 
Services for the Project (as defined in the Agreement) set forth in the Agreement. Client shall notify any and all possessors 
of the Project site that Client has granted True North free access to the site. True North will take reasonable precautions to 
limit damage to the site, but it is understood by Client that, in the normal course of work, some damage may occur and 
the correction of such damage is not part of the Agreement unless so specified in True North’s proposal. Client is responsible 
for the accuracy of locations for all subterranean structures and utilities. True North will take reasonable precautions to 
avoid known subterranean structures, and Client waives any claim against True North, and agrees to defend, indemnify, 
and hold True North harmless from any claim or liability for injury or loss, including costs of defense, arising from damage 
done to subterranean structures and utilities not identified or accurately located. In addition, Client agrees to compensate 
True North for any time spent or expenses incurred by True North in defense of any such claim with compensation to be 
based upon True North's prevailing fee schedule/expense reimbursement policy set forth in the Agreement. 


4.2 Client recognizes that subsurface conditions may vary from those observed at locations where borings, surveys or 
explorations are made, and that site conditions may change with time. Data, interpretation, and recommendations by 
True North will be based solely on information available to True North. True North is responsible for its data, 







 


interpretations, and recommendations, but will not be responsible for other parties' interpretations or use of the 
information developed by True North or any other party. To the extent True North must rely upon data provided by 
another party, True North will not be liable for any claim of injury or loss arising from such data. Client acknowledges that 
whenever a project involves hazardous or toxic materials and/or investigations of chemicals in the environment, there 
are inherent uncertainties involved (such as limitations on laboratory analytical methods, variations in subsurface 
conditions and the like) that may adversely affect the results of the Project, even though the Consulting Services are 
performed with skill and care.  


5.0 BILLING AND PAYMENT 


Invoices shall generally be submitted every four (4) weeks for Consulting Services performed during the previous four (4) weeks. 
Payment shall be due within thirty (30) days of invoice date. If Client objects to all or any portion of any invoice, Client shall so 
notify True North in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of invoice receipt, identify the cause of disagreement, and pay 
within thirty (30) days that portion of the invoice, if any, not in dispute. The parties will immediately make every effort to settle 
the disputed portion of the invoice. In the absence of written notification described above, Client shall pay the balance as stated 
on the invoice. Invoices are delinquent if payment has not been received within thirty (30) days from date of invoice. Client will 
pay an additional charge of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month (or the maximum percentage allowed by law, whichever 
is lower) on any delinquent amount, excepting any portion of the invoiced amount in dispute and resolved in favor of Client. 
Payment thereafter will first be applied to accrued interest and then to the principal unpaid amount. All time spent and expenses 
incurred (including any attorneys’ fees) in connection with collection of any delinquent amount shall be paid by Client to True 
North per True North's current fee schedules. In the event Client fails to pay True North within thirty (30) days after invoices are 
rendered, Client agrees that True North has the right to suspend Consulting Services under the Agreement, without incurring 
liability to Client, after giving seven (7) days’ written notice to Client. Client acknowledges that True North’s fee schedules are 
subject to change on an annual basis without prior notice. 


6.0 DOCUMENTS AND ELECTRONIC FILES 


6.1 Written Documents: Any letters, reports, or documents prepared by True North for Client are the instruments of True 
North’s Consulting Services. The Consulting Services provided by True North are solely for Client's use for the Project and 
site described in the Agreement. Any documents prepared by True North for the client shall not, in whole or in part, be 
disseminated or conveyed to another party, nor used by another party in whole or in part, without prior written consent 
from True North. Client shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, waive any claim against True North, and indemnify, 
defend, and hold True North harmless for any claim or liability for injury or loss allegedly arising from any third-party 
reliance on True North's instruments of Consulting Services without True North's specific authorization to do so. 


6.2 Electronic Files: Client hereby grants permission for True North to use information and data provided by Client, including 
electronic records produced or provided by Client in the completion of the Project. Client also grants permission to True 
North to release True North documents electronically to consultants, contractors, and vendors as required in the execution 
of the Project. 


6.3 Retention Period: True North shall not be obligated to maintain written documents and electronic files relating to its 
Consulting Services performed for Client under the Agreement for more than five (5) years following completion of the 
relevant Consulting Services.  


7.0 INSURANCE 


True North maintains Workmen's Compensation Insurance as required by applicable law and General Liability Insurance for 
bodily injury and property damage with an aggregate limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence. True North will furnish certificates of 
such insurance upon request. In the event Client desires additional insurance coverage of this type, True North will, upon the 
Client's written request made prior to the performance of Consulting Services, obtain additional insurance (if possible) at Client's 
expense.  


8.0 ALLOCATION OF RISK 


8.1 Limitation of Liability: IN NO EVENT SHALL TRUE NORTH BE LIABLE TO CLIENT OR TO ANY THIRD PARTY FOR 
ANY LOSS OF USE, REVENUE, OR PROFIT, OR FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, 
EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT 
(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAMAGE 
WAS FORESEEABLE AND WHETHER OR NOT TRUE NORTH HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH 
DAMAGES, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ANY AGREED OR OTHER REMEDY OF ITS ESSENTIAL 
PURPOSE. IN NO EVENT SHALL TRUE NORTH’S AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THE 
AGREEMENT, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING 
NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE, EXCEED THE AGGREGATE AMOUNTS PAID OR PAYABLE TO 
TRUE NORTH PURSUANT TO THE AGREEMENT. If Client prefers not to limit True North’s professional liability to this 
sum, True North will waive this limitation upon Client's written request, provided that Client agrees to pay for this waiver at 
a negotiated fee. Client's request for this option must be made at the time Client enters into the Agreement. In the event 
Client makes a claim against True North for any act arising out of the performance of True North’s Consulting Services, and 







 


fails to prove such claim, then Client agrees to pay all attorneys’ fees and other costs incurred by True North in defense of 
such claim. 


8.2 Indemnification: Client shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless True North and its officers, directors, agents, 
employees, affiliates, successors and permitted assigns against any and all suits, actions, legal or administrative 
proceedings, claims, debts, demands, damages, liabilities, interest, attorney’s fees, costs and expenses arising from or 
related to the performance of Consulting Services under the Agreement and attributable to either a breach by Client of 
its obligations hereunder or the act or omission or willful misconduct of Client or anyone acting under Client’s direction 
or control. 


9.0 CHANGES 


9.1 Unforeseen Site Conditions: True North reserves the right to make reasonable changes in the Consulting Services to be 
performed after acceptance of the Agreement. Client understands that unforeseen site conditions may require changes in 
the scope of Consulting Services to be performed. 


9.2 Unauthorized Changes: If changes are made to True North's work products for Consulting Services by Client or persons 
other than True North, and these changes affect True North’s Consulting Services, any and all liability against True North 
arising out of such changes is waived and Client shall assume full responsibility for such changes unless Client has given 
True North prior notice and has received from True North written consent for such changes. 


9.3 Client-Requested Changes: Upon receipt of a change requested by Client, True North will obtain price quotations from its 
subcontractors and will provide Client with a quotation of the cost of having the change performed, and any increase in 
contract time caused by the change. True North shall authorize the requested change by amending the contract price and 
contract time in the Agreement. 


10.0 NOTIFICATION OF HAZARDS 


Client shall notify True North of any information Client has with respect to the existence or suspected existence of biological 
pollutants, hazardous materials, oil, or asbestos in the environment, including, but not limited to the air, soil, and water at the 
site. Client shall advise True North immediately of any information which Client receives regarding the existence of any such 
hazardous materials or conditions at the site which might present a threat to human health and safety or the environment or 
impact True North's work products. 


11.0 BIOLOGICAL POLLUTANTS 


True North's scope of Consulting Services, unless specifically outlined in its written scope of Consulting Services, does not include 
the investigation or detection of the presence of any biological pollutants in or around any structure. Client agrees that True 
North will have no liability for any claim regarding bodily injury or property damage alleged to arise from or be caused by the 
presence of or exposure to any biological pollutants, in or around any structure. In addition, Client shall defend, indemnify, and 
hold harmless True North from any third-party claim for damages alleged to arise from or be caused by the presence of or 
exposure to biological pollutants in or around any structure. 


12.0 SITE CONTROL, CONFIDENTIALITY AND DISCLOSURE 


True North shall not assume, by virtue of performing Consulting Services on or near the site, the responsibility or liability for any 
aspect or condition of the site that may now or later exist to be discovered. In particular, True North shall not assume the 
responsibility to report to any governmental or regulatory agency the existence of any conditions of the site that may present a 
threat to human health, safety or the environment. True North will not intentionally divulge information regarding any Agreement, 
True North’s Consulting Services or any report, and which is not in the public domain, except to Client or those whom Client 
designates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Client understands that True North will comply with judicial orders and applicable laws 
and regulations regarding the reporting to the appropriate public agencies of potential dangers to the public health, safety or the 
environment. 


13.0 RCRA COMPLIANCE 


Nothing contained in these Terms or the Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as requiring True North to assume the 
status of a generator, storer, treater, transporter, or disposal facility within the meaning of the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act of 1976, as amended, or within the meaning of any similar Federal, State, or local regulation or law. 


14.0 DELAYS 


Delays not the fault of True North or its subcontractors shall result in an extension of the schedule equivalent to the length of 
delay. If such delays result in additional costs to True North, the total Project cost shall be equitably adjusted by the amount 
of such additional costs. 


15.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION; CHOICE OF FORUM 


Any claims or disputes between Client and True North arising out of or related to the Consulting Services provided by True North 
or out of or related to the Agreement shall be submitted to non-binding mediation as a condition precedent to the institution of 
legal or equitable proceedings by either party. Any claims arising out of or relating to the sale of Consulting Services provided by 







 


True North and/or the relationship between True North and Client shall be asserted only in the state or federal courts located in 
Cook County or DuPage County, Illinois. Client hereby unconditionally consents to the jurisdiction and venue of said courts.  


16.0 MISCELLANEOUS 


16.1  Governing Law: These Terms and all matters arising out of, or related to, the sale of Consulting Services by True North 
to Client and/or the relationship between True North and Client shall be deemed to have been made and governed by 
the substantive laws of the State of Illinois, without regard to its choice-of-law or conflict-of-laws provisions. 


16.2  Severability: If any term or provision of these Terms is found to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining portion of these 
Terms shall remain in effect, provided that if such invalid or unenforceable portion is an essential part of these Terms, the 
parties will immediately begin negotiations for a replacement provision consistent with the intent and purpose of these 
Terms. 


16.3  Entire Agreement: The terms contained in the Agreement and these Terms comprise the entire agreement between True 
North and Client concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior and contemporaneous understandings, 
agreements, representations and warranties, both written and oral, regarding such subject matter. No modification, 
amendment, rescission, waiver or other change of these Terms or the Agreement or any part thereof shall be binding on 
True North unless agreed in writing by an authorized officer of True North. 


16.4  All Rights Reserved: All rights and remedies of True North provided in these Terms are cumulative and not exclusive, and 
the exercise by True North of any right or remedy does not preclude the exercise of any other rights or remedies that may 
now or subsequently be available at law, in equity, by statute, or in any other agreement between the parties. 


16.5  No Assignment: The rights and responsibilities of Client hereunder may not be assigned to any third-party without the 
written consent of True North. 


16.6  Waste Manifests: If during remedial construction activities waste manifests are required, Client shall provide 
an authorized person to sign manifests or agrees to provide True North with a written limited power of attorney 
to sign manifests. 


END OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
REVISED: June 27, 2019 







  
525 Junction Road, Suite 1900 


Madison, WI 53717 
 


  O: 608.234.5092 
F:  608.237.2453 


   


ConsultTrueNorth.com 


  Trusted Partner. Leading Environmental Solutions. 


 
 
 


EXHIBIT A 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES 


2020 FEE SCHEDULE 
 


MADISON, WISCONSIN OFFICE 
 


 
 


Professional Services Hourly Rate 
Principal Consultant ..................................................................................   $ 150.00 


Senior Consultant ...................................................................................   $ 125.00 


Staff Consultant .......................................................................................   $ 105.00 


Associate Consultant ...............................................................................   $   90.00 


Project Consultant ....................................................................................   $   75.00 


Certified Industrial Hygienist .....................................................................   $ 150.00 


Industrial Hygienist ....................................................................................   $   90.00 


Certified Safety Professional ...................................................................   $ 150.00 


CAD Operator ..........................................................................................   $   80.00 


Administrative Staff ..................................................................................   $   55.00 


Asbestos Professional ..............................................................................   $   90.00 


Lead Inspector/Risk Assessor ..................................................................   $   90.00 


 


Reimbursable Expenses           Unit Rate 
Field Expenses/Rental Equipment ......................................................................  Cost + 15% 


Analytical Services ...............................................................................................  Cost + 15% 


Commercial Travel ...............................................................................................  Cost + 15% 


Printing & Reproduction .......................................................................................  Cost + 15% 


Subcontractor Expenses ......................................................................................  Cost + 15% 


Other Direct Costs ................................................................................................  Cost + 15% 


Company Vehicle……………………………………………………………........... $ 75.00 per Day 


Equipment Charge……………………………………………………………..........$ 75.00 per Day 


Staff Vehicle Mileage ............................................................................................... $0.575 per Mile 
 
 
All rates are valid for the identified year starting January 1, 2020. Rates are subject to change on an annual basis without prior 
notice. 







 


  


 


aecom.com 
Our Reference  OPP-1059263 
Proposal for Investigation Stoughton OPP-1059263 


 
  


1/7 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 


Rodney Scheel 
Director of Planning & Development 
City of Stoughton 
381 E. Main Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 


  AECOM 
1555 N. RiverCenter Drive 
Suite 214 
Milwaukee, WI 53212 
 
T: +1-414-944-6080 
aecom.com 
 


 
July 30, 2020 


Our Reference 
OPP-1059263 


Proposal for a NR 716 Site Investigation, 501 & 515 S. 4th Street, Stoughton, WI      


Dear Mr. Scheel: 


AECOM Technical Services Inc. (AECOM) is providing this proposal in response to your request on 
Monday July 20, 2020 for a proposal for environmental consulting services to respond to a letter from the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) regarding contamination identified at the above 
referenced city-owned property.  AECOM understands that the property on South 4th Street is part of a 
larger parcel planned for redevelopment with residential and commercial uses along with the continuation 
of a bike path along the Yahara River. 


Background 


The City of Stoughton has planned for the redevelopment of the parcel and has completed Environmental 
Site Assessments (ESAs) to identify and verify potential contamination on the property.  A Phase I ESA 
was conducted in March 2015 by Vierbicher Associates, Inc. for the Stoughton Redevelopment Authority.  
The report identified the following RECs on the South 4th Street property: 


 Manufactured Gas Plant – from approximately 1912 to 1949 the Stoughton Light and Fuel Company 
operated on the southern portion of the property.  The gas plant had buildings that converted coal to 
gas and other liquid fuels.  The facility also included a gasholder structure and two underground 
storage tanks (USTs) that held crude oil. 


 Automobile service and repair facility – from approximately 1926 until ownership by the City, the 
buildings on the northern portion of the property were historically used for automotive sales and 
service.   


 A former electrical transformer substation was located on the eastern side of the property.   


The buildings on the property were razed in 2019.  Soil and groundwater samples were collected during a 
Phase II ESA to evaluate the potential for soil and groundwater impacts relative to recognized 
environmental conditions (RECs) that were identified in the Phase I ESA conducted by Vierbicher 
Associates, Inc.  The Phase II ESA was conducted by AECOM under the WDNR’s Brownfields Wisconsin 
Assessment Monies (WAM) program. The Phase II ESA and its conclusions were: 


 Fill soils were identified in 13 of the 17 borings ranging from two to seven feet in thickness.  
Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbon (PAH) impacts associated with the fill soil included exceedances of 
the non-industrial direct contact or groundwater pathway residual contaminant levels (RCLs). 


 Soil contamination identified in GP-3 at the water table interface may be indicative of impacts 
associated with the former gas holder. 







 
  
 


  
 


 


 


aecom.com 
Our Reference  OPP-1059263 
 2/7
 


 Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and PAHs were detected in the soil samples collected near the 
former crude oil UST area. 


 PAHs were detected in most of the shallow soil samples analyzed and some of the PAHs exceeded 
residential direct contact RCLs.   


 Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) were not detected in the soil samples collected in the vicinity of the 
former electrical transformers. 


 Groundwater impacts were not identified at locations of specific RECs, however the two 
downgradient locations (GP-9 and GP-10) had groundwater quality exceedances.  Naphthalene was 
detected at both locations and is an analyte commonly found in crude oils and MGP gas holder 
residuals.  Therefore, because the naphthalene was detected downgradient from two known former 
historical uses, it is likely that these historical uses may be the source of the impact.  The 
concentrations of two chlorinated VOC analytes, tetrachloroethene and trichloroethene, exceeded 
groundwater quality standards and were detected at only GP-10.  These two analytes are commonly 
used solvents that may be associated with the historic uses at the site.  A specific source for these 
analytes was not identified in the Phase II ESA. 


On July 20, 2020 Mr. Scheel and Ms. Altenbach had a telephone conversation with Mr. Jeff Ackerman, the 
WDNR project manager.  The discussion was conducted to identify Mr. Ackerman’s areas of concern for 
scoping the site investigation.  Mr. Ackerman’s concerns included defining the extent of soil impact around 
the crude oil tanks, evaluating the extent of PAH impacts on the site where higher concentration of PAHs 
was observed and evaluating the groundwater flow direction and the type, magnitude and extent of 
groundwater contamination.   


Scope of Services 


Redevelopment of the property with residential and commercial uses requires further definition of 
identified contamination associated with past site uses.  Redevelopment is often a solution for 
management of environmental contamination with direct contact risks.  The goal of the site investigation 
is to identify the magnitude and extent of environmental impact so that protective measures can be 
incorporated into the redevelopment to prevent the spread of the contamination as well as prevent 
human or environmental exposure to the contamination.   


Site Investigation Work Plan/Health and Safety Plan  


A work plan will be prepared in general conformance with NR 716.07 (Site Investigation Scoping) and 
NR 706.09 (Site Investigation work plan) (WAC).  The work plan will include: 


 A history of the site, a review of the known contamination on the property, a review of 
contaminated sites in the vicinity of the property, a review of receptors including endangered 
species, outstanding resource waters, wetlands and sites of archeological significance; 


 A description of regional geology and hydrogeology; 


 A description of the proposed sampling procedures; 


 A description of the sampling rationale for the selected sample locations and proposed analysis 
of soil and groundwater; 


 A site-specific health & safety plan;  


 A discussion of investigation-derived waste management; 


 A site location map and proposed sample location diagram including proposed sample intervals; 
and  


 A schedule for conducting the work. 







 
  
 


  
 


 


 


aecom.com 
Our Reference  OPP-1059263 
 3/7
 


Field Investigation 


The proposed site investigation will include water table groundwater monitoring wells to evaluate the 
groundwater flow direction and to assess the groundwater contamination extent and magnitude.  Soil 
borings will be advanced to evaluate the soils in areas where prior soil borings suggest laboratory 
analysis of the soil is warranted.  The number of monitoring wells and soil borings will be specified in the 
work plan.  For this proposal, AECOM assumes that five monitoring wells will be installed to a depth of 
15 feet for soil and groundwater sampling, two soil borings will be advanced to 15 feet adjacent to the 
former crude oil USTs for the collection of soil samples and 13 soil borings will be advanced to a depth 
of four feet to evaluate the extent of PAH impacts.  Laboratory analytical data from soil samples will be 
used to support conclusions that will be drawn from the investigation about the nature and extent of 
impacts, if any, or will serve as evidence that impacts are not present.   


AECOM or the drilling contractor will contact Digger’s Hotline for the location of public utilities in the 
area of the investigation prior to commencing work.  The borings will be cleared using hand tools (hand-
auger or other hand tool) to assist with identifying if underground utilities are present.  AECOM cannot 
be held responsible for damage to subsurface features not identified by the property owner or by the 
precautionary measures proposed to identify such features, including utilities, pipes or tanks. 


Soil samples will be described and visually classified in general conformance with the Unified Soil 
Classification System.  The soil samples will be described with respect to the soil type, grain size 
distribution, and color (or discoloration), odor, and moisture content.  Field observations from the borings 
will be recorded on soil boring logs for submittal to WDNR.  AECOM will complete soil boring log forms 
(WDNR Form 4400-122) for each boring.  Additionally, soil samples will be screened in the field with a 
photo-ionization detector (PID) equipped with a 10.6 electron volt (eV) lamp.  The PID will be calibrated in 
the field according to manufacturer's instructions, using 100 parts per million (ppm) isobutylene span gas 
and air (zero gas). 


Two soil samples will be collected from the boring advanced for each of the monitoring wells and from 
each of the soil boring locations.  At the monitoring well and soil boring locations (to 15 feet deep) the first 
sample will be collected in the upper four feet of soil or fill and the second sample will be collected where, 
PID readings are elevated, or staining is evident, likely at the water table interface.  The two samples from 
each of the four-foot-deep borings will be collected from the upper two-foot interval and the lower two-foot 
interval.  Laboratory analysis will include volatile organic compounds [VOCs] (SW846 method 8260B) 
polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons [PAHs] (SW846 8270C-SIM) and eight metals (arsenic, barium, 
cadmium, chromium, lead, mercury, selenium and silver) by SW-846 method 6010 for soil and 6020 for 
groundwater. 


After the borings are advanced and the soil samples have been collected, the borings will be 
abandoned, unless they are to be converted into monitoring well locations.  Five monitoring wells will be 
completed as water table wells in general conformance with NR141 WAC well completion requirements. 
The wells will be developed upon completion of construction.   


The wells will be completed as above-grade monitoring wells with protective steel casing.  Bollards for 
protection of the monitoring wells are not planned or included in the cost estimate.  Approximately one to 
two weeks after well development the wells will be sampled for VOCs, PAHs and metals.   


The location and elevations of each sampling point will be surveyed relative to State Plane Coordinates 
and mean sea level using global positioning system and/or standard surveying techniques, as 
appropriate based on location and physical access/configuration on the site.  Elevations of the ground 
surface, top of PVC and top of protector pipe will be surveyed for each NR141 compliant groundwater 
monitoring well installed.  Groundwater elevations will be calculated based on the top of PVC elevation 
measurements. 


Excess soil from the soil borings not used as sample media for laboratory analysis, and groundwater 
generated during the well installation, development and sampling process will be placed into steel 
drums (approximately six or seven 55-gallon steel drums) that will be stored on-site pending proper 







 
  
 


  
 


 


 


aecom.com 
Our Reference  OPP-1059263 
 4/7
 


disposal.  One composite soil sample will be collected from the drummed soil to evaluate disposal 
options.  Disposal options will be presented to the City of Stoughton, however, the City will need to sign 
disposal profile forms and contract directly with the disposer. 


Site Investigation Report 


Upon receipt of the results of the soil and groundwater laboratory analysis, a site investigation report will 
be prepared in general conformance with NR 716.15.  The report will provide a summary of the 
investigation, tabulated soil and groundwater results and conclusions regarding the laboratory analytical 
results.  If contamination requiring remediation is not found, AECOM will include a recommendation for 
the completion of a soil management plan and an exemption to construction on historic fill (if historic fill 
is identified as a discrete layer or zone).  If contamination requiring remediation is identified, additional 
definition of the extent of the impact may be necessary prior to remediation.  Additional groundwater 
monitoring will likely be necessary to achieve case closure on the site.  


Schedule 


AECOM will begin preparation of the work plan for submittal to the WDNR and a site-specific health and 
safety plan after receiving a signed contract from the City of Stoughton.  AECOM understands that the 
City will provide site access for the field work.  Field work will be scheduled submittal of the work plan and 
will be dependent on the availability of the soil probe subcontractor.   


The well installation and soil sample collection will be conducted during a single mobilization to the site.  
The monitoring wells will be developed after installation and sampled approximately two weeks after well 
development.   


Laboratory turnaround time is approximately five to ten working days.  AECOM will provide a draft site 
investigation report approximately four to six weeks after receipt of the laboratory analytical results from 
the groundwater sampling. 


As you are aware, the world is experiencing a pandemic as it relates to the coronavirus COVID-19 
(“Coronavirus”).  This health emergency has the potential of impacting multiple facets of the project 
including, without limitation, labor, personnel, manufacturing, equipment, materials, transportation and 
related supply chains, all of which have the potential to adversely impact the critical path of the project 
schedule. These potential, unusual, and unavoidable delays are outside of the control of AECOM and 
cannot be anticipated or determined in advance.  AECOM will exercise reasonable care to mitigate the 
potential impact of the Coronavirus to the extent within AECOM’s reasonable control. AECOM will notify 
you in the event AECOM becomes aware of any potential impact to the work caused by the Coronavirus. 


Compensation 


AECOM proposes to complete the scope of services described in this proposal for an estimated fee of 
$26,950.00, under a time and materials basis with the attached terms and conditions and the scope of 
work and assumptions provided in this proposal.   


The fee is based on the following costs: 


Site Investigation Work Plan & Health & Safety Plan $  2,100.00 
Field Investigation  $18,550.00 
Site Investigation Report $  6,300.00 


  Task Order Total $26,950.00 


Assumptions 


The following assumptions apply to the proposed scope of work and estimated fees. 


 No delays in work beyond AECOM’s control are experienced during the project. 







 
  
 


  
 


 


 


aecom.com 
Our Reference  OPP-1059263 
 5/7
 


 If impact is identified in the soil (i.e. a potential source area is found) additional sampling and/or 
remediation of the soil may be necessary.  Similarly, if groundwater impacts are observed, 
additional groundwater sampling events may be necessary. 


 WDNR fees for review of the work plan, site investigation report or other submittal, are not 
included with the proposed costs; if the City requests these reviews, the WDNR-required review 
can either be paid directly by the City or if paid by AECOM will be charged per AECOM’s 
established fee schedule for this project. 


 One set of revisions to the draft WDNR submittals following client review is assumed. 


 Soils and/or groundwater generated by well installation and development will be contained in 
Department of Transportation approved 55-gallon drums pending proper disposal.  The City will 
designate an appropriate on-site temporary storage location for the drums and will need to sign 
the generator waste profile form and any waste manifests for the investigative waste to enable 
AECOM to assist with the disposal of investigation-derived waste.  The fee estimate below does 
not include the cost of investigation waste disposal.   


 The City will provide AECOM with locations of known subsurface utilities and structures prior to 
work commencement.  AECOM can provide for a subcontract utility clearance firm to mark 
private buried utilities on the property, for an additional cost, but nonetheless cannot be held 
responsible for damage to such facilities. 


 AECOM's scope of work and report format is acceptable to Client.  AECOM will provide electronic 
copies of the report in portable document file format (pdf). 


 Any additional services beyond the scope of work specified in this proposal will be invoiced on a 
time and materials basis. Client approval will be obtained prior to initiation of additional activities. 


Conditions of Service 


The work will be completed in accordance with the attached General Conditions Form 102 (dated May 18, 
2020) and the Commercial Terms Form 103F (dated May 18, 2020).  Please indicate your acceptance of this 
proposal by having an authorized representative of the party responsible for payment execute the Authorization 
form and return it to either of the undersigned. 


This proposal is valid for 60 days.  Your acceptance of our proposal confirms that the terms and conditions are 
understood, including payment to AECOM upon receipt of the invoice, unless specifically arranged otherwise in 
writing.  Of course, should you wish to discuss the terms, conditions, and provisions of our proposal, we would 
be pleased to do so at your convenience. 


Closing 


We look forward to working with you on this project.  If you have any questions with regard to the information 
contained in this proposal, please contact us at your convenience.  The outcome of the site investigation may 
lead to additional environmental activities necessary to support redevelopment such as a soil management 
plan and vapor mitigation requirements for new construction.   


Attached to this proposal is some additional information about our firm and our redevelopment support 
capabilities. 


If you have questions or require additional information regarding this proposal, please call Lanette 
Altenbach at 414-944-6186 or contact her via email. 







 
  
 


  
 


 


 


aecom.com 
Our Reference  OPP-1059263 
 6/7
 


Yours sincerely, 
 
 
         
 
Lanette Altenbach, P.G. 
Senior Hydrogeologist 
AECOM 
T: 414-944-6186 
E: lanette.altenbach@aecom.com 


Dean Gerber, PG (PA, TX) 
Operations leadership Senior Manager 
AECOM 
T: 513-419-3502 
E: dean.gerber@aecom.com 


enclosures:  Authorization for Services 
 General Conditions of Service (Form 102) 


Commercial Terms (103F) 
AECOM Services Sheets, Brownfield Redevelopment and Civil Design Service 


 







 


  


 


aecom.com 
Our Reference  OPP-1059263 
Proposal for Investigation Stoughton OPP-1059263 


 
  


7/7 
 


Authorization for Services 


I hereby authorize AECOM Technical Services, Inc. to proceed with the scope of services for $26,950.00 
as described in AECOM’s Proposal for a NR 716 Site Investigation, 501 & 515 S. 4th Street, Stoughton, 
Wisconsin (OPP-1059263), dated July 30, 2020, under the terms and conditions attached to this proposal. 


 


   


Signature  Date 


   


Print Name   


  
 
  


Title/Organization   


 


 


I agree to accept invoices from AECOM Technical Services, Inc. via e-mail and not postal mail: 


 Yes   


    


 Signature:  


   


 E-mail address:  


   


 Recipient Mr/Ms/Dr:  


 


Return to: 


Name: Lanette Altenbach  
   
Address: 1555 N RiverCenter Dr., Suite 214  
 Milwaukee, WI 53212  
Fax: 414 944-6081  
   
Phone: 414 944-6186  
 
Email:  lanette.altenbach@aecom.com 
 


 







General Conditions 
 


Form 102 (05/18/2020) 


Environment Business Line  


Effective: May 18, 2020


1. ACCESS.  Client grants or shall obtain for AECOM Technical Services, Inc. ("AECOM") and its subcontractors authority to enter the 
property upon which AECOM's Services are to be performed ("Site"), at Client's expense. 
 
2. CLIENT INFORMATION.  Client shall furnish all information and technical data in Client's possession or under its control reasonably 
required for AECOM’s proper performance of the Services prior to AECOM’s commencement of the Services or at such other times 
as  Client  and  AECOM mutually  agree.  AECOM  is  entitled  and  will  rely  upon  the  accuracy,  completeness,  currency  and  non‐
infringement of information and data provided by Client or obtained from generally accepted sources within the industry, except to 
the extent such verification by AECOM may be expressly required as a defined part of the Services. AECOM will not be responsible 
for defects in its Services attributable to its reliance upon or use of such information and data.   
 
3.  STANDARD OF  SERVICES AND WARRANTY.   AECOM  agrees  to  perform  its  services  as  described  in  the  applicable  Proposal 
(“Services”)  in accordance with generally accepted engineering and construction standards, and scientific practices  in effect and 
utilized by environmental firms in the United States at the time the Services are rendered.  The Services may involve the use of tests, 
calculations,  analysis  and procedures which  are  in  a  state of  change  and  refinement.   Client  recognizes  that projects  involving 
hazardous waste sites may not perform as anticipated even though the Services are performed in accordance with the required level 
of care.  Given the difficulty in predicting the environmental condition of a site based upon limited sampling and investigative activity, 
Client recognizes that any statements, opinions and conclusions contained in reports and other documents prepared and/or issued 
by AECOM are only meant to give approximations of the environmental condition of the Site limited to the particular contaminant(s) 
and/or environmental issues actually targeted by AECOM's investigation and the portions of the Site actually investigated, sampled 
or tested by AECOM.  AECOM shall, for the protection of Client, request from all vendors and subcontractors from which AECOM 
procures equipment, materials or services, guarantees which will be made available to Client to the full extent of the terms thereof.  
AECOM's responsibility with respect to such equipment, services and materials shall be limited to the assignment of such guarantees 
and rendering assistance to Client in enforcing the same.  Subject to Section 13, AECOM warrants that, if any of its completed Services 
fail to conform to the above standard, AECOM will, at its expense and provided AECOM is notified of such defective Services within 
one year of the completion of the Services, either perform corrective Services of the type originally performed as may be required 
to correct such defective Services or refund to Client the amount paid to AECOM for the defective Services.  Except as provided in 
this Section, AECOM makes no other warranty, express or implied, and shall have no other liability to Client for defective Services, 
whether caused by error, omission, negligence, or otherwise. AECOM shall not be responsible or liable for the errors, omissions, or 
other acts of any other consultants, contractors, or parties engaged by Client or present at any Site, nor for their construction means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, or their health and safety precautions and programs. 
 
4. CONFIDENTIALITY.  "Confidential Information" means all technical, economic, financial, pricing, marketing or other information 
that has not been published and/or  is not otherwise available  to members of  the public and  includes, without  limitation,  trade 
secrets, proprietary information, customer lists, scientific, technical and business studies, analyses, processes, methods, procedures, 
policies and information.  In the event that either party discloses Confidential Information to the other party in connection with this 
contract (excluding AECOM's Work Product that  is delivered to Client or others hereunder), the party receiving such Confidential 
Information agrees to hold as confidential and to not disclose to others the Confidential Information for a period of ten (10) years 
from the date of disclosure.   These restrictions shall not apply to  information that (i) the parties had  in their possession prior to 
disclosure; (ii) becomes public knowledge through no fault of the receiving party; (iii) the receiving party lawfully acquires from a 
third party not under an obligation of confidentiality to the disclosing party; (iv) is independently developed by the receiving party; 
or (v) is required to be disclosed by law or court order.  Client agrees that AECOM may use and publish Client's name and a general 
description of  the Services provided  to Client  in describing AECOM's experience and qualifications  to other clients and potential 
clients. 
 
5. WORK PRODUCT.  "Work Product" consists of all reports, notes, laboratory test data and other information prepared by AECOM 
for delivery to Client.  Client shall have the right to make and retain copies and use all Work Product; provided, however, such use 
shall be limited to the particular Site and project for which the Work Product is provided.  All Work Product prepared by AECOM shall 
be for the sole and exclusive use of Client and no other person or entity.  Client agrees that no third party (with the exception of 
governmental entities or agencies) shall have the right to use or rely on the Work Product without the written consent of AECOM 
and the third party’s agreement to be bound by the same terms and conditions as Client and to execute a third party reliance letter 
agreeable to AECOM.   
 
6. INSURANCE.  AECOM shall maintain Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability insurance in accordance with requirements 
of  the  state  in which  the  Services  are being performed, Commercial General  Liability  insurance with  a  limit of  $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage, Automobile Liability insurance including owned and hired 
vehicles with a  limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence and  in the aggregate for bodily  injury and property damage, and Professional 
Liability (errors and omissions) insurance with a limit of $1,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate. 







 


                                                                                                                        Form 102 (05/18/2020) 
Environment Business Line  


 
7. INDEMNITY.  AECOM shall indemnify and hold harmless Client, its officers, directors, agents employees and affiliated and parent 
companies against claims, demands and causes of action of third parties (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of defense) 
for bodily injury, disease or death, and damage of property arising during the performance of Services to the extent caused by the 
negligence  or willful misconduct  of  AECOM.    Client  shall  indemnify  and  hold  harmless  AECOM,  its  officers,  directors,  agents 
employees and affiliated and parent companies against claims, demands and causes of action of third parties (including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs of defense) for bodily injury, disease or death, and damage of property arising during the performance of 
this Agreement to the extent caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Client. 
 
8. PAYMENT & CHANGES. Invoices will be issued monthly or twice per month at AECOM’s discretion, itemizing the staff categories, 
hours worked, rates, and the Other Direct Costs.  Invoices may be sent electronically at AECOM's discretion.  Copies of supporting 
documentation will be provided upon Client's  request  and  at Client's  expense,  to  include  associated  labor  and  copying  costs.  
Payments  can be made by electronic  funds  transfers  to  the  routing number  listed on  the  invoice or manually  to  the  address 
appearing on the invoice due within thirty (30) days of invoice date.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Agreement to the 
contrary, AECOM shall be entitled to additional compensation for work in the event that AECOM experiences any increases in costs 
due to changes  in AECOM's scope of work from that  included  in AECOM's original proposal or for additional work requested by 
client or changes in the manner or method of performance of work or due to changes in schedule or circumstances not solely caused 
by AECOM.  AECOM shall be compensated for all such additional work either (1) as previously agreed in writing by the parties; or 
(2) on a time and materials basis in accordance with AECOM's then current standard commercial rates. 
 
9. WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY OR THEIR PARENT COMPANIES, AFFILIATES, AND 
SUBSIDIARIES, AND  THEIR  RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND  EMPLOYEES  BE  LIABLE  TO  THE OTHER  FOR ANY  INDIRECT, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES OF ANY KIND OR CHARACTER, INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, LOST PROFITS, LOSS OF REVENUE, LOSS OF USE, OR  INTERRUPTION OF BUSINESS, ARISING FROM OR RELATING TO 
THIS AGREEMENT, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 
 
10. ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS.  Client shall provide (or cause the Site owner to provide) AECOM with the identity and location 
of all subsurface facilities and obstructions on the Site.  Client agrees to waive any claims against AECOM and to indemnify, defend 
and hold AECOM harmless from any claims, demands or causes of action for damages to subsurface facilities or obstructions that 
are not accurately  identified or  located by Client or others.   Client agrees  to advise AECOM of  the existence of any hazardous 
substances, wastes or conditions affecting the Site or the Services to be performed hereunder. Client acknowledges that AECOM 
has neither created nor contributed to the creation or existence of any environmental hazards, contamination, or pollution at any 
Site prior to the date on which Services commenced.  Client assumes responsibility for air, subsurface and/or ground pollution and 
environmental hazards, contamination, or impairment from toxic substances or hazardous materials existing at the Site, whether 
latent or patent, and shall defend, indemnify, and hold AECOM harmless from any claims, demands and causes of action of third 
parties  related  thereto, except where  such  claims, demands and  causes of action are  caused by  the  sole negligence or willful 
misconduct of AECOM, it being the intention of the Client to assume any liability alleged to have resulted from AECOM's joint or 
concurrent negligence. 
 
11. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  AECOM's Services are performed as an independent contractor.   
 
12. FORCE MAJEURE.  Neither AECOM nor Client shall be responsible for a delay or disruption in, or inability to provide its respective 
performance under this Agreement, other than a delay in payment for Services already performed, if such delay is caused by events 
or  contingencies,  existing  or  future,  beyond  the  reasonable  control  of  the  claiming  party,  including  acts  of  God,  fire,  flood, 
extraordinary weather  conditions,  natural  catastrophes,  unanticipated  or  differing  Site  conditions,  changes  in  law or  regulations, 
explosion,  war  (whether  declared  or  not),  civil  unrest,  terrorism,  sabotage,  computer  viruses,  pandemics,  epidemics,  health 
emergencies, disease, plague, quarantine, travel restrictions, the Coronavirus (SARS COV‐2) and such related diseases (e.g., COVID‐19) 
outbreak, strikes,  lockouts,  industrial disturbances, requests, acts, or  intervention of a governmental agencies or authorities, court 
orders,  labor  relations, accidents, delays,  the  inability  to obtain materials, equipment,  fuel, or  transportation, or other events or 
circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the claiming party (“Force Majeure Event”).  AECOM shall be entitled to a change 
in the scope of Services, compensation, the project schedule, and other terms and conditions of this Agreement that are affected 
by a Force Majeure Event sufficient to compensate AECOM for any increase in the time or costs necessary to perform the Services 
under  this Agreement.   All  such  changes  shall be authorized by a mutually agreed upon, written  change order  containing any 
appropriate equitable adjustments to the scope of Services, compensation, project schedule, and other terms and conditions of this 
Agreement  affected  by  the  Force Majeure  Event.    If  a  Force Majeure  Event  substantially  prevents,  or  is  reasonably  likely  to 
substantially  prevent, AECOM’s  performance  of  the  Services  for more  than  thirty  (30)  days,  then AECOM  shall  be  entitled  to 
terminate this Agreement without breach.  In case of such termination, AECOM shall be entitled to compensation for those Services 
performed as of the date of termination. 
 
13. RISK ALLOCATION & RESTRICTION OF REMEDIES. THE PARTIES HAVE EVALUATED THE RESPECTIVE RISKS AND REMEDIES UNDER 







 


                                                                                                                        Form 102 (05/18/2020) 
Environment Business Line  


THIS  AGREEMENT  AND  AGREE  TO  ALLOCATE  THE  RISKS  AND  RESTRICT  THE  REMEDIES  TO  REFLECT  THAT  EVALUATION.  
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT AND TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY 
LAW,  CLIENT  AGREES  TO  RESTRICT  ITS  REMEDIES UNDER  THIS  AGREEMENT  AGAINST  AECOM,  ITS  PARENTS,  AFFILIATES  AND 
SUBSIDIARIES, AND THEIR RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, SHAREHOLDERS AND EMPLOYEES (“AECOM COVERED PARTIES”), SO 
THAT THE TOTAL AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF THE AECOM COVERED PARTIES SHALL NOT EXCEED $50,000.   THIS RESTRICTION OF 
REMEDIES SHALL APPLY TO ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, LOSSES, LIABILITIES, CAUSES OF ACTION, ACTIONS, SUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS, 
PENALTIES, FINES, AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING ATTORNEYS’ FEES) OF ANY KIND OR CHARACTER ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THIS 
AGREEMENT WITHOUT REGARD TO THE LEGAL THEORY UNDER WHICH SUCH LIABILITY IS IMPOSED.  CLAIMS MUST BE BROUGHT 
WITHIN ONE CALENDAR YEAR FROM PERFORMANCE OF THE SERVICES UNLESS A LONGER PERIOD IS REQUIRED BY LAW.   
 
14. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.   Either party may initiate a dispute resolution by providing written notice to the other party setting forth 
the subject of the claim, dispute, or controversy relating to this Agreement (“Dispute”) and the requested relief.  The recipient of 
such notice shall respond within five (5) business days with a written statement of its position and a recommended solution to the 
Dispute.    If the parties cannot resolve the Dispute through negotiation, either party may refer the Dispute to a panel  (“Panel”) 
consisting of a designated senior representative from each party (“Representative”), who shall have the authority to resolve such 
Dispute.  The Representatives shall not have been directly involved in the Services and shall negotiate in good faith.  No written or 
verbal representation made by either party in the course of any Panel proceeding or other settlement negotiations shall be deemed 
to be a party admission or otherwise be usable or admissible in any litigation, arbitration, or dispute resolution proceeding.  If the 
Representatives are unable to resolve the Dispute within thirty (30) days, either party shall have the right to commence arbitration 
at any  time  thereafter upon service of demand  for arbitration on  the other party.   Any Dispute arising out of,  relating  to or  in 
connection with this Agreement, including with respect to the formation, applicability, breach, termination, validity or enforceability 
thereof, that is not resolved by the Panel of Representatives, as well as any dispute concerning the propriety of commencement of 
the arbitration,  shall be  finally  resolved and  settled by arbitration. Unless  the parties agree otherwise,  the arbitration  shall be 
conducted by one arbitrator in accordance with the rules and procedures of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) in effect 
at the time of the arbitration, except as such rules and procedures are modified herein or by agreement of the parties. The parties 
shall seek to agree upon a sole arbitrator within thirty (30) days after a demand for arbitration. If the parties do not reach agreement 
on the sole arbitrator, then AAA shall appoint the sole arbitrator from a panel with expertise in the subject areas relating to the 
Dispute.  Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, the seat of the arbitration shall be Los Angeles, California. and it shall be conducted 
in the English language, but either party may submit testimony or documentary evidence in any other language if such Party provides 
a translation into English of any such evidence. The parties agree to ask the arbitrator to hold an in‐person procedural hearing within 
sixty (60) days of the demand for arbitration, and to hold a hearing on the merits within twelve (12) months of the demand. Unless 
the parties agree otherwise, the hearing on the merits will be set for consecutive days (excluding weekends and holidays) and last 
for no more than ten (10) days. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, at the first in‐person procedural hearing, the parties will 
request that the arbitrator set a schedule for conducting the proceeding that includes service by the claimant of a memorial together 
with witness statements, documents, and expert testimony, service by the respondent of a counter memorial together with witness 
statements, documents, and expert testimony and service of reply and sur‐reply memorials as appropriate. Unless otherwise agreed 
by the parties at the time of arbitration, the parties shall not conduct any depositions (other than as necessary to record testimony 
of witnesses who cannot be ordered to appear at the hearing), requests for admission, or interrogatories in connection with the 
arbitration.  The parties further agree that they shall have no right to seek production of documents or any other discovery in the 
arbitration proceeding from the other party, except that the parties shall exchange the documents on which they intend to rely with 
their witness statements. The parties agree  that  the arbitrator shall be empowered  to consider  the  IBA Rules on  the Taking of 
Evidence  in  connection with witness  and  expert  testimony  in  the  arbitration.   Unless  otherwise  agreed  by  the  parties,  direct 
testimony at the hearing shall be submitted in the form of written witness statements; testimony of fact witnesses at the hearing 
shall be limited to cross‐examination and rebuttal; and experts shall be encouraged by the parties and the arbitrator to find areas 
of agreement. Any arbitration award shall be final and binding on the parties.  The parties agree to undertake and carry out any 
award without  delay.  Judgment  upon  the  award may  be  entered  by  any  court  having  jurisdiction  over  the  award  or  having 
jurisdiction over the relevant party or its assets.   
 
15. OWNERSHIP OF WASTE.  "Pre‐Existing Waste" is any hazardous or non‐hazardous wastes, substances, or materials existing on 
the Site prior to the date that the Services are initiated.  Upon request, AECOM shall assist Client in the proper handling, storage, 
transportation  and/or  disposal  of  the  Pre‐Existing Waste  in  accordance with  all  applicable  federal,  state  and  local  laws  and 
regulations.    Client  shall  provide  appropriate  disposal  identification  numbers,  select  the  disposal  site(s)  and  sign  all  required 
manifests, disposal contracts and other documentation necessary to allow AECOM to complete the Services  in a timely manner.  
Client  agrees  to  look  solely  to  the  disposal  facility  and/or  transportation  concern  for  any  damages  arising  from  improper 
transportation or disposal of the Pre‐Existing Waste.  In no event shall AECOM take title to, ownership of, or be liable for disposal 
or remediation costs associated with any Pre‐Existing Waste.  Any samples obtained pursuant to the Services are to remain property 
of the Client.   
 
16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The terms of this Agreement shall be deemed accepted by Client at the earlier of (1) AECOM's initiation 
of Services at the verbal or written direction of Client or (2) Client's written agreement to be bound by these terms.  This Agreement 







 


                                                                                                                        Form 102 (05/18/2020) 
Environment Business Line  


constitutes the entire understanding between the parties.  Any waiver, modification or amendment of this contract shall be effective 
only if in writing and signed by an authorized representative of AECOM.  AECOM hereby objects to any terms contained in any prior 
or  subsequent  purchase  orders,  work  orders,  invoices,  acknowledgement  forms, manifests,  requests  for  proposals  or  other 
documents received from the Client that would otherwise have the effect of modifying or abrogating these General Conditions in 
whole or in part.  If any portion of this contract is held invalid or unenforceable, any remaining portion shall continue in full force 
and effect.  Nothing herein shall be construed to give any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than Client or AECOM.  There 
shall be no assignment of the rights or obligations contained in this contract by either party and any such assignment shall be null 
and void.  Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving the other party seven (7) days’ written notice.  Termination of this 
Agreement or the Services for any reason shall not affect or minimize the respective rights, obligations and limitations of liability 
contained herein, specifically, but not by way of limitation, Sections 3, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 13, 14 & 15 shall survive termination, completion 
and/or expiration of  this Agreement.   The construction,  interpretation and performance of  this Agreement and all  transactions 
relating thereto shall be governed by the  laws of the state  in which the AECOM office that  issued the proposal  is  located.   Any 
notices issued hereunder shall be delivered by first class mail to the addresses listed for the parties in the Proposal. 


 







Commercial Terms 
  Time and Materials with Multiplier Agreement 
 
  Effective: May 18, 2020 
 


 
Environment Business Line Page 1 of 1 Form 103F (05/18/2020)  


 


SCOPE OF SERVICES – AECOM Technical Services, Inc., referred to herein as "AECOM", will perform the services described in its Proposal, 
or, in the absence of a proposal, as defined in writing and approved by AECOM and Client, referred to herein as "Services" in accordance with 
the following "Commercial Terms".  These services shall be performed on a Time and Materials with Multiplier basis. 


BILLING RATES  


STAFF - Charges for all professional, technical and administrative personnel directly charging time to the project will be calculated and billed on 
the basis of the following staff category hourly "Billing Rates".  Billing Rates are in U.S. dollars, net of all applicable taxes, duties, fees and related 
charges, and include fringe benefits, burden and fee. 


Charges for employees shall be computed by multiplying the raw hourly wage of the employees (the employees’ U.S. W-2 hourly wage or, for 
any non-U.S. employees, those employees’ country equivalent) by a  multiplier of 3.0 for all hours worked.  Each such rate determined by such 
basis is a Blling Rate (e.g., if an individual's W-2 amount is $50.00 per hour and the multiplier is 3.0 that Billing Rate would be $150 per hour).  
AECOM may revise these Billing Rates annually.   


All travel, to a maximum of eight hours per day, will be charged at the Billing Rates.  Billing Rates are based on a forty-hour work week. Overtime 
hours for exempt employees (non-hourly) will be charged at the Billing Rates.  Overtime hours of non-exempt (hourly-non-supervisory) 
employees are charged at 130% of the Billing Rates. 


LITIGATION SUPPORT - In the event that AECOM's employees are requested by Client or compelled by subpoena or otherwise by any party 
to give expert or witness testimony or otherwise participate in a judicial or administrative proceeding involving the Client at any time, Client shall 
compensate AECOM at 150% of the Billing Rates, including preparation time, and shall reimburse AECOM for all out of pocket costs as provided 
herein. 


RETAINER - AECOM may require advance deposit of funds on specific projects based upon project cost estimates.  In those instances, AECOM 
and the Client will mutually provide terms for the deposit of advance payments and provisions for crediting such advances against invoices for 
Services completed. 


OTHER DIRECT COSTS - "Other Direct Costs" are all costs and expenses incurred by AECOM directly attributable to the performance of 
Services.  Other Direct Costs include subcontracts, materials, shipping charges, special fees, permits, special insurance and licenses, outside 
computer time, and miscellaneous costs.  Subcontracts only are computed on the basis of actual cost plus five percent (5%) fee.  All other 
internal expenses (reproduction, telephone, facsimile, etc.) will be charged at actual cost without markup. 


INVOICING AND PAYMENT - Invoices will be issued monthly or twice per month at AECOM’s option.  Invoices will include a listing of staff 
categories, hours worked, rates, and the Other Direct Costs.  Invoices may be sent electronically at AECOM's discretion.  Any variance from 
this invoice format will be completed at the client’s expense.   Payments can be made by electronic funds transfers to the routing number listed 
on the invoice or manually to the address appearing on the invoice due upon receipt.  Invoices not paid within thirty (30) days are subject to 
interest from the 31st day at the rate of 1-1/2% per month (18% per annum) but not to exceed the maximum interest allowed by law.  In addition, 
AECOM may, after giving seven (7) days written notice to Client, suspend Services without liability until the Client has paid in full all amounts 
due AECOM on account of Services rendered and expenses incurred including interest on past due invoices or terminate Services without 
liability.  If there is a disputed amount on an invoice, Client agrees to pay all undisputed amounts in the thirty (30) day period.  In the event that 
AECOM places Client's account in the hands of an attorney for collection, Client agrees to pay AECOM all fees and expenses, including 
attorneys' fees and expert fees, necessitated thereby. 


SECURITY INTEREST – Client hereby grants AECOM a security interest in and to any and all machinery, equipment, other rights, assets, and 
property, tangible and intangible, wherever located, now owned or hereafter acquired by Client from AECOM, and any and all proceeds, additions 
or accessions to any and all of the foregoing, to secure the payment and performance by Client of any and all direct or indirect obligations, 
indebtedness and claims, whether contingent or fixed, now existing or hereafter arising, from Client to AECOM. 


ESTIMATES OF COSTS AND SCHEDULES - AECOM's estimates of costs and schedules are for Client's budget and planning assistance only.  
Cost and schedule estimates are based on AECOM's best judgment of the requirements known at the time of the proposal and can be influenced 
favorably or adversely by Client needs and other circumstances.  AECOM will endeavor to perform the Services and accomplish the objectives 
within the estimated costs and schedule, but in no event shall AECOM's estimate be interpreted as a not-to-exceed or fixed price.  In the event 
AECOM is required to exceed its original estimate for any reason, the Client may wish to (1) redefine the scope of Services in order to accomplish 
Client's budget objectives, or (2) terminate Services at a specific expenditure level.  If option (2) is chosen, AECOM will turn over all information 
to the extent completed at the authorized level without further obligation or liability to either party except payment for Services performed.  
Notwithstanding any other terms to the contrary, AECOM shall be entitled to a change order for additional compensation or additional time to 
perform its work, in the event that work outside the Services is requested or required to be performed by AECOM, or in the event that the 
assumptions underlying AECOM's proposal prove to be different from the facts actually encountered by AECOM during the performance of the 
Services. 


AGREEMENT - These Commercial Terms Form 103F (05/18/2020) and the attached General Conditions Form 102 (05/18/2020) govern the 
performance of the Services and rights and obligations of the parties 


 







Areas of Expertise
 − Transactional Due Diligence
 − Site Reuse Analysis
 − Grant Writing Assistance
 − Stakeholder Engagement 
 − Agency Negotiations
 − Site Investigation and Risk Assessment
 − Remedial Design
 − Geotechnical Engineering
 − Civil/Site Engineering


More Information
1.978.905.2100
AskEnvironment@aecom.com


Brownfield Redevelopment


Overview
Brownfields — abandoned and underutilised commercial or 
industrial sites — represent significant challenges to property 
owners and communities. Adverse environmental conditions 
such as contaminated soils and groundwater, vacant buildings 
with asbestos and the presence of hazardous materials, 
significantly reduce the value of property and with it development 
potential.  These conditions burden owners with financial loss and 
liability. Lenders, developers, managers and municipalities share 
the burden. 


The regulatory setting today promotes Brownfield cleanups 
enabling these properties to be productively re-used. Brownfields 
Initiatives sponsored by state and federal governments and 
Voluntary Cleanup Programs provide a regulatory framework for 
the restoration of Brownfields. Careful planning of land use and 
redevelopment options for impaired properties allows for the 
negotiation of reasonable risk-based remediation scenarios and 
provides liability protection from future environmental regulatory 
“re-openers” through such mechanisms as Activity and Use 
Limitations.  


Our Approach 
AECOM’s approach to Brownfield Redevelopment is to integrate 
the environmental investigation and remedial design work 
with the reuse analysis and site redevelopment planning. The 
environmental and site redevelopment paths need to be executed 
so that the remedial design and site redevelopment plans lead to 
permits and approvals that support the site redevelopment.  


AECOM is known for its end-focused innovative remediation 
solutions. Leveraging our extensive technical resources and 
project management expertise, AECOM helps owners convert 
brownfield liabilities to assets — by designing and implementing 
adaptive site reuse plans that reduce costs — managing the 
environmental impacts within the scope of the redevelopment.  
Using this approach, options such as on-site stabilization can be 
used to contain contamination below new structures or within 
site landscaping, concrete and asphalt surfaces can be used to 
cap contaminants and building demolition materials can be used 
as part of the site redevelopment.  These approaches and others 
resulting from the integrated approach can provide significant 
cost savings that make a difference enabling a project to move 
forward.


www.aecom.comTechnical Sales Sheet


 







Areas of Expertise
 − TRANSACTIONAL DUE DILIGENCE. Reliable cleanup 


cost estimates, early in the site redevelopment process, 
are critical to the site developer so they can build the 
project pro-forma, accounting for risks and identifying 
risk management solutions. AECOM through its use of 
RACERTM develops cost estimates using probabilistic 
techniques that quantify the uncertainty inherent in 
remedial action cost estimating.


 − SITE REUSE ANALYSIS. In the site redevelopment 
business, the projects you choose not to build are as 
important as the projects that you do build.  AECOM 
provides all the expertise to critically evaluate a wide-
array of site conditions and reuse scenarios considering 
traffic, permitting, geotechnical and the economics of 
the site redevelopment.


 − GRANT WRITING ASSISTANCE. Reduced liabilities 
under Federal and state programs are making traditional 
financing more readily available for Brownfields. Special 
arrangements such as tax increment financing, tax 
incentives, and grants are now available to jump-
start Brownfields redevelopment. AECOM’s experts 
leverage public funding by preparing successful grant 
applications helping projects move forward.


 − STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT. Community 
stakeholders can be concerned about the potential 
threats and impacts posed by a contaminated site. 
Active community involvement is often critical to 
a successful redevelopment project.  AECOM’s 
Community Relations Specialists identify key 
community issues and articulate realistic and 
understandable views of the potential risks or exposures 
and how they are being mitigated in a non-threatening 
manner helping develop community support for a 
project.


 − AGENCY NEGOTIATIONS. Agency approval of risk-
based cleanups that are adapted to the future use of 
the property are necessary to secure a successful 
Brownfields redevelopment project. AECOM serves 
as at technical project advocate in these discussions 
explaining how risks are effectively reduced and 
managed during the site redevelopment process.


 − SITE INVESTIGATION AND RISK ASSESSMENT. 
Comprehensive subsurface investigations are needed 
to define impacts input to the risk assessment and 
the development of remedial actions. AECOM uses 
the historical site information to focus on the most 
important areas of a site using state-of-the-art 
tools to define the migration pathways, exposure 
point concentrations, and receptors.  AECOM’s 
experienced Risk Assessors have a strong track record 
of successfully supporting regulatory discussions 
and stakeholder dialogues to communicate risks and 
determine appropriate cleanup goals.


 − REMEDIAL DESIGN. A cost-efficient cleanup is a 
necessary element of a Brownfield redevelopment 
project.  AECOM uses proven technologies, such as 
on-site and in-situ techniques, that substantially reduce 
cleanup costs and effectively manage risks. AECOM 
engineering projects follow our Engineering Design 
Manual ensuring that designs are prepared by qualified 
staff, follow prescribed procedures, and result in high-
quality deliverables that properly define the project to 
minimize change orders.


 − GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING. Geophysical 
investigations can be conducted in concert with 
environmental investigations enabling critical design 
issues to be resolved early in the project life-cycle.  
AECOM provides expert geotechnical engineering 
including earth support systems, foundation design, 
groundwater control and vibration analysis and 
mitigation design.


 − CIVIL/SITE ENGINEERING. Combining the site 
remediation and civil/site design work can save 
significant construction costs by reducing mobilizations 
and minimizing the handling of fill materials.  AECOM 
provides civil site and utility design services including 
surveying, mapping, and GIS important to the design of a 
new project.


 − CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT. The management 
of the remediation phase is a critical to controlling 
the project budget.  AECOM understands and 
proactively manages site work to control costs.  During 
implementation we serve as the owner representative 
measuring and assessing the progress of the work to 
assure implementation is completed on-time and on-
budget.


AECOM www.aecom.com


AECOM


Technical Sales Sheet


ENV_REM_SS_0029







Areas of Expertise
Site Development


 − Civil 3D Grading & Modeling
 − Utility Engineering
 − Storm & Sanitary Design
 − LEED Certified Sustainable Design
 − ADA compliance design
 − Municipal Engineering Services


Stormwater Management & Planning Services
 − Watershed planning
 − Ecosystem services
 − Green Infrastructure and low impact design
 − Water sensitive urban design
 − Financial strategies
 − TMDL planning
 − Flow Monitoring/CCTV Inspection


Landscape & Master Planning Services
 − Campus Master Planning
 − Streetscape Design
 − Park Planning & Design
 − Commercial Development
 − Grant Writing
 − Facilities Master Planning & Design
 − Urban Design
 − Recreational Facility Planning & Design


Environmental Services
 − Hydrologic & Hydraulic Analyses
 − Remediation Design & Implementation
 − Solid Waste Management
 − Stream Restoration
 − Dam & Reservoir Engineering
 − Permitting Support
 − Ecological Restoration
 − Brownfield Redevelopment Planning & Design


Geotechnical Services
 − Subsurface Investigation
 − Pavement Evaluation & Design
 − Pavement Subgrade Analysis
 − Retaining Wall Design
 − Foundation Design
 − Stability Analysis


Transportation Services
 − Highway & Roadway Design
 − Traffic Analysis & Design
 − Recreational Trail Planning & Design
 − Bridge Design & Inspection
 − Haul Road Design


More Information
1.978.905.2100
AskEnvironment@aecom.com


Civil Design Services


Overview
Site Development and Civil Engineering design elements are 
often the major driver for a project, or are critical ancillary 
components to a project.  Proper planning, permitting, 
layout and engineering design is crucial to the success of a 
project. Site and Civil Engineering services are fundamental 
to a wide variety of projects such as bridges, highways, 
commercial and industrial buildings, environmental 
remediation, water conveyance and treatment, hydropower, 
municipal engineering, and urban planning and design. 


AECOM is a premier provider of fully integrated, innovative, 
sustainable, cost effective planning and site development 
solutions.


Our Approach 
As a large design and engineering company, AECOM’s 
ability to integrate multi-disciplinary teams is exceptional. 
We collaborate across business lines, incorporating 
experienced and talented civil design engineers to 
provide the right personnel for each project. Our staff has 
multiple years of experience designing and permitting site 
improvements and civil features at solid waste, commercial, 
institutional, and industrial facilities. Whether we are 
providing civil engineering for a building project, sanitary 
sewer conveyance, or parking and access, AECOM can 
provide expert staff that will meet the project’s objectives.


As a full-service architecture and engineering company, 
we employ hundreds of architects, structural engineers, 
transportation engineers, environmental scientists/
engineers and cultural resources personnel to supplement 
our team of site/civil engineers and designers. This enables 
us to provide our clients with cost-effective, constructible 
solutions that integrate multidisciplinary considerations into 
planning and final design. 


www.aecom.comTechnical Sales Sheet


 







Key AECOM Attributes 
INDUSTRY KNOWLEDGE & TECHNICAL PRACTICE 
NETWORK (TPN). AECOM is a global leader in all our 
major markets. We understand the issues confronting our 
clients and maintain technical and project management 
leadership positions in the sectors we serve. We employ 
industry-leading experts specializing in a wide variety of 
technical areas. The TPN maintains learning and connective 
processes across our global offices bringing staff together 
along technical lines of interest. The network unlocks the 
combined potential of all of our people and supplies tools to 
enhance innovation, productivity and efficiency in creating 
technical successes, ultimately achieving solutions and 
saving our clients’ time and money.


INNOVATIVE & SUSTAINABLE DESIGN APPROACH. 
AECOM invests in innovative technologies and thought 
leadership to bring the most cost effective and best 
technical solutions to each project. We are recognized 
globally for our expertise in green building, sustainable 
infrastructure, energy, water, and waste management, 
renewable energy, and other sustainability fields. Our 
experience is built on a background of strong technical 
competence and knowledge, and we have a networked 
team of sustainability specialists throughout our global 
offices.


COMMITMENT TO SAFETY. Safety is a core value for 
AECOM. Our Safety, Health, and Environment Policy and 
guiding principles apply globally. We are committed to 
providing our employees with a safe and healthy work 
environment. AECOM is also committed to minimizing the 
liability concerns that our clients have regarding the safety 
performance of their contractors. To mitigate the unique 
health and safety concerns associated with work at capital 
development project sites, such as extreme remoteness, 
offshore conditions, wilderness, and hazards intrinsic to 
manufacturing projects, AECOM provides specialized 
training to our personnel serving this industry.


RISK ASSESSMENT. Our professional staff has extensive 
knowledge of local ecology, geology, climate, and 
demographics, allowing us to focus our risk assessments 
on site-specific circumstances. Our teams also have 
established relationships with local contacts and regulatory 
officials, which leads to rapid turnaround on regulatory 
approval and risk-management decisions. At the same time, 
we leverage our corporate-wide experience to tap into best 
practices and process improvements to effectively meet 
the needs of any project.


CLIENT FOCUS. AECOM helps clients meet their overall 
business goals such as resolving time-to-market issues, 
making effective transitions, reaching project closure, 
addressing climate/market change and emerging issues, 
and reducing costs. We invest in programs that produce 
greater client value, such as dedicated key account 
management to build enduring business relationships and 
streamline communications and costs. We are committed 
to maintaining thought leadership through academic 
partnerships, innovative research and development, and 
industry association collaboration. We promote employee 
training and development to ensure superior client service. 
We also invest in technology to ensure seamless and secure 
project communication, information access, technology 
transfer and application to client projects.


www.aecom.comTechnical Sales Sheet


ENV_REM_SS_0027







 − 3M
 − AEP
 − Akron Public Schools
 − Amtrak
 − Aqua Ohio
 − Arcelor Mittal
 − Ashland, Inc.
 − Bowling Green State University
 − Chesapeake Energy
 − City of Akron
 − City of Beachwood
 − City of Cleveland
 − City of Mayfield Heights
 − Cleveland Airport Systems (CAS)
 − Cleveland Clinic
 − Cleveland Museum of Natural History
 − Cuyahoga Community College
 − Cuyahoga County
 − Cuyahoga Valley National Park 
 − Duke Energy
 − Eaton Corporation
 − FirstEnergy
 − Flats East Bank
 − Geauga Park District
 − Greater Cleveland Rapid Transit Authority
 − Lakeland Community College
 − Lakewood City School District
 − Louisville Gas & Electric 
 − Mayfield Village
 − MetroHealth Systems
 − NASA
 − Niagara University
 − Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer District (NEORSD)


Midwest Presence and Key Clients


 − Ohio Schools Facilities Commission
 − Ohio Turnpike Commission
 − Ohio University
 − Tennessee Valley Authority
 − Sherwin Williams
 − Shell
 − Solid Water Authority of Central Ohio
 − Southern Ohio Medical Center
 − U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
 − United States Coast Guard
 − United States Environmental Protection Agency
 − United States General Services Administration
 − United States Postal Service
 − University of Akron
 − Vectren
 − Veolia


AECOM in Midwest


www.aecom.comTechnical Sales Sheet


 ENV_REM_SS_0027_CLIENTS







 


 
 


2830 Dairy Drive, Madison, WI 53718-6751 | 608-224-2830 | eFax 608-224-2839 


Environmental Consultants & Contractors 


August 7, 2020 
File No. 25164220.00 
 
 
Mr. Rodney Scheel 
City of Stoughton 
207 S. Forrest St. 
Stoughton, WI  53589  
 
Subject: Proposal for Site Investigation 
 Stoughton Public Works Garage 
 501 and 515 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 
 WDNR BRRTS #02-13-585835 
 
Dear Mr. Scheel: 


SCS Engineers (SCS) is pleased to submit the following proposal for a Wisconsin Administrative 
Code, Chapter NR 716 Site Investigation for the above-noted Property. SCS understands that the 
Property is slated for redevelopment in the near future, and that additional investigation of soil and 
groundwater contamination identified at the site is needed prior to redevelopment. 


The purpose of the investigation is to evaluate the degree and extent of contamination related to 
historical site use, including the former presence of a manufactured gas plant and crude oil 
underground storage tanks.  


Our proposed scope of services is based on SCS’s conversations with the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (WDNR) project manager for the site. The areas of focus for additional 
investigation include further delineation of contamination identified in a recent Phase 2 
Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) and an evaluation of the soil vapor exposure pathway. 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 
SCS will perform the following tasks: 


Task 1 – Work Plan Development and Submittal 
• Communicate with WDNR and the City of Stoughton. 


• Develop a Work Plan to assess the degree and extent of contamination identified in a 
May 2020 Phase 2 ESA. The Work Plan will include: 


– A summary of the site history and Phase 2 ESA findings. 


– The number and approximate locations of soil samples to be collected using a 
Geoprobe™ drill rig and analyzed for volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and 
polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs). 


– The number and approximate locations of monitoring wells to be installed at the site 
and sampled for VOCs and PAHs. 







Mr. Rodney Scheel 
August 7, 2020 
Page 2 


 


– A proposed timeline for the work. 


• Submit the Work Plan to WDNR for review. 


Task 2 – Soil and Groundwater Investigation 
SCS will perform the following scope of work to evaluate soil and groundwater.  


• Clear public and private utilities prior to conducting field work. Public utilities will be 
cleared through Digger’s Hotline. A private utility locating firm will be contracted to clear 
private utilities, if needed.  


• Advance 10 soil borings to 15 to 20 feet below ground surface (bgs), continuously log soil 
according to the unified soil classification system, screen soil using a photo-ionization 
detector (PID), and evaluate soil for visual signs of fill or contamination. 


• Collect soil samples from each boring based on PID readings and visual observations for 
laboratory analysis of VOCs and PAHs. Up to one sample per boring will be collected for 
VOCs and up to two samples per boring will be collected for PAHs. 


• Submit one soil sample for additional laboratory analysis of total metals (arsenic, barium, 
cadmium, total chromium, lead, mercury, and selenium) and polychlorinated biphenyls 
(PCBs) for landfill profiling of soil cuttings. 


• Contain soil cuttings exhibiting elevated PID readings and/or visual signs of fill or 
contamination in drums for landfill disposal. We assume that a location is available for 
drum storage on site while disposal is arranged. 


• Coordinate disposal of drummed soil cuttings, to include submitting a landfill profile and 
arranging transport to the landfill. 


• Convert five of the above-noted borings to NR 141 2-inch PVC monitoring wells and 
survey top of casing elevations.  


• Develop and sample each well for VOCs and PAHs (one round of sampling). Groundwater 
metals samples are not included in this proposed scope of work based on the Phase 2 
ESA conclusion that groundwater pathway exceedances for metals in soil are not a 
concern at the site.  


• Contain and dispose of groundwater generated during well development and sampling. 
We assume the Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District will approve the water for 
discharge.  


• Abandon all borings not converted to monitoring wells, per NR 141.  


• Properly preserve and transport soil and groundwater samples under chain of custody to 
state-certified laboratory for analysis. 







Mr. Rodney Scheel 
August 7, 2020 
Page 3 


 


Task 3 – Site Investigation Report Preparation 
SCS will prepare a Site Investigation Report (SIR) to include: 


• Summary of field investigation methods and findings. 
• Map showing sample locations. 
• Geologic cross section. 
• Tabulated analytical results with relevant regulatory standards. 
• Laboratory reports. 
• Soil boring logs, monitoring well construction forms, and borehole abandonment forms.  
• Initial evaluation of remedial options. 


Assumptions 
• An SCS field geologist will be on site for two days to observe and document drilling 


activities and collect soil samples, one day to develop and survey the monitoring wells, 
and one day to measure water levels and collect groundwater samples from the wells. 


• Sample locations are accessible using standard drilling equipment.  


• Groundwater is present within 20 feet of ground surface.  


• Samples will be reported on a standard 10-day laboratory reporting schedule. 


• Additional sampling may be necessary depending on findings. Costs do not include Case 
Closure reporting. 


• The City of Stoughton will pay any regulatory fees, if applicable. 


PROJECT TEAM 
Key SCS team members for the project, their roles, and their qualifications and experience are 
provided below.   


Ray Tierney, PG, Project Director – Ray Tierney will provide overall project direction and quality 
assurance. Ray is a hydrogeologist with over 30 years of experience managing and directing diverse 
site investigation, remediation, and redevelopment projects. 


Robert Langdon, Project Manager – Robert Langdon will serve as the day-to-day project manager, 
communication with the project team and WDNR, coordinating field work, and overseeing data 
evaluation and reporting. Robert has over 25 years of experience in the environmental field, 
including drilling oversight, groundwater monitoring well installation, and groundwater sampling. 


Meghan Blodgett, PG, Senior Project Professional – Meghan Blodgett will coordinate field and 
reporting activities and assist with WDNR communications, data evaluation, and reporting. Meghan 
has over 9 years of experience in the environmental field, including drilling oversight, soil and 
groundwater sampling, and remedial excavation oversight at brownfield redevelopment sites. 







Mr. Rodney Scheel 
August 7, 2020 
Page 4 


 


Jaclyn Rennebohm, Staff Professional – Jaclyn Rennebohm will coordinate with subcontractors; 
review data; prepare reports; and help oversee drilling/well installation, surveying, sampling, and 
hydraulic testing, as needed. Jaclyn has over 5 years of experience that includes groundwater 
monitoring; monitoring well construction, development, and abandonment; remedial excavation 
oversight; and coordination with owner, contractor, and regulatory agencies. 


Adam Watson, Field Professional – Adam Watson will serve as the lead field professional, overseeing 
drilling/well installation, sampling, surveying, and hydraulic testing. Adam has over 3 years of 
experience in the geoscience field, including bedrock and soil drilling oversight; groundwater 
monitoring; and monitoring well construction, development, and abandonment. 


ESTIMATED COST 
Our estimated cost is detailed in the table below. 


Task  Cost 
1 Work Plan Development and Submittal* $2,600 
2 Field Investigation  
 SCS Project Coordination $1,700 
 SCS Field Supervision and Sampling $5,800 
 Geoprobe and Utility Locate Subcontractors $7,800 
 Laboratory Subcontractor $3,100 
 Soil Cuttings Disposal $1,400 


3 Site Investigation Report Preparation* $6,300 
 Total $28,700 


* Cost does not include WDNR fees of $700 for Work Plan review and written response and 
$1,050 Site Investigation Report review. Requesting a written response to the Work Plan 
from WDNR is not required but is helpful in confirming that the WDNR project manager 
concurs with the site investigation scope. 


These are estimated costs only. Actual costs will depend on conditions encountered in the field, 
actual hours worked, and final subcontractor costs. 


Final billings will be based upon actual time and materials used extended at the quoted fee rates in 
the Fee Schedule. Final billings will not exceed the cost estimate without prior written approval. The 
scope of services will not change from that outlined in this proposal without your prior authorization. 


If the proposal is acceptable to you, please sign and return the agreement to us by email 
(rlangdon@scsengineers.com) or fax (608-224-2839). Please contact me at 608-212-3995 if you 
have any questions or comments concerning our proposal and Agreement. 


Sincerely,   


   
Meghan Blodgett, PG  Robert Langdon 
Hydrogeologist  Senior Project Manager 
SCS Engineers  SCS Engineers  







Mr. Rodney Scheel 
August 7, 2020 
Page 5 


 


MDB/jsn/REL/RT 


Encl. Agreement for Professional Services 
 Fee Schedule 


P:\2020\25164220\200807_Scheel_Stoughton Public Works Garage_prp.docx







 


 
 


2830 Dairy Drive, Madison, WI 53718-6751 | 608-224-2830 | eFax 608-224-2839 


Environmental Consultants & Contractors 


SCS Engineers File No.: 25164220 
 


AGREEMENT BETWEEN SCS ENGINEERS AND CLIENT 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


August 7, 2020 
THIS AGREEMENT (hereafter “Agreement”) is made by and between the City of Stoughton (hereafter 
“Client”), and Stearns, Conrad and Schmidt, Consulting Engineers, Inc. dba SCS Engineers (hereafter 
“SCS”). 


WITNESSETH 


That for the considerations set forth below, the parties agree as follows: 


1. Scope of Services:  SCS shall provide professional services (hereafter “Services”) for 
the project (hereafter “Project”) as set forth in the attached Scope of Services dated August 7, 2020, 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 


2. Basis of Compensation:   


SCS will be compensated for time and expenses in accordance with SCS’ standard 
rates in effect at the time of performance, provided that total compensation will not exceed $28,700 
without the authorization of Client.   


3. General Conditions:  


a. Payments for invoices prepared by SCS are due and payable upon receipt. 
Payments due SCS under this Agreement shall be subject to a service charge of one and one-half 
(1-1/2) percent per month for invoices not paid within thirty (30) days after the date of receipt of 
invoice. 


b. Client agrees to pay all costs and expenses of SCS, including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees, arising out of or in connection with collecting amounts for which Client is responsible pursuant 
to this Agreement. 


c. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 15 days’ written notice to 
the other party. Upon termination, SCS shall be paid for all Services rendered to the date of termination 
together with any termination expenses incurred. 


d. Any work in addition to that described in Article 1 above performed at the request 
of the Client shall be compensated on a time-and-materials basis at the rates contained in SCS’s 
Standard Fee Schedule in effect at the time of performance of the Services. Unless expressly stated 
therein, the scope of work does not include testimony or responding to subpoenas or other legal orders 
requiring production of records or testimony. In the event SCS receives a subpoena or other legal order 
for the production of project records or testimony related to the Scope of Service or other work for 
Client, SCS will be compensated by client at current Fee Schedule rates. 







Agreement 
August 7, 2020 


 


e. The parties hereto shall each maintain in full force and effect Commercial General 
Liability insurance with coverage limits which are reasonable in light of the Services to be undertaken, 
and Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by law. 


f. All reports, drawings, renderings, source and object code, software, data and other 
works and documents prepared by SCS under this Agreement, and all intellectual property rights in 
the same, shall be owned exclusively by SCS. 


g. Neither party shall delegate its duties under this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other party. Each party binds itself to the successors, administrators and assigns of the 
other party in respect of all covenants of this Agreement. 


h. The parties agree that the total liability of SCS under this Agreement and for the 
Project shall be limited to Fifty-Thousand Dollars ($50,000) or the amount of SCS’s total fees 
hereunder (whichever is greater), unless Client pays for the assumption of additional liability by SCS 
as a separate line item in Article 2 above. 


i. Unless otherwise expressly stated in the Scope of Services, SCS shall have no 
responsibility for site health and safety, except with respect to the activities of SCS and its 
subcontractors. In no event shall SCS be responsible for the means, methods or manner of 
performance of any persons other than SCS and SCS’s subcontractors. 


j. Client agrees that SCS will not be responsible for liability caused by the presence 
or release of hazardous substances or contaminants at the site, unless the release results from the 
sole negligence of SCS or its subcontractors. The Client will make others responsible for liabilities due 
to such conditions, or will indemnify, defend and save harmless SCS from such liabilities. At no time 
shall title to hazardous substances, solid wastes, petroleum contaminated soil or other regulated 
substances pass to SCS, nor shall any provision of this Agreement be interpreted to permit or obligate 
SCS to assume the status of a "generator," "owner," "operator," "transporter," “arranger” or "treatment, 
storage or disposal facility" under state or federal law. The provisions of this Article 3j shall survive any 
termination of this Agreement.  


k. SCS shall be entitled to rely on information provided by Client. SCS shall be entitled 
to an equitable adjustment in the price and schedule if conditions differ materially from information 
provided by Client, or differ from what could reasonably be anticipated given the nature of the Services. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized representatives as of the last date written below. 


SCS ENGINEERS CLIENT: City of Stoughton 


BY:  BY:    
NAME: Ray Tierney, PG NAME:  
TITLE: Vice President TITLE:  
DATE: August 7, 2020 DATE:  


 
P:\2020\25164220\200807_Scheel_Stoughton Public Works Garage_prp.docx







 


 
 


2830 Dairy Drive, Madison, WI 53718-6751 | 608-224-2830 | eFax 608-224-2839 


Environmental Consultants & Contractors 


Fee Schedule 


Personnel 
Category Rate/Hour 
Project Director/Senior Project Adviser .............................................................................................. $ 206 
Senior Project Manager/Senior Technical Adviser ............................................................. $ 163 – $ 183 
Project Manager/Senior Project Professional ..................................................................... $ 129 – $ 150  
Project Professional ............................................................................................................................. $ 119 
Staff Professional ................................................................................................................................. $ 114 
Associate Professional ......................................................................................................................... $ 108 
Field Professional ................................................................................................................................. $ 108 
Senior Designer/CAD Technician ........................................................................................................ $ 108 
Senior Technician................................................................................................................................... $ 98 
Project Administrator ............................................................................................................................. $ 93 
Designer/CAD Technician ...................................................................................................................... $ 90 
Technician .............................................................................................................................................. $ 74 
Administrative Assistant ........................................................................................................................ $ 74 


Equipment and Expenses 
Groundwater Monitoring 


Brass Well Locks ................................. $ 17/each 
Chipped Bentonite ................................. $ 12/bag 
Dedicated Bailers ................................ $ 65/each 
Disposable Bailers ............................... $ 15/each 
Dissolved Oxygen Meter .........................$ 40/day 
Field Filtering Apparatus ........................$ 22/day 
Field Filters .......................................... $ 16/each 
Ice .............................................................$ 7/bag 
Low-flow Sampling Compressor/ 
Controller ................................................ $50/day 
Petroleum Product Interface Probe .......$ 70/day 
pH Meter .................................................$ 20/day 
pH, Conductivity, Temp, TDS Meter .......$ 20/day 
Pressure Trans. / Data Logger ............ $ 125/day 
Water Level Indicator .............................$ 30/day 
Well Caps ........................................ $ 18.25/each 


Pumps 
2” Gas Engine Pump ..............................$ 45/day 
Explosion Proof Pump ......................... $ 100/day 
Peristaltic Pump .....................................$ 30/day 
Submersible Pump .............................. $ 100/day 
Sump Pump ............................................$ 15/day 
Well Development Pump ........................$ 30/day 


PPE and Air and Gas Monitoring 
Air Monitoring Detector Tubes ............. $ 15/each 
Four Gas Meter ...................................... $ 65/day 
Landfill Gas Meter................................ $ 100/day 
Level D PPE .............................................. $ 5/day 
Modified Level D PPE ............................. $ 15/day 
Personal Air Sampling Pump ................. $ 30/day 
Respirator Cartridges ............................. $ 35/pair 
Tyvek Suit ............................................. $ 20/each 


Soil Sampling and Testing 
Concrete Air/Slump ............................. $ 30/each 
Concrete Core Drill ............................... $ 120/day 
Concrete Cylinder Mold.......................... $ 3/each 
FID/PID Rental ....................................... $ 85/day 
Hand Auger Kit ....................................... $ 30/day 
Nuclear Density Gauge ........................ $ 125/day 
Soil Scale................................................ $ 25/day 
Stainless Vapor Pin Cap ...................... $ 30/each 
Vapor Pins  ........................................... $ 60/each 
Vapor Sampling Kit ................................ $ 25/day 


Surveying 
¾-inch Irons ........................................... $ 4/each 
GPS Unit/Total Station  .......................... $ 50/day 
Level/Laser Level.................................... $ 5/hour 


Marking Paint ......................................... $ 5/each 
Survey Hubs ..................................... $ 0.60/each 
Survey Lath ....................................... $ 0.75/each 


Miscellaneous 
55-Gallon Drums .................................. $ 65/each 
Air Compressor ....................................... $ 40/day 
Copies ............................................... $ 0.07/each 
Curlex Blanket ...................................... $ 65/each 
Curlex Staples ........................................ $ 10/box 
Digital Camera ........................................ $ 10/day 
Dump Trailer ......................................... $ 175/day 
Hard Boom (10”) ................................ $ 1.80/foot 
Metal Detector........................................ $ 35/day 
Oil Absorbent Boom (5” x 10’) ............. $ 70/each 
Oil Absorbent Boom (8” x 10’) ............. $ 90/each 
Oil Absorbent Pad ............................. $ 1.00/each 
Oil Dry Absorbent ...................................... $ 8/bag 
Orange Safety Fence ...............................$ 40/roll 
Plastic Sheeting (20’ x 100’) ..................$ 80/roll 
Portable Generator ................................. $ 45/day 
Spill Response Trailer .......................... $ 200/day 
Utility Trailer............................................ $ 40/day 
Vehicle ............................................. $ 0.575/mile 
Water Storage Tank ............................... $ 75/day 


Equipment and expense rates may be modified by SCS Engineers from time to time as new equipment is 
added or costs change. Client will be notified prior to any change in the personnel rates that will affect the 
project billings. 


Outside services contracted through SCS Engineers will be billed at cost plus 10 percent. Outside services may 
include, but are not limited to, laboratory testing, drilling, or other subcontracted services. 


P:\2020\25164220\200807_Scheel_Stoughton Public Works Garage_prp.docx Revised 7/1/2020 







105887 Stoughton Garage Proposal.docx 


5325 Wal l  St reet   Su i te 2355    Madison,  Wisconsin   53718   608 442-5223 


 www.shannonwilson.com  


August 12, 2020 


Mr. Rodney J. Scheel – Director of Planning & Development 


City of Stoughton 


Stoughton City Hall 


207 S. Forrest Street 


Stoughton, Wisconsin  53589 


rjscheels@ci.stoughton.wi.us   


RE: PROPOSAL FOR ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING AND SITE INVESTIGATION 


/REMEDIATION SERVICES FOR THE FORMER STOUGHTON PUBLIC WORKS 


GARAGE PROPERTY – 501 & 515 SOUTH 4TH ST; WDNR BRRTS NO # 02-13-


585835 


Dear Mr. Scheel: 


Shannon & Wilson (S&W) is pleased to submit this proposal for environmental consulting and site  


investigation/remediation services for the former Stoughton Public Works garage located at 501 & 


515 South 4th Street in Stoughton, Wisconsin (garage or property).  This proposal will provide a 


brief discussion of S&W’s understanding of the property background conditions as well as the 


Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNRs) expectation of any site investigation 


activities needed to delineate the nature and extent of soil and groundwater contamination at the 


property.   


A project scope of work, schedule, and project cost estimate will also be included as specific items 


that will be addressed in this proposal document.    Sections of this proposal are prepared in 


accordance with relevant chapters of the Wisconsin Administrative Code (Wis. Admin. Code) for 


site investigation and appropriate response actions as promulgated by the Wisconsin Department 


of Natural Resources (WDNR).   


BACKGROUND 


A brief discussion of the historical property use, recent site investigative activities completed to 


date, as well as the proposed property development are provided in the following sections. 


Historical Property Use 


According to an AECOM Phase II Environmental Site Assessment (Phase II ESA), the former 


Stoughton Public Works Garage property has a number of historical uses including: 


• Manufactured gas plant site (1912-1949);



http://www.shannonwilson.com/

mailto:rjscheels@ci.stoughton.wi.us





Mr. Rodney J. Scheel – Director of Planning & Development  
City of Stoughton 
August 12, 2020  
Page 2 of 9 


105887 Stoughton Garage Proposal.docx 105887-P 


• Automobile service and repair facility (1926); 


• Hydro-electric power plant.  


While not considered “property use” an electrical transformer substation as well as documented 


use and storage of petroleum products were also identified in the AECOM Phase II Report. 


Not identified in the AECOM report was the duration of the use of the property by the City of 


Stoughton as a public works garage. 


Recent Site Investigation Activities 


Vierbicher Associates, Inc (Vierbicher) completed a Phase I ESA for the property in March of 2015.  


Recognized Environmental Conditions (RECs) identified by Vierbicher include: 


• Former automobile sales and service; 


• Former waste oil storage container; 


• Former Manufactured Gas Plant (MGP) site; 


• Former electric transformer locations; 


• Former crude oil underground storage tanks (USTs); 


• Surface staining (suspected to be petroleum product); and 


• Historic hydroelectric power plant location. 


The AECOM Phase II ESA was completed based on the results of the Vierbicher Phase I ESA.  


According to the AECOM Phase II ESA report: 


• Non-native fill material was identified in a number of soil borings completed at the 


property; 


• Polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) were identified at concentrations above WDNR 


residual contaminant levels (RCLs) protective of human health and groundwater quality in 


a number of soil borings at the property; 


• Lead and arsenic were detected at concentrations that exceeded WDNR RCLs protective of 


groundwater quality as well as background threshold values (BTVs) at soil borings 


completed at the property; 


• PCBS were not detected in soil samples collected; 


• Lead and PAH concentrations in soil may be indicative of general automobile service/repair 


activities; 


• Soil impacts exist in the vicinity of the former MGP gas holder as well as crude oil USTs; 


• Trichloroethene, tetrachloroethene, and naphthalene were detected in groundwater samples 


above WDNR regulatory limits in the southeast corner of the property adjacent to the 


Yahara River. 







Mr. Rodney J. Scheel – Director of Planning & Development  
City of Stoughton 
August 12, 2020  
Page 3 of 9 


105887 Stoughton Garage Proposal.docx 105887-P 


• No specific source for TCE/PCE was identified in the Phase II ESA. 


Future Property Development 


Based on conversations with Mr. Curt Brink the property developer and the site conceptual design 


provided by your office, the property is a planned for residential development.  As such, any soil 


remediation plan would need to achieve non-industrial RCLs that are protective of human health.  


In addition, the potential for organic vapors accumulating in living spaces is also a consideration 


that may need to be accounted for based on the results of the final environmental site investigation 


activities.  


S&W has previous experience providing environmental consulting and site remediation services to 


Mr. Brink for his Archipelago Village redevelopment of the former Mautz paint facility in Madison, 


Wisconsin.  This site is an active redevelopment that combines a hotel/restaurant, office space for a 


state government agency, and parking for tenants and guests over subsurface impacted with paint 


related compounds. 


WDNR SITE EXPECTATIONS 


In order to better define the scope of work on the property, S&W contacted Mr. Jeff Ackerman, the 


WDNR Project Manager for this site.  The discussion with Mr. Ackerman focused on the following 


key issues and Phase I ESA data gaps that need further clarification: 


• Define the horizontal and vertical extent of PAHs in the fill material; 


• Investigate the extent of fuel/crude oil impacts to soil and groundwater southeast of the 


railroad tracks on the property; 


• Identify the source and delineate the extent of naphthalene in soil and groundwater; and 


• Determine if the TCE/PCE concentrations in groundwater are a random isolated occurrence 


or part of a larger chlorinated solvent plume. 


 


Less obvious but still significant were the photoionization detector (PID) measurements for each of 


the soil boring logs recorded and presented in Table 2 of the Phase II ESA report.  PID are calibrated 


to measure volatile organic compounds recorded in parts per million instrument units.  The 


occurrence of concentrations of volatile organic compounds detected with the PID in borings at 


depth are not consistent with the results of the volatile organic chemical analysis.  The source of 


these fugitive organic vapors may also need to be a consideration for further investigation. 







Mr. Rodney J. Scheel – Director of Planning & Development  
City of Stoughton 
August 12, 2020  
Page 4 of 9 


105887 Stoughton Garage Proposal.docx 105887-P 


SCOPE OF WORK 


The scope of work is based on the required steps and documents outlined in the WDNR’s 


notification letter to the City of Stoughton dated July 14, 2020.  According to the Phase II ESA 


report, immediate action is not required to address the impacts to soil and groundwater at the 


property.  As such, the following items will constitute the Scope of Work for the property. 


Work Plan Submittal 


S&W will create a work plan based on the requirements contained in chapter NR 700 of the Wis. 


Admin. Code The work plan will address the data gaps and key issues discussed with Mr. 


Ackerman as well as an assessment of vapor intrusion pathway.  It will include the means and 


methods of the site investigation as required in chapter 716 of the Wis. Admin. Code as well as the 


rationale for the location of the additional soil borings and groundwater monitoring well sample 


locations. 


Based on S&W’s conversation with Mr. Ackerman of the WDNR, the work plan will consist of the 


following investigative tasks: 


• Completion of 30-direct push soil borings on 30-ft centers to 15-feet below land surface (ft 


bls) in the SE corner of the property near the railroad tracks to investigate the extent of the 


fuel/crude oil tanks as well as identify the source of naphthalene in soil in that area. 


• Completion of 16 direct push soil borings in the northern portion of the property at 60-ft 


centers to define the extent of PAHS in the urban fill material. 


• Construction of three water table monitoring wells and 1 piezometer to evaluate the 


groundwater flow patterns, evaluate if groundwater is impacted by a fluctuating water 


table, and to determine if the TCE/PCE detected in groundwater is a random occurrence or 


part of a larger contaminant plume. 


Rationale for the number of borings is based on the need to define the extent of any potentially 


impacted soil that would be excavated for building construction. Typically, the WDNR would 


require a soil management or materials management plan to ensure that impacted soil/fill materials 


are properly managed (e.g. used on site as clean fill or properly disposed of at a licensed facility). 


Soil and groundwater samples will be collected and submitted for chemical analysis of volatile 


organic compounds (VOCs), polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs), and Resource 


Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) metals.  







Mr. Rodney J. Scheel – Director of Planning & Development  
City of Stoughton 
August 12, 2020  
Page 5 of 9 


105887 Stoughton Garage Proposal.docx 105887-P 


Field Investigation -Work Plan Implementation 


Once approved, S&W will carry out the additional investigative tasks as described in the project 


work plan.  Field activities typically consist of completion of investigative soil borings and 


groundwater monitoring wells to refine the characterization of the physical subsurface soil and 


groundwater features as well as the collection and chemical analysis of soil and groundwater 


samples to delineate the nature and extent of soil and groundwater contamination. 


Notification and Reporting 


By administrative law, environmental sample results must be reported within 10-days of receiving 


the sample results to the appropriate parties including the WDNR.  At a minimum, S&W will 


provide the sample result notification to the WDNR.  Additional parties to be notified will be 


discussed with the City of Stoughton. 


S&W will also complete a site investigation report in accordance with chapter NR 716 of the Wis. 


Admin. Code.  As required, the report will include the documentation of all observations made in 


the field as well as the results of the soil, groundwater and any other media submitted for chemical 


analysis.  The report will present the findings of the investigation and recommendations for any 


corrective actions (if needed) or continuing obligations. 


S&W will also prepare and submit the semi-annual reports for the property as needed until the 


WDNR grants final closure for the site.   


Remedial Actions Options Report 


If needed, S&W will prepare a Remedial Action Options Report (RAOR) that will evaluate a 


number of remedies for any contaminated soil, groundwater or other media in excess of WDNR 


regulatory standards.  An evaluation of remedial alternatives will be addressed on an as needed 


basis.  As such, costs for this task are not included in this initial proposal. 


Case Closure Form Submittal 


As a goal for all environmental site investigations, S&W will prepare and submit a Case Closure 


Form (4400-202) to the WDNR for the property.  The details of the case closure document are based 


on site-specific information collected during the additional site investigation activities as well as the 


continuing conversation with the WDNR Project Manager.  As such, the full scope of work and 


costs for this task are yet to be determined. 







Mr. Rodney J. Scheel – Director of Planning & Development  
City of Stoughton 
August 12, 2020  
Page 6 of 9 


105887 Stoughton Garage Proposal.docx 105887-P 


SCHEDULE 


S&W has prepared a draft schedule based on the WNDR requirements provided in the Wis. Admin 


Code.  The schedule is based on the date of the notification letter and is subject to change pending 


WDNR approval.  Due dates proposed after the field investigation as the extent of the investigation 


has not yet been determined or approved by the WDNR. 


 


Item Duration Initial/Due Date 


WDNR Notification 0-days July 14, 2020 


Work plan submittal 60-days from notification September 14, 2020 


Field investigation  90-days from work plan submittal December 14, 2020 


Semi-Annual Reporting Every 6-months January/July 2020 


Sample results notification 10-days from receipt of data January 2, 2020 


Site Investigation Report (SIR) 60-days after field work complete March 14, 2020 


Remedial Actions Options Report 60-days after submitting SIR May 14, 2020 


Case Closure Form Submittal TBD TBD 


ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS 


S&W’s estimated project cost for work plan development and  negotiation with WDNR regulatory 


staff is $5,600.  Estimated costs for Field Investigation activities, Site Investigation Report will be 


provided once there is a WDNR approved work plan in place.  The table below presents average 


costs that are typically associated with each task.  Again, these costs will be adjusted based on the 


WDNR approved work plan in place. 


S&W will solicit three competitive bids for these commodity services prior to finalizing the overall 


project costs.  All bidding documents and contractor selection criteria will be presented to the City 


of Stoughton prior to authorizing and subcontracted services.  As discussed, costs associated with 


the RAOR and the Case Closure Form submittal are site-specific and are yet to be determined as the 


extent of impacts to soil, groundwater or other media have not been fully determined.  







Mr. Rodney J. Scheel – Director of Planning & Development  
City of Stoughton 
August 12, 2020  
Page 7 of 9 


105887 Stoughton Garage Proposal.docx 105887-P 


S&W Estimated Project Costs 


Task 1 Workplan Development/Regulatory Correspondence  $5,600.00 


Task 2 Field Investigation (Workplan implementation) (1)   $15,960.00  


Task 3 Site Investigation Report (1)      $12,290.00 


Chemical Analytical Laboratory (2)             $25,000 - $27,000  


 105 soil samples for VOCs/PAHs/RCRA Metals 


 10 groundwater samples for VOCs/PAHs/Metals    


Environmental Drilling Contractor (2)          $15,000 - $19,000 


 46 Direct push soil borings to 15-ft bls 


 Installation of 3 groundwater monitoring wells and 1 piezometer 


(1) Final cost to be determined based on WDNR approved work plan 


(2) Estimated commodity items; competitive bids to be obtained 


WDNR FEES 


The WDNR assesses fees for their review of documents and also for providing technical assistance 


during the site investigation/remediation/site closure process.  Examples of some of the WDNR fees 


that would apply to this project include: 


• Review of Site Investigation Work Plan - $700; 


• Review of Site Investigation Report - $1,050; 


• Review of Remedial Action Options Report - $1,050; 


• Schedule a Technical Assistance Meeting - $700;  


• Post-Closure Modifications; $1,050. 


The WDNR Fees listed above is not all-inclusive.  For a complete list of the WDNR Remediation & 


Redevelopment (R&R) program services and fees, please review the WDNR’s website. 


BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT FUNDING 


As we discussed, S&W can assist the City of Stoughton and their developer apply for various 


brownfield redevelopment and shoreline restoration grants.  These are available through the EPA 


via the WDNR as well as from the US Army Corps of Engineering (shoreline and water-way 


restoration grants).  The extent and costs associated with S&W’s grant writing and financial aid 


assistance to the City of Stoughton are not hard-wired into this proposal document and can be 


discussed at the convenience of the appropriate city department  







Mr. Rodney J. Scheel – Director of Planning & Development  
City of Stoughton 
August 12, 2020  
Page 8 of 9 


105887 Stoughton Garage Proposal.docx 105887-P 


CONTRACT AGREEMENT 


The approach, scope of work, schedule, and price contained in this proposal are subject to the 


Shannon & Wilson Standard Terms and Conditions, which are attached to and incorporated into this 


proposal. 


OUR SERVICE PROMISE TO YOU 


S&W is dedicated to helping your project succeed and to making your experience with us a positive 


one.  Our hope is that, if you enjoy working with us on this project, you will use our services on 


your next project!  To that end, we want you to be completely satisfied with our performance, our 


personnel, and our project documentation.  If you feel that we are not delivering on our promise of 


quality service, we encourage you to take your concerns straight to me, the Madison Office 


Manager.  My direct number is (314) 564-8139.  Your project is important to us and we want to 


deliver our services to your full satisfaction. 


If you have questions regarding this proposal or desire to modify the scope of work, please contact 


me at 314-564-8139 or mxr@shanwil.com. 


If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign in the space provided below and return one 


signed copy of this letter, which will serve as your authorization to proceed with the stated work.  


We appreciate your confidence in Shannon & Wilson. 


Sincerely, 


SHANNON & WILSON 


 


Mark A. Rutkowski, P.G 


Senior Associate/Office Manager 


MXR 


Enc. Standard General Terms and Conditions (All Purpose) 


   







Mr. Rodney J. Scheel – Director of Planning & Development  
City of Stoughton 
August 12, 2020  
Page 9 of 9 


105887 Stoughton Garage Proposal.docx 105887-P 


I accept the above proposal and authorize the stated work to proceed. 


 


 


_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 


Signature      Date 


 


_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 


Name (Printed or Typed)   Organization 


 


_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 


Title       E-mail Address 


 


 


Direct Correspondence to   Please Direct Billings to 


 


 


_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 


Attention      Attention 


 


____________________________________ ____________________________________ 


Organization     Organization 


 


____________________________________ ____________________________________ 


Address      Address 


 


____________________________________ ____________________________________ 


City, State, & Zip    City, State, & Zip 


 


____________________________________ ____________________________________ 


E-mail Address    Billing Reference 


      (Project Name, PO, or other identification) 


 


 


 


 


 







 


(1/2015) Page 1 of 6 


 


SHANNON & WILSON, INC.  
                                    Geotechnical and Environmental Consultants 


    


    


 


Attachment to and part of our Proposal: 105887 Stoughton 


Garage 


 
August 12, 2020 


Date: 


 
Mr. Rodney J. Scheel 


To: 


 
Former Stoughton Public Works Garage 


Re: 


STANDARD GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS (ALL PURPOSE) 
ARTICLE 1 – SERVICES OF SHANNON & WILSON 


Shannon & Wilson’s scope of work (Work) shall be limited to those services expressly set forth in its Proposal and is subject to the terms and conditions set 


forth herein. 


Shannon & Wilson shall procure and maintain all business and professional licenses and registrations necessary to provide its services.  Upon Client’s request 


(and for additional compensation, if not already included in Shannon & Wilson’s Proposal), Shannon & Wilson shall assist Client in attempting to obtain, or on 


behalf of Client and in Client’s name attempt to obtain, those permits and approvals required for the project for which Shannon & Wilson’s services are being 


rendered.   


Client acknowledges, depending on field conditions encountered and subsurface conditions discovered, the number and location of borings, the number and 


type of field and laboratory tests, and other similar items, as deemed necessary by Shannon & Wilson in the exercise of due care, may need to be increased or 


decreased; if such modifications are approved by Client, Shannon & Wilson’s compensation and schedule shall be equitably adjusted.  


If conditions actually encountered at the project site differ materially from those represented by Client and/or shown or indicated in the contract documents, or 


are of an unusual nature which materially differ from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent for the locality and character of the 


services provided for in Shannon & Wilson’s scope of work, Shannon & Wilson’s compensation and schedule shall be equitably adjusted. 


Without increasing the scope of work, price, or schedule contained in Shannon & Wilson’s Proposal, Shannon & Wilson may employ such subcontractors as 


Shannon & Wilson deems necessary to assist in furnishing its services. 


If Shannon & Wilson’s scope of work is increased or decreased by Client, Shannon & Wilson’s compensation and schedule shall be equitably adjusted. 


ARTICLE 2 – TIMES FOR RENDERING SERVICES 


Shannon & Wilson shall perform its services in accordance with the schedule set forth in its Proposal. 


If Shannon & Wilson’s Proposal sets forth specific periods of time for rendering services, or specific dates by which services are to be completed, and such 


periods of time or dates are extended or delayed through no fault of Shannon & Wilson, Shannon & Wilson’s compensation and schedule shall be equitably 


adjusted.   


If Shannon & Wilson’s schedule is increased or decreased by Client, Shannon & Wilson’s compensation shall be equitably adjusted. 


ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENTS TO SHANNON & WILSON 


Invoices shall be prepared in accordance with Shannon & Wilson’s standard invoicing practices and shall be submitted to Client by Shannon & Wilson monthly.  


The amount billed in each invoice shall be calculated as set forth in Shannon & Wilson’s Proposal. 


Unless Shannon & Wilson’s Proposal contains a fixed lump-sum price, Shannon & Wilson’s actual fees may exceed the estimate contained in its Proposal.  


Shannon & Wilson shall not exceed the estimate contained in its Proposal by more than ten percent (10%) without the prior written consent of Client; provided 


however, unless the Client authorizes additional funds in excess of the estimate contained in Shannon & Wilson’s Proposal, Shannon & Wilson shall have no 


obligation to continue work on the project.  


Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.  If Client fails to pay Shannon & Wilson’s invoice within 30 days after receipt, the amounts due Shannon 


& Wilson shall accrue interest at the rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month (or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) after the 30th 


day.  In addition, Shannon & Wilson may, after giving seven (7) days written notice to Client, suspend services under this Agreement until Shannon & Wilson 


has been paid in full.  


If Client disputes Shannon & Wilson’s invoice, only the disputed portion(s) may be withheld from payment, and the undisputed portion(s) shall be paid. 


Records of Shannon & Wilson’s direct and indirect costs and expenses pertinent to its compensation under this Agreement shall be kept in accordance with 


generally accepted accounting practices and applicable federal, state, or local laws and regulations.  Upon request, such records shall be made available to Client 


for inspection on Shannon & Wilson’s premises and copies provided to Client at cost. 


ARTICLE 4 – CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 


Client shall grant or obtain free access to the project site for all equipment and personnel necessary for Shannon & Wilson to perform its services. 


ARTICLE 5 – STANDARD OF CARE / ABSENCE OF WARRANTIES / NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR SITE SAFETY OR CONTRACTOR’S 
PERFORMANCE 


Standard of Care 


The standard of care for all professional services performed or furnished by Shannon & Wilson under this Agreement shall be the skill and care ordinarily 


exercised by other members of Shannon & Wilson’s profession, providing the same or similar services, under the same or similar circumstances, at the same 


time and locality as the services were provided by Shannon & Wilson.  The construction, alteration, or repair of any object or structure by Shannon & Wilson 


shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with general industry standards, and conform to this Agreement.  Shannon & Wilson 


warrants for one (1) year from substantial completion of the Work, all goods delivered hereunder shall be new and free from defects in material or workmanship, 







SHANNON & WILSON, INC. 


(1/2015) Page 2 of 6 


 


and shall conform to the specifications, drawings, or sample(s) specified or furnished, if any, and shall be merchantable and fit for their intended purpose(s).  


Shannon & Wilson warrants that Shannon & Wilson has good and marketable title to all goods delivered hereunder, and that all goods delivered hereunder shall 


be free and clear of all claims of superior title, liens, and encumbrances of any kind. 


Subsurface explorations and testing identify actual subsurface conditions only at those points where samples are taken, at the time they are taken.  Actual 


conditions at other locations of the project site, including those inferred to exist between the sample points, may differ significantly from conditions that exist 


at the sampling locations.  The passage of time or intervening causes may cause the actual conditions at the sampling locations to change as well.   


Interpretations and recommendations made by Shannon & Wilson shall be based solely upon information available to Shannon & Wilson at the time the 


interpretations and recommendations are made. 


Shannon & Wilson shall be responsible for the technical accuracy of its services, data, interpretations, and recommendations resulting therefrom, and Client 


shall not be responsible for discovering deficiencies therein.  Shannon & Wilson shall correct any substandard work without additional compensation, except 


to the extent that such inaccuracies are directly attributable to deficiencies in Client-furnished information. 


No Warranties 


Shannon & Wilson makes no guarantees or warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, about Shannon & Wilson’s professional services. 


Client-Furnished Documents   


Shannon & Wilson may use requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data, and information furnished by Client to Shannon & Wilson in performing its 


services under this Agreement.  Shannon & Wilson may rely on the accuracy and completeness of requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data, and other 


information furnished by Client to Shannon & Wilson.  Client shall, only to the fullest extent permitted by law, waive any claims against Shannon & Wilson 


and its subcontractors, and indemnify and hold Shannon & Wilson and its subcontractors harmless from any claims, liability, or expenses (including reasonable 


attorneys’ fees and costs) arising from Shannon & Wilson’s reliance on Client-furnished information, except to the extent of Shannon & Wilson’s and its 


subcontractor’s negligent or wrongful acts, errors, omissions, or breach of contract. 


Site Damage  


Shannon & Wilson shall take reasonable precautions to minimize damage to the project site, but it is understood by Client that, in the normal course of Shannon 


& Wilson’s services, some project site damage may occur, and the correction of such damage is not part of this Agreement unless so stated in Shannon & 


Wilson’s Proposal.  Client shall, only to the fullest extent permitted by law, waive any claims against Shannon & Wilson and its subcontractors, and indemnify 


and hold Shannon & Wilson and its subcontractors harmless from any claims, liability, or expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) arising from 


any project site damage caused by Shannon & Wilson, except to the extent of Shannon & Wilson’s and its subcontractor’s negligent or wrongful acts, errors, 


omissions, or breach of contract. 


Buried Structures 


If there are any buried structures and/or utilities on the project site where subsurface explorations are to take place, Client shall provide Shannon & Wilson with 


a plan showing their existing locations.  Shannon & Wilson shall contact a utility locator service to request that they identify any public utilities.  Shannon & 


Wilson shall use reasonable care and diligence to avoid contact with buried structures and/or utilities as shown.  Shannon & Wilson shall not be liable for any 


loss or damage to buried structures and/or utilities resulting from inaccuracy of the plans, or lack of plans, or errors by the locator service relating to the location 


of buried structures and/or utilities.  Client shall, only to the fullest extent permitted by law, waive any claims against Shannon & Wilson and its subcontractors, 


and indemnify, and hold Shannon & Wilson and its subcontractors harmless from any claims, liability, or expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and 


costs) arising from damage to buried structures and/or utilities caused by Shannon & Wilson’s sampling, except to the extent of Shannon & Wilson’s and its 


subcontractor’s negligent or wrongful acts, errors, omissions, or breach of contract. 


Aquifer Cross-Contamination 


Despite the use of due care, unavoidable contamination of soil or groundwater may occur during subsurface exploration when drilling or sampling tools are 


advanced through a contaminated area, linking it to an aquifer, underground stream, or other hydrous body not previously contaminated and capable of spreading 


contaminants off the project site.  Because Shannon & Wilson is powerless to totally eliminate this risk despite use of due care, and because sampling is an 


essential element of Shannon & Wilson’s services, Client shall, only to the fullest extent permitted by law, waive any claims  against Shannon & Wilson and its 


subcontractors, and indemnify and hold Shannon & Wilson and its subcontractors harmless from any claims, liability, or expenses (including reasonable 


attorneys’ fees and costs) arising from cross-contamination caused by Shannon & Wilson’s sampling, except to the extent of Shannon & Wilson’s and its 


subcontractor’s negligent or wrongful acts, errors, omissions, or breach of contract. 


Opinions of Probable Construction Costs 


If opinions of probable construction costs are included in Shannon & Wilson’s Proposal, Shannon & Wilson’s opinions of probable construction costs shall be 


made on the basis of its experience and qualifications and represent its judgment as a professional generally familiar with the industry.  Opinions of probable 


construction costs are based, in part, on approximate quantity evaluations that are not accurate enough to permit contractors to prepare bids.  Further, since 


Shannon & Wilson has no control over: the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others; the contractor’s actual or proposed construction 


methods or methods of determining prices; competitive bidding; or market conditions, Shannon & Wilson cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, 


or actual construction cost will not vary from opinions of the components of probable construction cost prepared by Shannon & Wilson.  If Client or any 


contractor wishes greater assurance as to probable construction cost, Client or contractor shall employ an independent cost estimator. 


Review of Contractor’s Shop Drawings and Submittals  


If review of a contractor’s shop drawings and submittals are included in Shannon & Wilson’s Proposal, Shannon & Wilson shall review and take appropriate 


action on the contractor’s submittals, such as shop drawings, product data, samples, and other data, which the contractor is required to submit, but solely for the 


limited purpose of checking for general overall conformance with Shannon & Wilson’s design concept.  This review shall not include a review of the accuracy 


or completeness of details, such as quantities; dimensions; weights or gauges; fabrication processes; construction means, methods, sequences or procedures; 


coordination of the work with other trades; or construction safety precautions, all of which are the sole responsibility of the contractor.  Shannon & Wilson’s 


review shall be conducted with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time, in Shannon & Wilson’s judgment, to permit adequate review.  Review of 


a specific item shall not be construed to mean that Shannon & Wilson has reviewed the entire assembly of which the item is a component.  Shannon & Wilson 


shall not be responsible for any deviations by the contractor in the shop drawings and submittals from the construction documents, which are not brought to the 


attention of Shannon & Wilson by the contractor in writing.   


Construction Observation 


If construction observation is included in Shannon & Wilson’s Proposal, Shannon & Wilson shall visit the project site at intervals Shannon & Wilson deems 


appropriate, or as otherwise agreed to in writing by Client and Shannon & Wilson, in order to observe and keep Client generally informed of the progress and 


quality of the work.  Such visits and observations are not intended to be an exhaustive check or a detailed inspection of any contractor’s work, but rather are to 







SHANNON & WILSON, INC. 


(1/2015) Page 3 of 6 


 


allow Shannon & Wilson, as a professional, to become generally familiar with the work in progress in order to determine, in general, whether the work is 


progressing in a manner indicating that the work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with Shannon & Wilson’s general overall design concept.  


Shannon & Wilson’s authority shall be limited to observing, making technical comments regarding general overall compliance with Shannon & Wilson’s design 


concept, and rejecting any work which it becomes aware of that does not comply with Shannon & Wilson’s general overall design concept.  Shannon & Wilson’s 


acceptance of any non-conforming work containing latent defects or failure to reject any non-conforming work not inspected by Shannon & Wilson shall not 


impose any liability on Shannon & Wilson or relieve any contractor from complying with their contract documents.  All construction contractors shall be solely 


responsible for construction site safety, the quality of their work, and adherence to their contract documents.  Shannon & Wilson shall have no authority to 


direct any contractor’s actions or stop any contractor’s work.  


If Shannon & Wilson is not retained to provide construction observation of the implementation of its design recommendations, Client shall, only to the fullest 


extent permitted by law, waive any claims against Shannon & Wilson, and indemnify and hold Shannon & Wilson harmless from any claims, liability, or 


expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) arising from the implementation of Shannon & Wilson’s design recommendations, except to the extent 


of Shannon & Wilson’s and its subcontractor’s negligent or wrongful acts, errors, omissions, or breach of contract. 


No Responsibility for Site Safety 


Except for its own subcontractors and employees, Shannon & Wilson shall not: supervise, direct, have control over, or authority to stop any contractor’s work; 


have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected by any contractor; be responsible 


for safety precautions and programs incident to any contractor’s work; or be responsible for any failure of any contractor to  comply with laws and regulations 


applicable to the contractor, all of which are the sole responsibility of the construction contractors.  This requirement shall apply continuously, regardless of 


time or place, and shall in no way be altered because a representative of Shannon & Wilson is present at the project site performing his/her duties.  


Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Shannon & Wilson shall never be deemed to have assumed responsibility for the project’s site safety by either contract 


or conduct.  No act or direction by Shannon & Wilson shall be deemed the exercise of supervision or control of any contractor’s employees or the direction of 


any contractor’s performance.  Any direction provided by Shannon & Wilson shall be deemed solely to ensure the contractor’s general overall compliance with 


Shannon & Wilson’s design concept.  


No Responsibility for Contractor’s Performance 


Except for its own subcontractors and employees, Shannon & Wilson shall not be responsible for safety precautions, the quality of any contractor’s work, or 


any contractor’s failure to furnish or perform their work in accordance with their contract documents. 


Except Shannon & Wilson’s own employees and its subcontractors, Shannon & Wilson shall not: be responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor, 


subcontractor or supplier, or other persons at the project site, or otherwise furnishing or performing any work; or for any decision based on interpretations or 


clarifications of Shannon & Wilson’s design concept given without the consultation and concurrence of Shannon & Wilson. 


Approval of Contractor’s Applications for Payment 


If approval of a contractor’s applications for payment are included in Shannon & Wilson’s Proposal, Shannon & Wilson shall review the amounts due the 


contractor and issue a recommendation about payment to Client.  Shannon & Wilson’s review and approval shall be limited to an evaluation of the general 


progress of the work and the information contained in the contractor’s application for payment and a representation by Shannon & Wilson that to the best of the 


Shannon & Wilson’s knowledge, the contractor has performed work for which payment has been requested, subject to further testing and inspection upon 


substantial completion.  The issuance of a recommendation for payment shall not be construed as a representation that: Shannon & Wilson has made an 


exhaustive check or a detailed or continuous inspection check of the quality or quantity of the contractor’s work; approved the contractors means, methods, 


sequences, procedures, or safety precautions; or that contractor’s subcontractors, laborers, and suppliers have been paid. 


ARTICLE 6 – CONFIDENTIALITY AND USE OF DOCUMENTS 


Confidentiality 


Shannon & Wilson agrees to keep confidential and to not disclose to any person or entity (other than Shannon & Wilson’s employees and subcontractors), 


without the prior consent of Client, all information furnished to Shannon & Wilson by Client or learned by Shannon & Wilson as a result of its work on the 


project; provided however, that these provisions shall not apply to information that: is in the public domain through no fault of Shannon & Wilson; was 


previously known to Shannon & Wilson; or was independently acquired by Shannon & Wilson from third-parties who were under no obligation to Client to 


keep said information confidential.  This paragraph shall not be construed to in any way restrict Shannon & Wilson from making any disclosures required by 


law.  Client agrees that Shannon & Wilson may use and publish Client’s name and a general description of Shannon & Wilson’s services with respect to the 


project in describing Shannon & Wilson’s experience and qualifications to others. 


Copyrights and Patents – Shannon & Wilson shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Client from any and all actions, damages, demands, expenses 


(including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs), losses, and liabilities arising out of any claims that any goods or services furnished by Subcontractor infringe 


any patent, trademark, trade name, or copyright. 


Use of Documents 


All documents prepared by Shannon & Wilson are instruments of service with respect to the project, and Shannon & Wilson shall retain a copyrighted ownership 


and property interest therein (including the right of reuse) whether or not the project is completed. 


Shannon & Wilson grants to Client a non-exclusive, irrevocable, unlimited, royalty-free license to use any documents prepared by Shannon & Wilson for Client.  


Client may make and retain copies of such documents for their information and use.  Such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by 


Client, or others, after the passage of time, on extensions of the project, or on any other project.  Any such reuse without written verification or adaptation by 


Shannon & Wilson, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, shall be at Client’s sole risk, and Client shall, only to the fullest extent permitted by law, 


waive any claims against Shannon & Wilson and its subcontractors, and indemnify and hold Shannon & Wilson and its subcontractors harmless from any 


claims, liability, or expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) arising from such reuse, except to the extent  of Shannon & Wilson’s and its 


subcontractor’s negligent or wrongful acts, errors, omissions, or breach of contract.  Any verification or adaptation of the documents for extensions of the project 


or for any other project by Shannon & Wilson shall entitle Shannon & Wilson to additional compensation to be agreed upon by Client and Shannon & Wilson. 


Copies of documents that may be relied upon by Client are limited to the printed copies (also known as hard copies) that are signed or sealed by Shannon & 


Wilson.  Text, data, or graphics files in electronic media format are furnished solely for the convenience of Client.  Any conclusion or information obtained or 


derived from such electronic files shall be at the user’s sole risk.  If there is a discrepancy between the electronic files and the hard copies, the hard copies 


govern. 


Because data stored in electronic media can deteriorate or be modified inadvertently or otherwise without authorization of the data’s creator, the party receiving 


an electronic file agrees that it shall perform acceptance tests or procedures within 60 days after its receipt, after which, unless notice of any errors are given in 







SHANNON & WILSON, INC. 


(1/2015) Page 4 of 6 


 


writing to the delivering party, the receiving party shall be deemed to have accepted the data thus transferred.  Any errors reported within the 60-day acceptance 


period shall be corrected by the party delivering the electronic files at their sole expense.  Shannon & Wilson shall not be responsible for maintaining documents 


stored in electronic media format after acceptance by Client. 


When transferring documents in electronic media format, neither Client nor Shannon & Wilson makes any representations as to long-term compatibility, 


usability, or readability of documents resulting from the use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware differing from those 


used for the document’s creation. 


ARTICLE 7 - INSURANCE 


Shannon & Wilson shall purchase and maintain during the term of this contract, the following insurance coverage at its sole expense: 


Commercial General Liability - $1,000,000 each occurrence/$2,000,000 annual aggregate Bodily Injury/Property Damage Combined Single Limit including 


Blanket Contractual Liability, Broad Form Products and Completed Operations, Explosion/Collapse/Underground (XCU) Exposures, and Washington Stop 


Gap coverage. 


Auto Liability - $1,000,000 Bodily Injury/Property Damage Combined Single Limit including Owned, Hired, and Non-Owned Liability coverage. 


Umbrella Liability - $10,000,000 Bodily Injury/Property Damage combined Single Limit in excess of Commercial General Liability, Auto Liability, and 


Employers’ Liability. 


Workers’ Compensation - Statutory in monopolistic states and $500,000 per accident/$500,000 per disease/$500,000 disease policy aggregate Employers’ 


Liability in non-monopolistic including if applicable, U.S. Longshore & Harbor Workers coverage. 


Professional Liability - $5,000,000 per claims/$5,000,000 annual aggregate for professional errors and omissions including Pollution Liability coverage. 


If requested in writing by Client, Shannon & Wilson shall name Client as an additional insured on its Commercial General Liability policy. 


If requested in writing by Client, Shannon & Wilson shall deliver to Client certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage.  Such certificates shall be 


furnished before commencement of Shannon & Wilson’s services. 


Client shall cause Shannon & Wilson and its subcontractors to be listed as additional insureds on any Commercial General Liability insurance carried by Client 


that is applicable to the project. 


Client shall require the project owner to require the general contractor on the project to purchase and maintain Commercial General Liability, Automobile 


Liability, Workers Compensation, and Employers Liability insurance, with limits no less than set forth above, and to cause Shannon & Wilson and its 


subcontractors to be listed as additional insureds on that Commercial General Liability insurance.  Client shall require the project owner include the substance 


of this paragraph in the prime construction contract. 


All insurance policies shall contain a waiver of subrogation. 


ARTICLE 8 - HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 


Disclosure of the Existence of Hazardous Environmental Conditions 


Client has disclosed to Shannon & Wilson all data known to Client concerning known or suspected hazardous environmental conditions, including but not 


limited to, the existence of all asbestos, PCBs, petroleum, hazardous waste, or radioactive material, if any, located at or near the project site, including its type, 


quantity, and location, or has represented to Shannon & Wilson that, to the best of Client’s knowledge, no hazardous environmental conditions exist at or near 


the project site. 


If any hazardous environmental condition is encountered or believed to exist, Shannon & Wilson shall notify Client and, to the extent required by applicable 


laws and regulations, the project site owner, and appropriate governmental officials. 


Disposal of Non-Hazardous Samples and Hazardous or Toxic Substances 


All substances on, in, or under the project site, or obtained from the project site as samples or as byproducts (e.g., drill cuttings and fluids) of the sampling 


process are the project site owner’s property.  Shannon & Wilson shall preserve such samples for forty-five (45) calendar days after Shannon & Wilson’s 


issuance to Client of the final instrument of service that relates to the data obtained from them.  Shannon & Wilson shall dispose of all non-hazardous samples 


and sampling process byproducts in accordance with applicable law; provided however, any samples or sampling process byproducts that are, or are believed 


to be, affected by regulated contaminants shall be packaged by Shannon & Wilson in accordance with applicable law, and turned over to Client or left on the 


project site. Shannon & Wilson shall not transport store, treat, dispose of, or arrange for the transportation, storage, treatment, or disposal of, any substances 


known, believed, or suspected to be affected by regulated contaminants, nor shall Shannon & Wilson subcontract for such activities.   


Shannon & Wilson shall, at Client’s request (and for additional compensation, if not already included in Shannon & Wilson’s Proposal), help Client or the 


project site owner identify appropriate alternatives for transportation, storage, treatment, or disposal of such substances, but Shannon & Wilson shall not make 


any independent determination about the selection of a transportation, storage, treatment, or disposal facility.   


Client or the project site owner shall sign all manifests for the transportation, storage, treatment, or disposal of substances affected by regulated contaminants; 


provided however, notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement to the contrary if Client directs Shannon & Wilson, Shannon & Wilson’s employees, 


or Shannon & Wilson’s agents to sign such manifests and/or to hire for Client or the project site owner a contractor to transport store, treat, or dispose of the 


contaminated substances, Shannon & Wilson shall do so only as Client’s disclosed agent.   


Contaminated Equipment and Consumables  


Client shall reimburse Shannon & Wilson for the cost of decontaminating field or laboratory equipment that is contaminated by regulated materials encountered 


at the project site and for the cost of disposal and replacement of contaminated consumables.  In some instances, the cost of decontamination may exceed the 


fair market value of the equipment, were it not contaminated, together with the cost of properly transporting and disposing of the equipment.  In such instances, 


Shannon & Wilson will notify Client and give Client the option of paying for decontamination or purchasing the equipment at its fair market value immediately 


prior to contamination.  If Client elects to purchase equipment, Client and Shannon & Wilson will enter into a specific agreement for that purpose.  Any 


equipment that cannot be decontaminated shall be considered a consumable. 


Client’s Liability for Hazardous or Toxic Materials  


Except to the extent caused by Shannon & Wilson’s and its subcontractor’s negligent or wrongful acts, errors, omissions, or breach of contract, and only to the 


maximum extent permitted by law, Client shall: indemnify and hold harmless Shannon & Wilson, its subcontractors and their partners, officers, directors, 


employees, and agents; from and against any and all actions (whether sounding in tort, contract (express or implied), warranty (express or implied), statutory 







SHANNON & WILSON, INC. 


(1/2015) Page 5 of 6 


 


liability, strict liability, or otherwise), claims (including, but not limited to, claims for bodily injury, death, property damage (including bodily injury, death, or 


property damage to Shannon & Wilson’s own employees), or arising under CERCLA, MTCA, or similar federal, state, or local environmental laws), costs, 


damages (including without limitation, economic, non-economic, general, special, incidental, consequential), demands, expenses (including, but not limited to, 


reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of defense), fines, judgments, liens, liabilities, and penalties of any kind whatsoever;  arising from the arrangement for 


and/or ownership, operation, generation, labeling, transportation, storage, disposal, treatment, release, or threatened release of any hazardous or toxic materials, 


as defined by CERCLA, MTCA, or similar federal, state, or local environmental laws, on and/or from the project site. 


ARTICLE 9 - ALLOCATION OF RISK 


Indemnification of Client 


To the maximum extent permitted by law, Shannon & Wilson shall: indemnify and hold harmless Client, its appointed and elected officials, partners, officers, 


directors, employees, and agents; from and against any and all actions (whether sounding in tort, contract (express or implied), warranty (express or implied), 


statutory liability, strict liability, or otherwise), claims (including, but not limited to, claims for bodily injury, death, property damage, (including bodily injury, 


death, or property damage to Shannon & Wilson’s own employees) or arising under CERCLA, MTCA, or similar federal, state, or local environmental laws), 


costs, damages (including without limitation, economic, non-economic, general, special, incidental, consequential), demands, expenses (including, but not 


limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of defense), fines, judgments, liens, liabilities, and penalties of any kind whatsoever; arising from the negligent 


or wrongful acts, errors, or omissions, or breach of contract or warranty express or implied, by Shannon & Wilson or any of its subcontractors; but only to the 


extent of Shannon & Wilson’s and its subcontractor’s relative degree of fault.  In furtherance of these obligations, and only with respect to Client, its appointed 


and elected officials, partners, officers, directors, employees and agents, Shannon & Wilson waives any immunity it may have or limitation on the amount or 


type of damages imposed under any industrial insurance, worker’s compensation, disability, employee benefit, or similar laws.  Shannon & Wilson 


acknowledges that this waiver of immunity was mutually negotiated. 


Limitation of Shannon & Wilson’s Liability 


A. Total Liability Limited to Insurance Proceeds 


Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, and only to the maximum extent permitted by law, the total liability, in the aggregate, of Shannon & 


Wilson, its subcontractors, and their partners, officers, directors, employees, agents and, or any of them, to Client and/or anyone claiming by, through, or under 


Client, for any and all actions (whether sounding in tort, contract (express or implied), warranty (express or implied), statutory liability, strict liability, or 


otherwise), claims (including, but not limited to, claims for bodily injury, death, property damage, (including bodily injury, death, or property damage to 


Shannon & Wilson’s own employees) or arising under CERCLA, MTCA, or similar federal, state, or local environmental laws), costs, damages (including 


without limitation, economic, non-economic, general, special, incidental, consequential), demands, expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ 


fees and costs of defense), fines, judgments, liens, liabilities, and penalties of any kind whatsoever, arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the 


project or this Agreement, shall be limited to the insurance proceeds payable on behalf of or to Shannon & Wilson by any insurance policies applicable thereto.  


If you are unwilling or unable to limit our liability in this manner, we will negotiate this limitation and its associated impact on our approach, scope of work, 


schedule, and price, with you.  You must notify us in writing before we commence our work of your intention to negotiate this limitation and its associated 


impact on our approach, scope of work, schedule, and price.  Absent your prior written notification to the contrary, we will proceed on the basis that our total 


liability is limited as set forth above. 


B. Professional Liability Limited to $50,000 or 10% of Fee 


With respect to professional errors or omissions only, notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, and only to the maximum extent permitted by 


law, the total liability, in the aggregate, of Shannon & Wilson, its subcontractors, and their partners, officers, directors, employees, agents, or any of them, to 


Client and/or anyone claiming by, through, or under Client, for any and all actions (whether sounding in tort, contract (express or implied), warranty (express 


or implied), statutory liability, strict liability, or otherwise), claims (including, but not limited to, claims for bodily injury, death, property damage (including 


bodily injury, death, or property damage to Shannon & Wilson’s own employees) or arising under CERCLA, MTCA, or similar federal, state, or local 


environmental laws), costs, damages (including without limitation, economic, non-economic, general, special, incidental, consequential), demands, expenses 


(including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of defense), fines, judgments, liens, liabilities, and penalties of any kind whatsoever, arising 


out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the professional errors or omissions of Shannon & Wilson, its subcontractors, or their partners, officers, directors, 


employees, agents or, or any of them, shall not exceed the aggregate total amount of $50,000.00, or ten percent (10%) of the total compensation actually paid 


to Shannon & Wilson under this Agreement, whichever is greater.  If you are unwilling or unable to limit our professional liability to these sums, we will 


negotiate the amount of this limitation and its associated impact on our approach, scope of work, schedule, and price, with you.  You must notify us in writing 


before we commence our work of your intention to negotiate the amount of this limitation and its associated impact on our approach, scope of work, schedule, 


and price.  Absent your prior written notification to the contrary, we will proceed on the basis that our total professional liability is limited to $50,000.00 or ten 


percent (10%) of the total compensation actually paid to Shannon & Wilson under this Agreement, whichever is greater. 


ARTICLE 10 – MISCELLANEOUS 


Termination 


This Agreement may be terminated without further obligation or liability by either party, with or without cause (for convenience), upon 30 days prior written 


notice to the other.  Shannon & Wilson shall be entitled to compensation for all services performed prior to the termination of this Agreement.  This Agreement 


may be terminated by the non-breaching party upon any breach of this Agreement that remains uncured after 10 days notice to the breaching party by the non-


breaching party.  Upon payment of all amounts due Shannon & Wilson, Client shall be entitled to copies of Shannon & Wilson’s files and records pertaining to 


services performed prior to the termination of this Agreement. 


Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries 


This Agreement shall be binding upon each party’s assigns, successors, executors, administrators, and legal representatives.  


Neither Client nor Shannon & Wilson may assign or transfer any rights under or interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other.  No 


assignment shall release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 


Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, impose, or give rise to any duty owed by Client or Shannon & Wilson to any third-party.  All duties and 


responsibilities undertaken under this Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of Client and Shannon & Wilson.  There are no intended third-party 


beneficiaries.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, should a court find a third-party to be a beneficiary of this Agreement, it is the intent of the parties that the 


judicially created third-party beneficiary be bound by and subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.   


Jurisdiction, Venue, and Choice of Law 


Any applicable Statute of Limitation shall be deemed to commence running on the date which the claimant knew, or should have known, of the facts giving rise 


to their claims, but in no event later than the date of substantial completion of Shannon & Wilson’s services under this Agreement.  To the maximum extent 







SHANNON & WILSON, INC. 


(1/2015) Page 6 of 6 


 


permitted by law, as a condition precedent to commencing a judicial proceeding, a party shall give written notice of their claims, including all amounts claimed, 


and the factual basis for their claims, to the other party within one (1) year of when the claimant knew, or should have known, of the facts giving rise to their 


claims, but in no event later than one (1) year from the date of substantial completion of Shannon & Wilson’s services under this Agreement.  As a condition 


precedent to commencing a judicial proceeding, a party shall first submit their claims to non-binding mediation through and in accordance with the rules of the 


American Arbitration Association. 


This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws (except choice and conflict of law provisions) of the state in which the Project 


is located.   


Any judicial action shall be brought in the state in which the Project is located. 


Attorneys’ Fees 


Should any dispute or claims arise out of this Agreement, whether sounding in tort, contract (express or implied), warranty (express or implied), statutory 


liability, strict liability, or otherwise, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of their reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, including upon appeal and 


in the enforcement of any judgment.  Should neither party prevail on all of their claims or receive all of the relief they sought, then the substantially prevailing 


party shall be awarded their reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, including upon appeal and in the enforcement of any judgment. 


Waiver 


A waiver of any of the terms and conditions or breaches of this Agreement shall not operate as a subsequent waiver. 


Headings 


The headings used in this agreement are for general ease of reference only.  They have no meaning and are not part of this Agreement. 


Integration 


This Agreement, together with all attachments hereto, are incorporated by reference into each other, and supercede all prior written and oral discussions, 


representations, negotiations, and agreements on the subject matter of this Agreement and represent the parties’ complete, entire, and final understanding of the 


subject matter of this Agreement. 


Survival 


Notwithstanding completion or termination of this Agreement for any reason, all representations, warranties, limitations of liability, and indemnification 


obligations contained in this Agreement shall survive such completion or termination and remain in full force and effect until fulfilled. 


Severability 


If any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement are found to be void or unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this Agreement shall continue in full 


force and effect, and the court shall attempt to judicially reform the void or unenforceable provisions to the maximum extent possible, consistent with the 


original intent expressed in the provisions, to render it valid and enforceable.  If the court is unable to reform the provisions to render it valid and enforceable, 


the court shall strike only that portion which is invalid or unenforceable, and this Agreement shall then be construed without reference to the void or 


unenforceable provisions. 





		09a-R-2020 Resolution - Site Investigation Services

		09b-R-2020 Resolution - Site Investigation Services










 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Termination of Tax Incremental District (TID) No. 3 and authorization to distribute excess increment 


to overlying taxing jurisdictions. 
 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee passed on July 28, 2020 by a vote of 5-0  


 
Fiscal Impact: Distribution of excess increment 


 
File Number: 


 
R-130-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 25, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton created TID No. 3 on January 1, 1993, and adopted a project plan in 


the same year; and 


 


WHEREAS, all TID No. 3 projects were completed in the prescribed time allowed; and 
 


WHEREAS, sufficient increment was collected as of the 2019 tax roll, payable in 2020, to cover TID No. 


3 project costs; and 


 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council shall adopt this 


termination resolution by September 10, 2020 and the City Clerk shall notify the Wisconsin Department of 


Revenue (DOR) within sixty (60) days of this resolution that the TID has been terminated; and  


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk shall sign the required DOR final accounting form (PE-223) 


agreeing on a date by which the City shall submit final accounting information to DOR; and 


 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Treasurer shall distribute any excess increment collected after 


providing for ongoing expenses of the TID, to the affected taxing districts with proportionate shares to be 


determined by the final audit by the City’s auditors, Baker Tilly. 


 
 


Adopted this 25th day of August, 2020 


 


Resolution introduced and adoption moved by Alderperson:  


 


Motion for adoption seconded by Alderperson:  


 


On roll call motion passed by a vote of _____ ayes to _____nays 


 


 


        ATTEST: 


 


___________________________   _____________________________________  


  


Tim Swadley, Mayor      Holly Licht, City Clerk 







 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Termination of Tax Incremental District (TID) No. 3 and authorization to distribute excess increment 
to overlying taxing jurisdictions. 


 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee passed on July 28, 2020 by a vote of 5-0  


 
Fiscal Impact: Distribution of excess increment 
 
File Number: 


 
R-XX-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 25, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton created TID No. 3 on January 1, 1993, and adopted a project plan in 
the same year; and 
 
WHEREAS, all TID No. 3 projects were completed in the prescribed time allowed; and 
 
WHEREAS, sufficient increment was collected as of the 2019 tax roll, payable in 2020, to cover TID No. 
3 project costs; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council shall adopt this 
termination resolution by September 10, 2020 and the City Clerk shall notify the Wisconsin Department of 
Revenue (DOR) within sixty (60) days of this resolution that the TID has been terminated; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk shall sign the required DOR final accounting form (PE-223) 
agreeing on a date by which the City shall submit final accounting information to DOR; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Treasurer shall distribute any excess increment collected after 
providing for ongoing expenses of the TID, to the affected taxing districts with proportionate shares to be 
determined by the final audit by the City’s auditors, Baker Tilly. 
 


 
Adopted this 25th day of August, 2020 
 
Resolution introduced and adoption moved by Alderperson:  
 
Motion for adoption seconded by Alderperson:  
 
On roll call motion passed by a vote of _____ ayes to _____nays 
 
 
        ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________  _____________________________________ 
  __________________________________ 
Tim Swadley, Mayor      Holly Licht, City Clerk 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 S Forrest, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  July 14, 2020 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Ryan Wiesen 
  Assistant Finance Director 
 
Subject: TID No. 3 Termination 
 
In 2019, the City of Stoughton extended TID No. 3 by one year to tax year 2020 (payable in 
2021). The extension permits the city to use the 2021 increment revenue of approximately 
$490,000 to fund affordable housing initiatives.  
 
Now is the time for the city to terminate TID No. 3. Attached is a resolution drafted according to 
Wisconsin Department of Revenue guidelines. The resolution terminates the district after the 
2020 tax year and the subsequent housing initiative and final audit costs.  
 
TID No. 3 is projected to have a surplus of around $350,000 at termination. The surplus will be 
given to the underlying tax districts according to their proportion of the total tax levy as audited 
by the city audit firm Baker Tilly. 
 
It is also anticipated that the closure of TID No. 3 will increase the City’s 2021 general (TID 
Out) equalized value by approximately $22,000,000 and 2021 base tax levy by approximately 
$65,000. 
 
 
 
 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/



		10a-R-XX-2020-TIF No. 3 Termination

		10b-R-XX-2020-TIF No. 3 Termination






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and Directing the proper city official(s) to Amend the City of Stoughton Policy for the 


Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts and the Approval of TIF Projects  


 


Committee Action:         Finance Committee approved 5-0 on August 11, 2020 


 


Fiscal Impact:                 None 


 


 


 


 
File Number: 


 
R-131-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 25, 2020 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Policy for the Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts 


and the Approval of TIF Projects (“Policy”) was adopted by the Common Council in 2016 and 


amended in 2019; and 


WHEREAS, the City’s Finance Department recommended an additional amendment to the 


Policy at the Finance Committee meeting held on August 11, 2020 as follows:   


 Establish developer equity requirements. 
 


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended the proposed changes 5-0 at 


their meeting held on August 11, 2020.   


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 


authorizes and directs the property city official(s) to amend the Policy as recommended. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                            


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     







 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and Directing  the proper city official(s) to Amend the City of Stoughton Policy for the 
Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts and the Approval of TIF Projects  


 
Committee Action:         Finance Committee approved 5-0 on August 11, 2020 
 
Fiscal Impact:                 None 
 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R-XX-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 25, 2020 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Policy for the Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts 
and the Approval of TIF Projects (“Policy”) was adopted by the Common Council in 2016 and 
amended in 2019; and 


WHEREAS, the City’s Finance Department recommended an additional amendment to the 
Policy at the Finance Committee meeting held on August 11, 2020 as follows:   


• Establish developer equity requirements. 
 


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended the proposed changes 5-0 at 
their meeting held on August 11, 2020.   


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 
authorizes and directs the property city official(s) to amend the Policy as recommended. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 


 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                            
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     







City of Stoughton Policy  
for the Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts  


and the Approval of TIF Projects. 
 
1. Purpose.  This policy has been prepared to assist the City in determining whether to 


create a Tax Incremental Finance District, and in determining whether to approve 
the use of Tax Incremental Financing for particular projects.  The authority to 
approve the use of Tax Incremental Financing is vested solely in the City Council.  
The City reserves the right to reject any and all projects, including projects that are 
eligible for the use of Tax Incremental Financing, for any reason or no reason.  The 
City Council reserves the right to approve or disapprove any project as it deems 
appropriate. 
 


2. General Goals for the use of Tax Incremental Financing.  The City may consider 
whether a TIF District or a TIF project serves one or more of the following general 
goals when deciding whether to create a TIF District, or whether to provide TIF 
financing for a particular project: 
 
A. Eliminate blighting influences, redevelop underutilized lands, and provide 


suitable sites for industrial, commercial or residential development. 
B. Achieve or accelerate development on sites that would not be developed 


without the use of Tax Incremental Financing. 
C. Increase employment opportunities in the City. 
D. Increase the tax base for the City and other taxing jurisdictions. 
E. Assists implementation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
F. Provide affordable housing opportunities. 
G. Encourage unsubsidized private development in the City. 
 


3. TIF District Creation. 
 
A. TIF Districts will be created in accordance with the procedures and standards 


in Wis. Stat. § 66.1105, and as such statute may be amended.  (See Appendix 
A - Department of Revenue TIF Creation Checklist).   


B. The City Council may, in individual cases, expand the process for creating a 
TIF District in such manner as it deems appropriate.   


 
4. TIF Project Approval.  All TIF projects must be approved by the City Council, 


following review and report by the Finance Committee.  The Finance Director shall 
provide a report to the Finance Committee and the City Council addressing the 
following issues, which shall be considered by the Finance Committee and City 
Council before approving any TIF project: 


 
A. Is the project authorized by the Project Plan for the TIF District? 







B. Does the project serve one or more of the City’s general goals for the use of 
TIF? 


C. Is Tax Incremental Financing feasible, in that the TIF District will support 
the level of TIF investment? 


D. Is the amount of Tax Increment Financing requested reasonably necessary to 
make the project financially viable? 


E. Should a development agreement be required, and what terms should be 
included in the agreement? 


F. Is more process (such as additional public hearings or a referendum) 
appropriate? 


G. Will the potential developer’s equity in the project exceed 10%? 
H. Will the ratio of equity to assistance be at least equal (1 X Equity = or > 


Assistance)? 
I. Such other factors as either the Finance Committee or the City Council deem 


appropriate. 
 


5. Permissive Referendum.  Before the City may issue bonds or otherwise borrow 
funds that will be payable over more than 10 years to fund a TIF project, the City 
Council must first adopt a resolution declaring its intent to borrow the funds.  If a 
number of electors of the city equal to at least 15% of the of the votes cast for 
governor at the last general election in the city sign and file a petition conforming 
to the requirements of Wis. Stat. § 8.40 with the city clerk requesting submission of 
the resolution, the City may not issue bonds or borrow funds for financing the TIF 
project without calling a special election to submit the question of bonding or 
borrowing to the city electors for their approval.  
 


6. Negotiations.  City staff and the city attorney will negotiate development 
agreements within the parameters established by the City Council, and subject to 
final approval by the City Council.   
 
It should be noted that “pay-as-you-go” is the preferred TIF financing mechanism 
of the City Council to help reduce the financial exposure of the City. Under this 
financing method the developer pays the upfront costs of the project. The City 
would then establish the criteria to fully or partially reimburse the developer using 
future tax increment. 
 


7. Suspension of Policy.  This policy shall be followed in all cases, except where the 
common council approves deviating from this policy by a vote of two-thirds of the 
members present. 
  
 
 
 





		11a-R-XX-2020-City of Stoughton TIF Policy

		11b-R-XX-2020-City of Stoughton TIF Policy






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution offering alternative payment arrangements to individuals and businesses who will be levied 


special assessments for the improvement of curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, 


carriage walks, retaining walls, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements for 2020 


Projects 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Approved by Finance Committee 5-0 on August 11, 2020 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
TBD 


 
File Number:   


 
R-132-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 25, 2020 


 


WHEREAS, on May 26, 2020, the City of Stoughton Common Council approved R-85-2020 Resolution 


authorizing improvements and levying special assessments against benefited property in the City of Stoughton 


for the improvement of curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, carriage walks, retaining walls, sanitary 


sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements for 2020 Projects; and  


 


WHEREAS, many residents of the City of Stoughton and Dane County as a result of business closures 


have been laid off or furloughed from their employment; and   


 


WHEREAS, many residents of the City of Stoughton have subsequently had to apply for unemployment 


insurance compensation as a result of loss of employment; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton finds that the taxpayers of the City of Stoughton and Dane County 


have suffered and continue to suffer a general financial hardship as a result of the COVID 19 pandemic; 


and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee requested that the Finance Department present 


alternative payment options that will provide relief to those individuals and businesses being levied 


special assessments as a result of the 2020 projects; and  


 


WHEREAS, on July 14, 2020, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee recommended offering the 


following alternative payment arrangements to those individuals and businesses being levied special 


assessments because of the 2020 projects: 


 


 
 


WHEREAS, the original terms as approved at the May 26, 2020 Common Council meeting will remain 


in effect; however, the individuals and businesses with final special assessments as a result of the 2020 


projects in excess of $1,500 will be invoiced using the alternative repayment terms as outlined above; 


and  


 


WHEREAS, information will accompany the initial invoice, which will outline the different repayment 


terms and offer individuals and businesses the option to follow either the original or alternative principal 


amortization schedules; and  







 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Common Council approves of 


offering alternative payment arrangements to individuals and businesses who will be levied special 


assessments for the improvement of curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, carriage walks, retaining 


walls, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements for 2020 Projects using the repayment 


terms as outlined above.  


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Resolution offering alternative payment arrangements to individuals and businesses who will be levied 


special assessments for the improvement of curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, 
carriage walks, retaining walls, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements for 2020 


Projects 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Approved by Finance Committee 5-0 on August 11, 2020 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
TBD  


File Number:   
 
R-XX-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 25, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, on May 26, 2020, the City of Stoughton Common Council approved R-85-2020 Resolution 
authorizing improvements and levying special assessments against benefited property in the City of Stoughton 
for the improvement of curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, carriage walks, retaining walls, sanitary 
sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements for 2020 Projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, many residents of the City of Stoughton and Dane County as a result of business closures 
have been laid off or furloughed from their employment; and   
 
WHEREAS, many residents of the City of Stoughton have subsequently had to apply for unemployment 
insurance compensation as a result of loss of employment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton finds that the taxpayers of the City of Stoughton and Dane County 
have suffered and continue to suffer a general financial hardship as a result of the COVID 19 pandemic; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee requested that the Finance Department present 
alternative payment options that will provide relief to those individuals and businesses being levied 
special assessments as a result of the 2020 projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, on July 14, 2020, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee recommended offering the 
following alternative payment arrangements to those individuals and businesses being levied special 
assessments because of the 2020 projects: 
 


 
 


WHEREAS, the original terms as approved at the May 26, 2020 Common Council meeting will remain 
in effect; however, the individuals and businesses with final special assessments as a result of the 2020 
projects in excess of $1,500 will be invoiced using the alternative repayment terms as outlined above; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, information will accompany the initial invoice, which will outline the different repayment 
terms and offer individuals and businesses the option to follow either the original or alternative principal 
amortization schedules; and  







 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Common Council approves of 
offering alternative payment arrangements to individuals and businesses who will be levied special 
assessments for the improvement of curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, carriage walks, retaining 
walls, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements for 2020 Projects using the repayment 
terms as outlined above.  
 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 
 
 







SPECIAL ASSESSMENT STATEMENT 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 


207 S FORREST STREET 
STOUGHTON, WI 53589 


 


CUSTOMER NAME 
CUSTOMER ADDRESS 
 
INVOICE DATE: XX/XX/2020   PAYMENT DUE DATE: XX/XX/2020 
 
ACCOUNT NO: XXXX-XX   PROJECT:   2020  
 
PROPERTY ADDRESS:  1234 STOUGHTON ST 
     STOUGHTON, WI 53589 
 
Amount payable (full or any partial amount on or before XX/XX/2020 without any interest 
added): $X,XXX 
 


Make checks payable to: City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 
 


 
The remaining unpaid balance as of XX/XX/2020 will accrue interest at 3.50% per annum 
from the date of billing. Unpaid balances as of XX/XX/2021 will be placed on the 2020 Tax 
Roll using the following alternative payment schedule; or may be deferred only on such 
terms and in such manner as prescribed by the Stoughton City Council, as referred to in 
Section 2-646 through 2-654 of the Stoughton Municipal Code.  
 
Principal up to $200    Full amount due plus interest on 2020 Tax Roll 
 
$201 - $1,500     Divided into five (5) equal annual installments, 
      beginning with the 2020 Tax Roll 
 
$1,501 - $5,000    Divided into fifteen (15) equal annual  
      installments, beginning with the 2020 Tax Roll -  
      See Note 1 below 
 
$5,001 or more    Divided into twenty (20) equal annual  
      installments, beginning with the 2020 Tax Roll -  
      See Note 2 below 
 







Note 1 – The existing repayment term as approved the City of Stoughton Common Council 
on May 26, 2020 is ten (10) equal annual installments beginning with the 2020 Tax Roll if 
you choose not to pay in full by the due date noted above. However, due to the ongoing 
COVID-19 crisis and the financial impact it has had on the citizens of Stoughton, the 
Common Council is providing the alternative repayment term over fifteen (15) years if you 
so choose. We recommend paying down the principal balance as quickly as possible to 
minimize the impact of accruing interest beyond the original ten (10) year period.  
 
Note 2 – The existing repayment term as approved the City of Stoughton Common Council 
on May 26, 2020 is ten (10) equal annual installments beginning with the 2020 Tax Roll if 
you choose not to pay in full by the due date noted above. However, due to the ongoing 
COVID-19 crisis and the financial impact it has had on the citizens of Stoughton, the 
Common Council is providing the alternative repayment term over twenty (20) years if you 
so choose. We recommend paying down the principal balance as quickly as possible to 
minimize the impact of accruing interest beyond the original ten (10) year period.  
 
It should also be noted that there is no pre-payment penalty on special assessments and 
we encourage residents and businesses to pay down their principal balances as quickly as 
possible to avoid unnecessary financing charges. 
 
If you would like to receive a forecasted amortization schedule comparing the approved 
and alternative repayment structures, or have any questions or concerns, please feel free 
to contact the City’s Finance Director using the information below. 
 
Jamin Friedl 
(608) 873-6691 
jfriedl@ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  July 22, 2020 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Jamin Friedl, CPA 
  Director of Finance/Comptroller 
 
Subject: Special Assessment Repayment Terms 
 
The City of Stoughton Finance Committee requested the Finance Department to forecast the 
potential annual cash flow impact if we considered changing the special assessment repayment 
terms as summarized in the table below. It was decided at the July 14, 2020 to implement these 
changes to the 2020 special assessments and beyond. 
 


 
 


The summary on page 3 of this document documents the potential impact to cash flows over a 
20-year period related to the 2020 proposed special assessments assuming all customers choose 
the to follow the alternative repayment terms being offered. 
 
The major legal issue facing the City is the fact that the state statutes expressly state that the 
interest rate set for special assessment installment payments “may not be changed during the 
course of the installment payments for a particular special assessment.” Wis. Stat. § 
66.0715(3)(b). Due to this particular issue, the Finance Committee is recommending the 
following: 
 


1. Implement the new repayment periods summarized above for the 2020 special 
assessments. 


2. Leave the interest rate at 3.5% as passed by the Common Council earlier this year. The 
administrative burden to follow all of the procedural requirements needed to make the 
change to the interest rate is significant and not considered to be necessary if we change 
the repayment period terms. Although there is potential risk this may be challenged, the 
terms being proposed are not detrimental to the individual payers. 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





3. Include documentation with the initial invoice outlining the options available for 
repayment and any potential ramifications that may have in terms or total payments over 
the life to the special assessment. 


4. If the City chooses to leave these terms in place for future special assessments, they will 
be included in the procedural steps and documentation as necessary. 


 
A customer-by-customer impact can be found on pages 7 – 20 of this document. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Jamin Friedl, CPA 
Director of Finance 
 







Proposed Existing
Year Proposed Existing Difference Max Annual Pmt. Max Annual Pmt. 
2021 30,978$                 38,845$                 (7,867)$                  872$                       1,385$                   
2022 29,204$                 36,795$                 (7,591)$                  854$                       1,349$                   
2023 28,455$                 35,771$                 (7,316)$                  836$                       1,313$                   
2024 27,706$                 34,747$                 (7,041)$                  818$                       1,277$                   
2025 26,957$                 33,722$                 (6,765)$                  800$                       1,241$                   
2026 16,538$                 23,028$                 (6,490)$                  782$                       1,205$                   
2027 16,128$                 22,342$                 (6,215)$                  764$                       1,169$                   
2028 15,717$                 21,656$                 (5,939)$                  746$                       1,133$                   
2029 15,306$                 20,970$                 (5,664)$                  728$                       1,098$                   
2030 14,896$                 20,284$                 (5,389)$                  710$                       1,062$                   
2031 14,485$                 14,485$                 692$                       
2032 14,075$                 14,075$                 674$                       
2033 13,664$                 13,664$                 656$                       
2034 13,253$                 13,253$                 639$                       
2035 12,843$                 12,843$                 621$                       
2036 4,702$                   4,702$                   603$                       
2037 4,562$                   4,562$                   585$                       
2038 4,422$                   4,422$                   567$                       
2039 4,282$                   4,282$                   549$                       
2040 4,141$                   4,141$                   531$                       


312,312$               288,161$               24,151$                 


Analysis Leaving at 3.5% Interest


OVERALL CASH FLOW ANALYSIS







Proposed Max Existing Max 
SA # Annual Pmt. Annual Pmt. Savings


1 104$                  104$                  -$                   
2 120$                  120$                  -$                   
3 120$                  120$                  -$                   
4 120$                  120$                  -$                   
5 160$                  160$                  -$                   
6 200$                  200$                  -$                   
7 200$                  200$                  -$                   
8 52$                    52$                    -$                   
9 55$                    55$                    -$                   


10 55$                    55$                    -$                   
11 68$                    68$                    -$                   
12 68$                    68$                    -$                   
13 68$                    68$                    -$                   
14 78$                    78$                    -$                   
15 91$                    91$                    -$                   
16 91$                    91$                    -$                   
17 95$                    95$                    -$                   
18 103$                  103$                  -$                   
19 125$                  125$                  -$                   
20 129$                  129$                  -$                   
21 129$                  129$                  -$                   
22 129$                  129$                  -$                   
23 131$                  131$                  -$                   
24 136$                  136$                  -$                   
25 136$                  136$                  -$                   
26 136$                  136$                  -$                   
27 155$                  155$                  -$                   
28 163$                  163$                  -$                   
29 164$                  164$                  -$                   
30 176$                  176$                  -$                   
31 180$                  180$                  -$                   
32 180$                  180$                  -$                   
33 180$                  180$                  -$                   
34 180$                  180$                  -$                   
35 180$                  180$                  -$                   
36 180$                  180$                  -$                   
37 180$                  180$                  -$                   
38 180$                  180$                  -$                   
39 181$                  181$                  -$                   
40 182$                  182$                  -$                   
41 182$                  182$                  -$                   
42 182$                  182$                  -$                   
43 182$                  182$                  -$                   


INDIVIDUAL ASSESSMENT IMPACT







Proposed Max Existing Max 
SA # Annual Pmt. Annual Pmt. Savings


INDIVIDUAL ASSESSMENT IMPACT


44 195$                  195$                  -$                   
45 200$                  200$                  -$                   
46 205$                  205$                  -$                   
47 207$                  207$                  -$                   
48 226$                  226$                  -$                   
49 227$                  227$                  -$                   
50 231$                  231$                  -$                   
51 233$                  233$                  -$                   
52 255$                  255$                  -$                   
53 258$                  258$                  -$                   
54 259$                  259$                  -$                   
55 259$                  259$                  -$                   
56 267$                  267$                  -$                   
57 273$                  273$                  -$                   
58 290$                  290$                  -$                   
59 293$                  293$                  -$                   
60 301$                  301$                  -$                   
61 310$                  310$                  -$                   
62 318$                  318$                  -$                   
63 323$                  323$                  -$                   
64 325$                  325$                  -$                   
65 328$                  328$                  -$                   
66 347$                  347$                  -$                   
67 349$                  349$                  -$                   
68 154$                  204$                  (50)$                   
69 160$                  213$                  (53)$                   
70 175$                  233$                  (57)$                   
71 177$                  235$                  (58)$                   
72 177$                  235$                  (58)$                   
73 178$                  236$                  (58)$                   
74 188$                  249$                  (62)$                   
75 189$                  252$                  (62)$                   
76 190$                  252$                  (62)$                   
77 194$                  258$                  (64)$                   
78 196$                  260$                  (64)$                   
79 217$                  289$                  (71)$                   
80 225$                  298$                  (74)$                   
81 226$                  301$                  (74)$                   
82 231$                  306$                  (76)$                   
83 233$                  310$                  (76)$                   
84 235$                  312$                  (77)$                   
85 242$                  321$                  (79)$                   
86 243$                  322$                  (80)$                   







Proposed Max Existing Max 
SA # Annual Pmt. Annual Pmt. Savings


INDIVIDUAL ASSESSMENT IMPACT


87 275$                  365$                  (90)$                   
88 283$                  376$                  (93)$                   
89 287$                  380$                  (94)$                   
90 288$                  382$                  (94)$                   
91 290$                  385$                  (95)$                   
92 310$                  411$                  (102)$                 
93 316$                  419$                  (104)$                 
94 318$                  422$                  (104)$                 
95 320$                  425$                  (105)$                 
96 331$                  439$                  (108)$                 
97 341$                  453$                  (112)$                 
98 362$                  481$                  (119)$                 
99 431$                  572$                  (141)$                 


100 436$                  579$                  (143)$                 
101 454$                  603$                  (149)$                 
102 457$                  606$                  (150)$                 
103 483$                  642$                  (158)$                 
104 487$                  646$                  (160)$                 
105 494$                  655$                  (162)$                 
106 498$                  661$                  (163)$                 
107 501$                  665$                  (164)$                 
108 439$                  697$                  (258)$                 
109 440$                  699$                  (259)$                 
110 463$                  735$                  (272)$                 
111 471$                  748$                  (277)$                 
112 479$                  761$                  (282)$                 
113 488$                  774$                  (287)$                 
114 527$                  836$                  (310)$                 
115 582$                  924$                  (342)$                 
116 589$                  935$                  (346)$                 
117 645$                  1,024$               (379)$                 
118 809$                  1,284$               (476)$                 
119 872$                  1,385$               (513)$                 







2


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


1 - 3.5% 1 101$              104$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          104$              
1 -Existing 1 104$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          104$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 1 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


2 - 3.5% 2 116$              120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          120$              
2 -Existing 2 120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          120$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 2 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


3 - 3.5% 3 116$              120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          120$              
3 -Existing 3 120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          120$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 3 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


4 - 3.5% 4 116$              120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          120$              
4 -Existing 4 120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          120$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 4 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


5 - 3.5% 5 155$              160$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          160$              
5 -Existing 5 160$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          160$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 5 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


6 - 3.5% 6 194$              200$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          200$              
6 -Existing 6 200$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          200$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 6 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


7 - 3.5% 7 194$              200$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          200$              
7 -Existing 7 200$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          200$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 7 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


8 - 3.5% 8 220$              52$           50$           49$           47$           46$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          243$              
8 -Existing 8 52$           50$           49$           47$           46$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          243$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 8 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


9 - 3.5% 9 232$              55$           53$           51$           50$           48$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          257$              
9 -Existing 9 55$           53$           51$           50$           48$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          257$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 9 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS







3


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


10 - 3.5% 10 232$              55$           53$           51$           50$           48$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          257$              
10 -Existing 10 55$           53$           51$           50$           48$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          257$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 10 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


11 - 3.5% 11 290$              68$           66$           64$           62$           60$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          321$              
11 -Existing 11 68$           66$           64$           62$           60$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          321$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 11 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


12 - 3.5% 12 290$              68$           66$           64$           62$           60$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          321$              
12 -Existing 12 68$           66$           64$           62$           60$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          321$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 12 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


13 - 3.5% 13 290$              68$           66$           64$           62$           60$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          321$              
13 -Existing 13 68$           66$           64$           62$           60$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          321$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 13 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


14 - 3.5% 14 330$              78$           75$           73$           71$           68$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          365$              
14 -Existing 14 78$           75$           73$           71$           68$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          365$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 14 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


15 - 3.5% 15 387$              91$           88$           86$           83$           80$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          428$              
15 -Existing 15 91$           88$           86$           83$           80$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          428$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 15 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


16 - 3.5% 16 387$              91$           88$           86$           83$           80$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          428$              
16 -Existing 16 91$           88$           86$           83$           80$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          428$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 16 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


17 - 3.5% 17 406$              95$           93$           90$           87$           84$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          449$              
17 -Existing 17 95$           93$           90$           87$           84$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          449$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 17 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


18 - 3.5% 18 440$              103$         100$         97$           94$           91$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          486$              
18 -Existing 18 103$         100$         97$           94$           91$           -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          486$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 18 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               







4


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


19 - 3.5% 19 531$              125$         121$         117$         114$         110$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          587$              
19 -Existing 19 125$         121$         117$         114$         110$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          587$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 19 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


20 - 3.5% 20 550$              129$         125$         122$         118$         114$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          608$              
20 -Existing 20 129$         125$         122$         118$         114$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          608$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 20 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


21 - 3.5% 21 550$              129$         125$         122$         118$         114$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          608$              
21 -Existing 21 129$         125$         122$         118$         114$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          608$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 21 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


22 - 3.5% 22 550$              129$         125$         122$         118$         114$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          608$              
22 -Existing 22 129$         125$         122$         118$         114$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          608$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 22 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


23 - 3.5% 23 559$              131$         128$         124$         120$         116$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          618$              
23 -Existing 23 131$         128$         124$         120$         116$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          618$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 23 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


24 - 3.5% 24 581$              136$         132$         128$         124$         120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          641$              
24 -Existing 24 136$         132$         128$         124$         120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          641$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 24 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


25 - 3.5% 25 581$              136$         132$         128$         124$         120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          641$              
25 -Existing 25 136$         132$         128$         124$         120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          641$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 25 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


26 - 3.5% 26 581$              136$         132$         128$         124$         120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          641$              
26 -Existing 26 136$         132$         128$         124$         120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          641$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 26 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


27 - 3.5% 27 660$              155$         150$         146$         141$         137$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          729$              
27 -Existing 27 155$         150$         146$         141$         137$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          729$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 27 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               







5


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


28 - 3.5% 28 694$              163$         158$         153$         148$         144$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          767$              
28 -Existing 28 163$         158$         153$         148$         144$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          767$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 28 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


29 - 3.5% 29 699$              164$         159$         155$         150$         145$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          773$              
29 -Existing 29 164$         159$         155$         150$         145$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          773$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 29 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


30 - 3.5% 30 747$              176$         170$         165$         160$         155$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          825$              
30 -Existing 30 176$         170$         165$         160$         155$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          825$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 30 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


31 - 3.5% 31 766$              180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              
31 -Existing 31 180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 31 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


32 - 3.5% 32 766$              180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              
32 -Existing 32 180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 32 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


33 - 3.5% 33 766$              180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              
33 -Existing 33 180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 33 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


34 - 3.5% 34 766$              180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              
34 -Existing 34 180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 34 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


35 - 3.5% 35 766$              180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              
35 -Existing 35 180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 35 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


36 - 3.5% 36 766$              180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              
36 -Existing 36 180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 36 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               







6


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


37 - 3.5% 37 766$              180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              
37 -Existing 37 180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 37 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


38 - 3.5% 38 766$              180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              
38 -Existing 38 180$         175$         169$         164$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          847$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 38 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


39 - 3.5% 39 770$              181$         176$         170$         165$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          851$              
39 -Existing 39 181$         176$         170$         165$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          851$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 39 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


40 - 3.5% 40 774$              182$         176$         171$         166$         160$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          855$              
40 -Existing 40 182$         176$         171$         166$         160$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          855$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 40 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


41 - 3.5% 41 774$              182$         176$         171$         166$         160$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          855$              
41 -Existing 41 182$         176$         171$         166$         160$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          855$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 41 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


42 - 3.5% 42 774$              182$         176$         171$         166$         160$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          855$              
42 -Existing 42 182$         176$         171$         166$         160$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          855$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 42 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


43 - 3.5% 43 774$              182$         176$         171$         166$         160$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          855$              
43 -Existing 43 182$         176$         171$         166$         160$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          855$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 43 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


44 - 3.5% 44 832$              195$         190$         184$         178$         172$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          919$              
44 -Existing 44 195$         190$         184$         178$         172$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          919$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 44 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


45 - 3.5% 45 851$              200$         194$         188$         182$         176$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          941$              
45 -Existing 45 200$         194$         188$         182$         176$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          941$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 45 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               







7


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


46 - 3.5% 46 871$              205$         199$         192$         186$         180$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          962$              
46 -Existing 46 205$         199$         192$         186$         180$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          962$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 46 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


47 - 3.5% 47 881$              207$         201$         195$         189$         182$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          974$              
47 -Existing 47 207$         201$         195$         189$         182$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          974$              


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 47 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


48 - 3.5% 48 963$              226$         219$         213$         206$         199$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,064$           
48 -Existing 48 226$         219$         213$         206$         199$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,064$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 48 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


49 - 3.5% 49 968$              227$         221$         214$         207$         200$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,069$           
49 -Existing 49 227$         221$         214$         207$         200$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,069$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 49 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


50 - 3.5% 50 983$              231$         224$         217$         210$         204$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,086$           
50 -Existing 50 231$         224$         217$         210$         204$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,086$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 50 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


51 - 3.5% 51 990$              233$         226$         219$         212$         205$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,094$           
51 -Existing 51 233$         226$         219$         212$         205$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,094$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 51 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


52 - 3.5% 52 1,084$           255$         247$         239$         232$         224$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,197$           
52 -Existing 52 255$         247$         239$         232$         224$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,197$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 52 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


53 - 3.5% 53 1,097$           258$         250$         242$         235$         227$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,212$           
53 -Existing 53 258$         250$         242$         235$         227$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,212$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 53 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


54 - 3.5% 54 1,100$           259$         251$         243$         235$         228$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,216$           
54 -Existing 54 259$         251$         243$         235$         228$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,216$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 54 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               







8


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


55 - 3.5% 55 1,100$           259$         251$         243$         235$         228$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,216$           
55 -Existing 55 259$         251$         243$         235$         228$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,216$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 55 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


56 - 3.5% 56 1,134$           267$         259$         251$         243$         235$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,253$           
56 -Existing 56 267$         259$         251$         243$         235$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,253$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 56 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


57 - 3.5% 57 1,161$           273$         265$         257$         248$         240$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,283$           
57 -Existing 57 273$         265$         257$         248$         240$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,283$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 57 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


58 - 3.5% 58 1,235$           290$         282$         273$         264$         256$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,364$           
58 -Existing 58 290$         282$         273$         264$         256$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,364$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 58 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


59 - 3.5% 59 1,245$           293$         284$         275$         266$         258$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,376$           
59 -Existing 59 293$         284$         275$         266$         258$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,376$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 59 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


60 - 3.5% 60 1,280$           301$         292$         283$         274$         265$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,415$           
60 -Existing 60 301$         292$         283$         274$         265$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,415$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 60 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


61 - 3.5% 61 1,320$           310$         301$         292$         282$         273$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,459$           
61 -Existing 61 310$         301$         292$         282$         273$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,459$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 61 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


62 - 3.5% 62 1,355$           318$         309$         299$         290$         280$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,497$           
62 -Existing 62 318$         309$         299$         290$         280$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,497$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 62 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


63 - 3.5% 63 1,374$           323$         313$         304$         294$         284$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,518$           
63 -Existing 63 323$         313$         304$         294$         284$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,518$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 63 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               







9


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


64 - 3.5% 64 1,384$           325$         315$         306$         296$         286$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,529$           
64 -Existing 64 325$         315$         306$         296$         286$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,529$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 64 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


65 - 3.5% 65 1,396$           328$         318$         308$         299$         289$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,542$           
65 -Existing 65 328$         318$         308$         299$         289$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,542$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 65 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


66 - 3.5% 66 1,477$           347$         337$         326$         316$         306$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,632$           
66 -Existing 66 347$         337$         326$         316$         306$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,632$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 66 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


67 - 3.5% 67 1,486$           349$         339$         328$         318$         308$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,642$           
67 -Existing 67 349$         339$         328$         318$         308$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,642$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 67 -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$               


68 - 3.5% 68 1,510$           154$         150$         147$         143$         139$         136$         132$         129$         125$         122$         118$         115$         111$         108$         104$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,933$           
68 -Existing 68 204$         199$         193$         188$         183$         177$         172$         167$         162$         156$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,801$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 68 50$           49$           47$           45$           43$           42$           40$           38$           36$           34$           (118)$       (115)$       (111)$       (108)$       (104)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (132)$            


69 - 3.5% 69 1,578$           160$         157$         153$         149$         146$         142$         138$         135$         131$         127$         124$         120$         116$         113$         109$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,019$           
69 -Existing 69 213$         207$         202$         196$         191$         185$         180$         174$         169$         163$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          1,881$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 69 53$           51$           49$           47$           45$           43$           42$           40$           38$           36$           (124)$       (120)$       (116)$       (113)$       (109)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (138)$            


70 - 3.5% 70 1,723$           175$         171$         167$         163$         159$         155$         151$         147$         143$         139$         135$         131$         127$         123$         119$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,205$           
70 -Existing 70 233$         227$         221$         214$         208$         202$         196$         190$         184$         178$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,054$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 70 57$           55$           53$           51$           49$           47$           45$           43$           41$           39$           (135)$       (131)$       (127)$       (123)$       (119)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (151)$            


71 - 3.5% 71 1,738$           177$         173$         169$         165$         160$         156$         152$         148$         144$         140$         136$         132$         128$         124$         120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,225$           
71 -Existing 71 235$         229$         222$         216$         210$         204$         198$         192$         186$         180$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,073$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 71 58$           56$           54$           52$           50$           48$           46$           44$           42$           40$           (136)$       (132)$       (128)$       (124)$       (120)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (152)$            


72 - 3.5% 72 1,738$           177$         173$         169$         165$         160$         156$         152$         148$         144$         140$         136$         132$         128$         124$         120$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,225$           
72 -Existing 72 235$         229$         222$         216$         210$         204$         198$         192$         186$         180$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,073$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 72 58$           56$           54$           52$           50$           48$           46$           44$           42$           40$           (136)$       (132)$       (128)$       (124)$       (120)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (152)$            







10


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


73 - 3.5% 73 1,750$           178$         174$         170$         166$         162$         157$         153$         149$         145$         141$         137$         133$         129$         125$         121$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,240$           
73 -Existing 73 236$         230$         224$         218$         212$         206$         199$         193$         187$         181$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,087$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 73 58$           56$           54$           52$           50$           48$           46$           44$           42$           40$           (137)$       (133)$       (129)$       (125)$       (121)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (153)$            


74 - 3.5% 74 1,846$           188$         183$         179$         175$         170$         166$         162$         157$         153$         149$         145$         140$         136$         132$         127$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,362$           
74 -Existing 74 249$         243$         236$         230$         223$         217$         210$         204$         197$         191$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,201$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 74 62$           59$           57$           55$           53$           51$           49$           46$           44$           42$           (145)$       (140)$       (136)$       (132)$       (127)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (161)$            


75 - 3.5% 75 1,863$           189$         185$         181$         176$         172$         168$         163$         159$         155$         150$         146$         142$         137$         133$         129$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,385$           
75 -Existing 75 252$         245$         238$         232$         225$         219$         212$         206$         199$         193$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,222$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 75 62$           60$           58$           56$           53$           51$           49$           47$           45$           43$           (146)$       (142)$       (137)$       (133)$       (129)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (163)$            


76 - 3.5% 76 1,865$           190$         185$         181$         177$         172$         168$         164$         159$         155$         150$         146$         142$         137$         133$         129$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,387$           
76 -Existing 76 252$         245$         239$         232$         226$         219$         213$         206$         200$         193$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,224$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 76 62$           60$           58$           56$           53$           51$           49$           47$           45$           43$           (146)$       (142)$       (137)$       (133)$       (129)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (163)$            


77 - 3.5% 77 1,909$           194$         190$         185$         181$         176$         172$         167$         163$         158$         154$         150$         145$         141$         136$         132$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,444$           
77 -Existing 77 258$         251$         244$         238$         231$         224$         218$         211$         204$         198$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,277$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 77 64$           61$           59$           57$           55$           53$           50$           48$           46$           44$           (150)$       (145)$       (141)$       (136)$       (132)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (167)$            


78 - 3.5% 78 1,928$           196$         192$         187$         183$         178$         174$         169$         165$         160$         156$         151$         147$         142$         138$         133$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,468$           
78 -Existing 78 260$         254$         247$         240$         233$         227$         220$         213$         206$         200$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,299$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 78 64$           62$           60$           58$           55$           53$           51$           49$           46$           44$           (151)$       (147)$       (142)$       (138)$       (133)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (169)$            


79 - 3.5% 79 2,138$           217$         212$         207$         202$         197$         192$         187$         182$         177$         172$         167$         163$         158$         153$         148$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,737$           
79 -Existing 79 289$         281$         274$         266$         259$         251$         244$         236$         229$         221$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,550$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 79 71$           69$           66$           64$           61$           59$           56$           54$           51$           49$           (167)$       (163)$       (158)$       (153)$       (148)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (187)$            


80 - 3.5% 80 2,209$           225$         219$         214$         209$         204$         199$         194$         189$         183$         178$         173$         168$         163$         158$         152$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,828$           
80 -Existing 80 298$         291$         283$         275$         267$         260$         252$         244$         236$         229$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,635$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 80 74$           71$           68$           66$           63$           61$           58$           56$           53$           50$           (173)$       (168)$       (163)$       (158)$       (152)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (193)$            


81 - 3.5% 81 2,226$           226$         221$         216$         211$         206$         200$         195$         190$         185$         180$         174$         169$         164$         159$         154$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,849$           
81 -Existing 81 301$         293$         285$         277$         269$         262$         254$         246$         238$         230$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,655$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 81 74$           72$           69$           66$           64$           61$           59$           56$           53$           51$           (174)$       (169)$       (164)$       (159)$       (154)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (195)$            







11


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


82 - 3.5% 82 2,269$           231$         225$         220$         215$         209$         204$         199$         194$         188$         183$         178$         172$         167$         162$         157$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,904$           
82 -Existing 82 306$         298$         290$         282$         275$         267$         259$         251$         243$         235$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,705$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 82 76$           73$           70$           68$           65$           62$           60$           57$           54$           52$           (178)$       (172)$       (167)$       (162)$       (157)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (199)$            


83 - 3.5% 83 2,293$           233$         228$         222$         217$         212$         206$         201$         196$         190$         185$         180$         174$         169$         164$         158$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,935$           
83 -Existing 83 310$         302$         294$         286$         277$         269$         261$         253$         245$         237$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,735$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 83 76$           74$           71$           68$           66$           63$           60$           58$           55$           52$           (180)$       (174)$       (169)$       (164)$       (158)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (201)$            


84 - 3.5% 84 2,310$           235$         229$         224$         219$         213$         208$         203$         197$         192$         186$         181$         176$         170$         165$         159$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,957$           
84 -Existing 84 312$         304$         296$         288$         280$         271$         263$         255$         247$         239$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,755$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 84 77$           74$           72$           69$           66$           64$           61$           58$           55$           53$           (181)$       (176)$       (170)$       (165)$       (159)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (202)$            


85 - 3.5% 85 2,377$           242$         236$         231$         225$         219$         214$         208$         203$         197$         192$         186$         181$         175$         170$         164$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,043$           
85 -Existing 85 321$         313$         304$         296$         288$         279$         271$         263$         254$         246$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,835$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 85 79$           76$           74$           71$           68$           65$           63$           60$           57$           54$           (186)$       (181)$       (175)$       (170)$       (164)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (208)$            


86 - 3.5% 86 2,386$           243$         237$         231$         226$         220$         215$         209$         204$         198$         192$         187$         181$         176$         170$         165$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,054$           
86 -Existing 86 322$         314$         305$         297$         289$         280$         272$         264$         255$         247$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          2,845$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 86 80$           77$           74$           71$           68$           66$           63$           60$           57$           54$           (187)$       (181)$       (176)$       (170)$       (165)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (209)$            


87 - 3.5% 87 2,703$           275$         269$         262$         256$         250$         243$         237$         231$         224$         218$         212$         205$         199$         193$         187$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,460$           
87 -Existing 87 365$         355$         346$         337$         327$         318$         308$         299$         289$         280$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,224$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 87 90$           87$           84$           81$           77$           74$           71$           68$           65$           62$           (212)$       (205)$       (199)$       (193)$       (187)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (237)$            


88 - 3.5% 88 2,784$           283$         277$         270$         264$         257$         251$         244$         238$         231$         225$         218$         212$         205$         199$         192$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,564$           
88 -Existing 88 376$         366$         356$         347$         337$         327$         317$         308$         298$         288$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,320$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 88 93$           90$           86$           83$           80$           77$           73$           70$           67$           64$           (218)$       (212)$       (205)$       (199)$       (192)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (244)$            


89 - 3.5% 89 2,818$           287$         280$         273$         267$         260$         254$         247$         240$         234$         227$         221$         214$         208$         201$         194$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,607$           
89 -Existing 89 380$         371$         361$         351$         341$         331$         321$         311$         302$         292$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,361$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 89 94$           91$           87$           84$           81$           78$           74$           71$           68$           64$           (221)$       (214)$       (208)$       (201)$       (194)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (247)$            


90 - 3.5% 90 2,832$           288$         281$         275$         268$         261$         255$         248$         242$         235$         228$         222$         215$         209$         202$         195$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,624$           
90 -Existing 90 382$         372$         362$         353$         343$         333$         323$         313$         303$         293$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,377$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 90 94$           91$           88$           84$           81$           78$           75$           71$           68$           65$           (222)$       (215)$       (209)$       (202)$       (195)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (248)$            







12


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


91 - 3.5% 91 2,855$           290$         284$         277$         270$         264$         257$         250$         244$         237$         230$         224$         217$         210$         204$         197$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,654$           
91 -Existing 91 385$         375$         365$         355$         345$         335$         325$         315$         305$         295$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,404$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 91 95$           92$           89$           85$           82$           79$           75$           72$           69$           65$           (224)$       (217)$       (210)$       (204)$       (197)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (250)$            


92 - 3.5% 92 3,047$           310$         303$         296$         288$         281$         274$         267$         260$         253$         246$         239$         232$         224$         217$         210$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,901$           
92 -Existing 92 411$         401$         390$         379$         369$         358$         347$         337$         326$         315$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,634$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 92 102$         98$           94$           91$           87$           84$           80$           77$           73$           70$           (239)$       (232)$       (224)$       (217)$       (210)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (267)$            


93 - 3.5% 93 3,107$           316$         309$         301$         294$         287$         280$         272$         265$         258$         251$         243$         236$         229$         222$         214$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,977$           
93 -Existing 93 419$         409$         398$         387$         376$         365$         354$         343$         332$         322$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,705$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 93 104$         100$         96$           93$           89$           85$           82$           78$           75$           71$           (243)$       (236)$       (229)$       (222)$       (214)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (272)$            


94 - 3.5% 94 3,129$           318$         311$         304$         296$         289$         282$         274$         267$         260$         252$         245$         238$         231$         223$         216$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          4,005$           
94 -Existing 94 422$         412$         401$         390$         379$         368$         357$         346$         335$         324$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,732$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 94 104$         101$         97$           93$           90$           86$           82$           79$           75$           71$           (245)$       (238)$       (231)$       (223)$       (216)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (274)$            


95 - 3.5% 95 3,147$           320$         313$         305$         298$         291$         283$         276$         269$         261$         254$         247$         239$         232$         224$         217$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          4,028$           
95 -Existing 95 425$         414$         403$         392$         381$         370$         359$         348$         337$         326$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,753$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 95 105$         101$         98$           94$           90$           87$           83$           79$           76$           72$           (247)$       (239)$       (232)$       (224)$       (217)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (275)$            


96 - 3.5% 96 3,252$           331$         323$         315$         308$         300$         293$         285$         278$         270$         262$         255$         247$         240$         232$         224$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          4,163$           
96 -Existing 96 439$         428$         416$         405$         393$         382$         371$         359$         348$         337$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          3,878$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 96 108$         105$         101$         97$           93$           89$           86$           82$           78$           74$           (255)$       (247)$       (240)$       (232)$       (224)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (285)$            


97 - 3.5% 97 3,358$           341$         334$         326$         318$         310$         302$         294$         287$         279$         271$         263$         255$         247$         240$         232$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          4,298$           
97 -Existing 97 453$         442$         430$         418$         406$         395$         383$         371$         359$         348$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          4,004$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 97 112$         108$         104$         100$         96$           92$           88$           85$           81$           77$           (263)$       (255)$       (247)$       (240)$       (232)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (294)$            


98 - 3.5% 98 3,564$           362$         354$         346$         337$         329$         321$         312$         304$         296$         288$         279$         271$         263$         254$         246$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          4,562$           
98 -Existing 98 481$         469$         456$         444$         431$         419$         406$         394$         381$         369$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          4,251$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 98 119$         115$         110$         106$         102$         98$           94$           90$           86$           81$           (279)$       (271)$       (263)$       (254)$       (246)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (312)$            


99 - 3.5% 99 4,235$           431$         421$         411$         401$         391$         381$         371$         361$         352$         342$         332$         322$         312$         302$         292$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,421$           
99 -Existing 99 572$         557$         542$         527$         512$         498$         483$         468$         453$         438$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,050$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 99 141$         136$         131$         126$         121$         116$         112$         107$         102$         97$           (332)$       (322)$       (312)$       (302)$       (292)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (371)$            







13


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


100 - 3.5% 100 4,287$           436$         426$         416$         406$         396$         386$         376$         366$         356$         346$         336$         326$         316$         306$         296$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,488$           
100 -Existing 100 579$         564$         549$         534$         519$         504$         489$         474$         459$         444$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,113$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 100 143$         138$         133$         128$         123$         118$         113$         108$         103$         98$           (336)$       (326)$       (316)$       (306)$       (296)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (375)$            


101 - 3.5% 101 4,470$           454$         444$         434$         423$         413$         402$         392$         381$         371$         361$         350$         340$         329$         319$         308$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,721$           
101 -Existing 101 603$         588$         572$         556$         541$         525$         510$         494$         478$         463$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,330$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 101 149$         144$         139$         133$         128$         123$         118$         112$         107$         102$         (350)$       (340)$       (329)$       (319)$       (308)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (391)$            


102 - 3.5% 102 4,492$           457$         446$         436$         425$         415$         404$         394$         383$         373$         362$         352$         341$         331$         320$         310$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,749$           
102 -Existing 102 606$         591$         575$         559$         543$         528$         512$         496$         481$         465$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,356$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 102 150$         144$         139$         134$         129$         124$         118$         113$         108$         103$         (352)$       (341)$       (331)$       (320)$       (310)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (393)$            


103 - 3.5% 103 4,755$           483$         472$         461$         450$         439$         428$         417$         406$         395$         384$         372$         361$         350$         339$         328$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          6,086$           
103 -Existing 103 642$         625$         609$         592$         575$         559$         542$         525$         509$         492$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,670$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 103 158$         153$         147$         142$         136$         131$         125$         120$         114$         109$         (372)$       (361)$       (350)$       (339)$       (328)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (416)$            


104 - 3.5% 104 4,786$           487$         475$         464$         453$         442$         431$         420$         408$         397$         386$         375$         364$         353$         341$         330$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          6,126$           
104 -Existing 104 646$         629$         613$         596$         579$         562$         546$         529$         512$         495$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,707$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 104 160$         154$         148$         143$         137$         132$         126$         120$         115$         109$         (375)$       (364)$       (353)$       (341)$       (330)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (419)$            


105 - 3.5% 105 4,855$           494$         482$         471$         460$         448$         437$         426$         414$         403$         392$         380$         369$         358$         346$         335$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          6,215$           
105 -Existing 105 655$         638$         621$         605$         588$         571$         554$         537$         520$         503$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,790$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 105 162$         156$         151$         145$         139$         134$         128$         122$         117$         111$         (380)$       (369)$       (358)$       (346)$       (335)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (425)$            


106 - 3.5% 106 4,896$           498$         486$         475$         464$         452$         441$         429$         418$         406$         395$         384$         372$         361$         349$         338$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          6,267$           
106 -Existing 106 661$         644$         627$         610$         592$         575$         558$         541$         524$         507$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,839$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 106 163$         158$         152$         146$         140$         135$         129$         123$         118$         112$         (384)$       (372)$       (361)$       (349)$       (338)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (428)$            


107 - 3.5% 107 4,927$           501$         489$         478$         466$         455$         443$         432$         420$         409$         397$         386$         374$         363$         351$         340$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          6,306$           
107 -Existing 107 665$         648$         631$         613$         596$         579$         562$         544$         527$         510$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          5,875$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 107 164$         158$         153$         147$         141$         135$         130$         124$         118$         112$         (386)$       (374)$       (363)$       (351)$       (340)$       -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          (431)$            


108 - 3.5% 108 5,165$           439$         430$         421$         412$         403$         394$         385$         376$         367$         358$         349$         340$         331$         321$         312$         303$         294$         285$         276$         267$         7,062$           
108 -Existing 108 697$         679$         661$         643$         625$         607$         589$         571$         553$         535$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          6,159$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 108 258$         249$         240$         231$         222$         213$         204$         195$         186$         177$         (349)$       (340)$       (331)$       (321)$       (312)$       (303)$       (294)$       (285)$       (276)$       (267)$       (904)$            







14


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


109 - 3.5% 109 5,178$           440$         431$         422$         413$         404$         395$         386$         377$         368$         359$         350$         340$         331$         322$         313$         304$         295$         286$         277$         268$         7,081$           
109 -Existing 109 699$         681$         663$         645$         627$         608$         590$         572$         554$         536$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          6,175$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 109 259$         250$         241$         232$         223$         214$         205$         195$         186$         177$         (350)$       (340)$       (331)$       (322)$       (313)$       (304)$       (295)$       (286)$       (277)$       (268)$       (906)$            


110 - 3.5% 110 5,442$           463$         453$         444$         434$         424$         415$         405$         396$         386$         377$         367$         358$         348$         339$         329$         320$         310$         301$         291$         282$         7,442$           
110 -Existing 110 735$         716$         697$         678$         659$         639$         620$         601$         582$         563$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          6,490$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 110 272$         263$         253$         244$         234$         224$         215$         205$         196$         186$         (367)$       (358)$       (348)$       (339)$       (329)$       (320)$       (310)$       (301)$       (291)$       (282)$       (952)$            


111 - 3.5% 111 5,544$           471$         462$         452$         442$         432$         423$         413$         403$         394$         384$         374$         365$         355$         345$         335$         326$         316$         306$         297$         287$         7,582$           
111 -Existing 111 748$         729$         710$         690$         671$         651$         632$         613$         593$         574$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          6,611$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 111 277$         268$         258$         248$         238$         229$         219$         209$         200$         190$         (374)$       (365)$       (355)$       (345)$       (335)$       (326)$       (316)$       (306)$       (297)$       (287)$       (970)$            


112 - 3.5% 112 5,638$           479$         469$         460$         450$         440$         430$         420$         410$         400$         390$         381$         371$         361$         351$         341$         331$         321$         312$         302$         292$         7,710$           
112 -Existing 112 761$         741$         722$         702$         682$         662$         643$         623$         603$         584$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          6,723$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 112 282$         272$         262$         252$         242$         233$         223$         213$         203$         193$         (381)$       (371)$       (361)$       (351)$       (341)$       (331)$       (321)$       (312)$       (302)$       (292)$       (987)$            


113 - 3.5% 113 5,737$           488$         478$         468$         457$         447$         437$         427$         417$         407$         397$         387$         377$         367$         357$         347$         337$         327$         317$         307$         297$         7,845$           
113 -Existing 113 774$         754$         734$         714$         694$         674$         654$         634$         614$         594$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          6,841$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 113 287$         277$         267$         257$         247$         237$         227$         217$         207$         196$         (387)$       (377)$       (367)$       (357)$       (347)$       (337)$       (327)$       (317)$       (307)$       (297)$       (1,004)$         


114 - 3.5% 114 6,196$           527$         516$         505$         494$         483$         472$         462$         451$         440$         429$         418$         407$         397$         386$         375$         364$         353$         342$         331$         321$         8,473$           
114 -Existing 114 836$         815$         793$         771$         750$         728$         706$         685$         663$         641$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          7,388$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 114 310$         299$         288$         277$         266$         256$         245$         234$         223$         212$         (418)$       (407)$       (397)$       (386)$       (375)$       (364)$       (353)$       (342)$       (331)$       (321)$       (1,084)$         


115 - 3.5% 115 6,846$           582$         570$         558$         546$         534$         522$         510$         498$         486$         474$         462$         450$         438$         426$         414$         402$         390$         378$         366$         354$         9,362$           
115 -Existing 115 924$         900$         876$         852$         828$         804$         780$         756$         733$         709$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          8,164$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 115 342$         330$         318$         306$         294$         282$         270$         258$         246$         234$         (462)$       (450)$       (438)$       (426)$       (414)$       (402)$       (390)$       (378)$       (366)$       (354)$       (1,198)$         


116 - 3.5% 116 6,928$           589$         577$         565$         553$         540$         528$         516$         504$         492$         480$         468$         456$         443$         431$         419$         407$         395$         383$         371$         359$         9,474$           
116 -Existing 116 935$         911$         887$         863$         838$         814$         790$         766$         741$         717$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          8,262$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 116 346$         334$         322$         310$         298$         286$         274$         262$         249$         237$         (468)$       (456)$       (443)$       (431)$       (419)$       (407)$       (395)$       (383)$       (371)$       (359)$       (1,212)$         


117 - 3.5% 117 7,582$           645$         631$         618$         605$         591$         578$         565$         552$         538$         525$         512$         499$         485$         472$         459$         445$         432$         419$         406$         392$         10,369$         
117 -Existing 117 1,024$      997$         971$         944$         917$         891$         864$         838$         811$         785$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          9,042$           


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 117 379$         366$         353$         339$         326$         313$         300$         286$         273$         260$         (512)$       (499)$       (485)$       (472)$       (459)$       (445)$       (432)$       (419)$       (406)$       (392)$       (1,327)$         







15


Scenarios SA Number
 Principal 
Amount 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 Total 


ANNUAL SAVINGS BY SCENARIO VERSUS EXISTING TERMS


118 - 3.5% 118 9,514$           809$         792$         775$         759$         742$         725$         709$         692$         676$         659$         642$         626$         609$         592$         576$         559$         542$         526$         509$         492$         13,011$         
118 -Existing 118 1,284$      1,251$      1,218$      1,185$      1,151$      1,118$      1,085$      1,051$      1,018$      985$         -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          11,346$         


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 118 476$         459$         442$         426$         409$         392$         376$         359$         343$         326$         (642)$       (626)$       (609)$       (592)$       (576)$       (559)$       (542)$       (526)$       (509)$       (492)$       (1,665)$         


119 - 3.5% 119 10,258$         872$         854$         836$         818$         800$         782$         764$         746$         728$         710$         692$         674$         656$         639$         621$         603$         585$         567$         549$         531$         14,027$         
119 -Existing 119 1,385$      1,349$      1,313$      1,277$      1,241$      1,205$      1,169$      1,133$      1,098$      1,062$      -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          12,232$         


Annual Savings @ 3.5% 119 513$         495$         477$         459$         441$         423$         405$         387$         369$         351$         (692)$       (674)$       (656)$       (639)$       (621)$       (603)$       (585)$       (567)$       (549)$       (531)$       (1,795)$         





		12a-R-XX-2020- 2020 Special Assesment Alternative Payment Schedules

		12b-R-XX-2020- 2020 Special Assesment Alternative Payment Schedules






Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, August 25, 2020 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open at 


6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/711630901. You can also dial in 


using your phone: +1 (646) 749-3129.  Access Code: 711-630-901.  


 . 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, 


Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, Timothy Riley and Brett Schumacher  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please  notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


2. Minutes and Reports:  


Utilities (7/20/20); Landmarks (6/11/20): Parks & Rec (6/17/20); Whitewater Park (6/15/20); 


Finance (7/28/20) 


 


3. Public Comment Period: 


 If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and 


submit it by 6:30 p.m. on August 25, 2020. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 
4. Consent Agenda 


A. August 11, 2020 Council Minutes  


B. Stoughton Utilities July Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities June Financial 


Summary; Stoughton Utilities June Statistical Report  


C. R-126-2020- Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue 


Operator Licenses  


 
 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. R-123-2020- Sidewalk Installation Policy for the City of Stoughton 


 
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/711630901

mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





 


6. O-17-2020- An ordinance amending Zoning Code Section 78-407 & 78-408 of the Stoughton 


Municipal Code of Ordinances (Plan Commission recommended approval 7-0)   


          FIRST READING 


 


7. R- 127-2020-  Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton 


Utilities 2019 Wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system Compliance 


Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) (Utilities recommended approval 6-0 on August 17, 2020)  


 


8. R-128-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to name the Stoughton Utilities 


Director and/or the Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller as Authorized Representatives to file 


applications for financial assistance from the State of Wisconsin Environmental Improvement Fund 


(Utilities recommended approval 6-0 on August 17, 2020) 


 


9. R-129-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with 


True North Consultants for Site Investigation Services for the Former Public Works Facility 


(Finance meets on August 25, 2020) 


 


10. R-130-2020- Termination of Tax Incremental District (TID) No. 3 and authorization to distribute 


excess increment to overlying taxing jurisdictions (Finance recommended approval 5-0 on July 28, 


2020)  


 


11. R- 131-2020- Authorizing and Directing the proper city official(s) to Amend the City of Stoughton 


Policy for the Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts and the Approval of TIF Projects 


(Finance recommended approval 5-0 on August 11, 2020)  


 


12. R-132-2020- Resolution offering alternative payment arrangements to individuals and businesses 


who will be levied special assessments for the improvement of curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway 


aprons, carriage walks, retaining walls, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements 


for 2020 Projects (Finance recommended approval 5-0 on August 11, 2020) 


ADJOURNMENT  


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs o f disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch  


 








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\08-25-2020\Minutes\01-Landmarks Minutes 6-11-20.docx 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


Thursday June 11, 2020 – 6:30 pm 


Virtual 
 


Members Present:  Peggy Veregin, Chair; Todd Hubing; Greg Pigarelli, Secretary; Jean Ligocki; 


Kimberly Cook; Alan Hedstrom, Vice-Chair and Kristi Panthofer 


Staff:  Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 


Absent: None 


Guests: None 


Press: None 


 


1. Call to order.  Veregin called the meeting to order at 6:37 pm. 
 


2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of May 14, 2020.   


Motion by Hedstrom to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Cook.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


3. Review and provide feedback regarding proposed new downtown wayfinding and parking 


signage. 


Hedstrom suggested using public safety building instead of police department. 


Hedstrom suggested adding the middle school to the wayfinding signage. 


Cook stated different colors could be used for city services such as blue, and attractions could be 


a different color such as brown. 


Ligocki suggested adding "Library" to the wayfinding signage.  Hedstrom agrees. 


Panthofer suggested the tower logo could be centered better in the arched panel. 


The group agreed there appears to be a lot of words on the wayfinding signage.  Would using a 


different font and upper case/lower case letters help make the signs more readable? 


Cook suggested that if fewer signs in the downtown shopping core would not impact safety and 


traffic flow, reducing the number of signs could in turn reduce visual clutter. 


The group thought that overall the design was appealing. 


The group would like Stacey to provide feedback to Public Works Director Brett Hebert, 


including the suggestions in these minutes and specifically to add library to the wayfinding 


signs, and if possible reduce the number of signs in the downtown shopping core, and use 


fonts/capital and lower case letters for readability if fewer words aren’t possible.  The group 


overall likes the design of the signage. 


 


 


 


 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


6/11/20 


Page 2 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\08-25-2020\Minutes\01-Landmarks Minutes 6-11-20.docx  


4. Update: Power Plant. 


The Commission discussed the UW students’ presentation video and preferred design. 


Veregin clarified to the Commission that this is informal feedback and is not intended to take 


the place of formal project review by the Commission when a design is proposed. 


Overall, members liked the project and thought the students did a good job. 


Veregin stated the students did a good job following the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 


Rehabilitation for additions and clearly distinguishing the historic building from the new 


construction; she likes the more modern glass used on the exterior of the addition and suggested 


clear glass and a setback of the side walls so there is a return.  Veregin thought the height was a 


bit high for the parapet wall.  Hubing believes they are trying to hide some air-handling 


equipment. 


Veregin stated there are 2 new openings in the existing wall for the addition.  The decorative 


framing ornament around those openings and the divided lights at the windows should be 


plainer and should not mimic the appearance of the historic arched openings.  The goal is to 


avoid a false sense of history (people thinking those openings were always there). Veregin likes 


the open interior with partial loft space. 


Veregin suggested providing these minutes to the RDA regarding Commission feedback but 


could also provide a memo if that is preferred. 


 


5. Discuss 2020 Preservation Awards. 


Veregin stated she sent out applications to landmark property owners for preservation awards 


which are to be returned by the end of July for consideration at the August 13th meeting. 


 


There has been one application for a service award and information provided for a preservation 


award. 


 


Veregin stated the dragons are back on the Dragon House.  Hedstrom stated there is a nice 


article in the Hub about the Dragon House.  Veregin may write a letter to the editor as a follow-


up about the Dragon House. 


 


6. Commission Reports/Calendar. 


The group discussed the Downtown Local District planning in light of not being able to meet in 


person.  Ligocki asked if the group is ready to meet in person if there was a big enough room to 


keep proper distance.  Several members agreed they would meet in person. 


 


7. Future agenda items. 


The group discussed timing to revisit the proposed Depot Hill Historic District in light of the 


Doughboy building at 501 E. Main Street potentially on the market. 


 


 


 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


6/11/20 


Page 3 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\08-25-2020\Minutes\01-Landmarks Minutes 6-11-20.docx  


8. Adjournment. Motion by Pigarelli to adjourn at 7:45 pm, 2nd by Ligocki.  Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
 
Tuesday, June 16, 2020 at 6:00 pm  
 
This is a virtual meeting. Please use the information below to attend:  


Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/130812285 You can also dial in using your phone. United States: +1 


(571) 317-3112 Access Code: 130-812-285  


 
Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Ben Heili, Tim Riley, Mayor Tim 
Swadley and Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
 
Call to Order  
Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm.  
 
 
Approval of Minutes from May 19, 2020 and June 3, 2020  
Motion to approve minutes by; Heili seconded by Hirsch  
Motion carried unanimously  


 


Communication  


 


Director Glynn communicated the results of the meeting with Town of Pleasant Springs on 


6-11-20 and AdHoc Whitewater Steering Committee meeting on 6-15-20. 


 


Rotary Park Improvements Bid Selection (Discussion & Possible Action)  
Motion to Rebid the Rotary Park Project by; Hirsch seconded by Riley  


Motion carried unanimously 


 


Future Agenda Items  


 


Park Design Guidelines  


Bjoin Park Improvements 


Recreation Update 


Review Whitewater Grants/Timelines 
 


 
 
Motion to adjourn by Heili seconded by Riley  
Motion carried unanimously at 6:23 pm. 
 







 


 


WHITEWATER PARK STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
June 15, 2020 
8:00 AM 
Virtual Meeting  
 
Present Members: Regina Hirsch, Pete Manley, Alex DeSmidt, Brandon Holstein, Bob Diebel, 
and Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn 
Guests: Mark Hale, John Bottorof, Darren Hartberg, Marty Melchior, David Pfeiffer, Dan Hanson, 
Tim Swadley, Jennifer Wendt, Audra Dalsoren, Gary Giesfeldt, Andy Paulios, John Seidlitz, Laura 
Dvis, Mack Krumme, Rick Kalvelage, Merle Lebakken, Eric Olsen, John McLain, Michelle Denk, 
Erin Savaske 
 
1. Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 8:01 am.  
 
2. Approval of the May 18, 2020 Minutes 
Motion by DeSmidt and seconded by Manley to approve the minutes as presented. Motion 
passed unanimously.  
 
3. Public Comment 
Gullickson commented that he has lived and worked in Stoughton his entire life. He doesn’t 
understand why the dam is being removed when the city repaired it in 2009. He believes the city 
should open up the dam’s gates to simulate the water impacts. 
 
Davis shared that she is the interim chair for the Dunkirk Dam Lake District (DDLD). The DDLD 
endorses the project and is looking to collaborate with the city to improve the river. The county 
does not have a good place to launch their weed cutter and possibly collaborate on a launch site.  
 
Bottorof shared that he lives on Lake Kegonsa and represents the Friends of Lake Kegonsa. He 
questioned what the impact of the county’s dredging of the Yahara River will be and wait until 
after the dredging to move forward with the dam removal.  
 
Hale shared that he believes the city is too focused on the project and is not exploring all options.  
 
Kalvelage had questions about how the millpond contamination would be remediated, is water 
quality considered in the visitor report, and if COVID-19 factors into potential future use.  
 
4. Communications  
Glynn shared that the Mandt Park Master Plan was adopted by City Council the previous 
Tuesday. The only change since the steering committee saw the plan was that the restrooms in 
the northwest corner of the park were moved into the first phase of improvements. Glynn shared 
that the grant notifications should be known this summer or early fall. Glynn shared that there was 
coordination between Recreation Engineering and Planning and Strand regarding the first phase 
of improvements. The pedestrian bridge improvements will need to be inputted into their hydraulic 
modeling showing a no rise flood situation.  
 
Old Business 
 
5. Yahara River Wildlife 
Paulios explained that when dams are removed and shoreline is restored that the DNR looks for 
impacts to rare and endangered species. Generally speaking, dam removal decisions are not 
dependent on wildlife impacts. Paulios shared that the upper reaches of the river in Pleasant 
Springs wouldn’t rank as critical waterfowl habitat.  
 
The national Audobon Societry has certain thresholds that need to be met to be considered an 
important bird area. An area like Lake Koshkonong would be considered an important bird area 
because it provides habitat to 15,000-25,000 ducks annually. If the upper reaches are changed to 
a more riverine environment with swift water that some species of birds would change, but that 
would not be good or bad. Species such as ospreys are not specific to the type of water.  


 







 


 


The Dane County area is at peak sandhill crane population. They are becoming a nuisance in 
Madison. Regardless of what happens with the dam, they should be unaffected. Pelicans are not 
breedin the Madison Chain of Lakes.  
 
The wildlife bureau does not give a lot of input during the permitting process. They will be asked 
about critical habitats. They will also need to comment on general conditions as the project 
moves forward. 
 
New Business 
 
6. River Mapping  
Glynn shared that the county has bathymetry of the upper reaches of the Yahara River. The city 
and county will coordinate to show the public what impacts of the dredging project and whitewater 
park will be.  
 
Future Agenda Items  
- County Coordination  
- Grants & Project Timeline Update 
 
 
Adjournment 
Motion made by Diebel and seconded by Manley at 9:18 am. Motion carried unanimously.  







FINANCE COMMITTEE  


July 28, 2020 @ 6:00 p.m.  


GoToMeeting  


Present: 


Schumacher, Jenson, Reeves, Doom and Mayor Tim Swadley  


Also Present:  


Finance Director Friedl, Clerk Licht, Planning Director Scheel and Alder Hundt  


Absent and Excused:  


None 


Call to Order:  


Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 


Communications:  


None 


Reports: the following reports were entered into the record.  


 Contingency Report 


 June 2020 Financial Report 


 June 2020 Treasurer’s Report  


 


Approval of the July 14, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve the minutes. Motion carried 5-0. 


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to include an additional $9,500 in the 2020 


Building Maintenance CIP Budget to replace the Fire Department in-floor boilers. 


Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to approve the purchase of $9,500 in the 2020 Building 


Maintenance CIP Budget to replace the Fire Department in-floor boilers. Motion carried5-0. 


Termination of Tax Incremental District (TID) No. 3 and authorization to distribute excess increment to 


overlying taxing jurisdictions 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to recommend that council approve the termination of TID No. 2 


and authorization to distribute excess increment to overlying taxing jurisdictions. Motion carried 5-0. 


Resolution Authorizing and directing the City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority (RDA) to enter 


into an agreement with Gale Klein to complete the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) 


nomination for the Stoughton Power Plant #1 


Motion by Reeves, second by Jenson to recommend that council approve an agreement with Gale Klein 


to complete the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) nomination for the Stoughton Power Plant 


#1. Motion carried 5-0. 


 


 







Resolution offering alternative payment arrangements to individuals and businesses who will be 


levied special assessments for the improvement of curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, 


carriage walks, retaining walls, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements for 2020 


Projects 


The Finance Committee would like Attorney Dregne to review the final letter and resolution before they 


take a vote on it the first Finance meeting in August.  


Adjournment: 


Motion by Doom, second by Jenson to adjourn at 6:24 p.m. Motion carried 5-0. 


Respectfully Submitted, 


Holly Licht, City Clerk 





		01-Landmarks Minutes 6-11-20

		02-Park  Rec minutes 6-17-2020

		03-Whitewater Park Steering Committee Meeting Minutes 6-15-20

		04-Finance 7-28 Minutes






 


Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, August 11, 2020 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open at 


6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/670345829. You can also dial in 


using your phone: +1 (571) 317-3116  .  Access Code: 670-345-829. 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, 


Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, Timothy Riley and Brett Schumacher  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.  
 
Friedl called the roll and noted there were 10 alders present. Riley and Jenson were absent and excused. 
 


Communications and Presentations:  


Mayor Swadley congratulated the Food Pantry for receiving a grant totaling $1,839 to perform some 


minor upgrades to the existing facility. 
 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record. 


None  


 


Public Comment Period: 


 None   


Consent Agenda 


A. July 28, 2020 Council Minutes 
 


Motion by Reeves, second by Heili to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 10-0. 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


O- 13-2020-An ordinance amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by 


creating subsection (80) relating to parking restrictions near any traffic island 


Chief Leck requested this item be tabled due to the fact Alder Jenson is not present and wishes to 


amend the proposed ordinance change. 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/670345829

tel:+1%20(571)%20317-3116

tel:670-345-829





Motion by Boersma, second by Reeves to send this item back to committee, second by Reeves. 


Motion carried 10-0. 


O-14-2020-An ordinance amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by 


creating subsection (81) relating to designating Yellow Curb Painting as official No Parking Zones. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Hundt to postpone this item until O-13-2020 is finalized. 


Motion carried 10-0. 


O-15-2020-An ordinance amending Chapter 70-221 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by 


adding subsection 144 relating to stopping restrictions on Glacier Moraine Drive at Williams Drive 


 


Motion by Ligocki, second by Majewski to approve O-15-2020, an ordinance amending Chapter 


70-221 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by adding subsection 144 relating to stopping 


restrictions on Glacier Moraine Drive at Williams Drive. Motion carried 10-0. 


O-16 -2020-An ordinance amending Section 10-131 of Chapter 10 - Buildings and Building 


Regulations 


 


Motion by Majewski, second by Reeves to approve O-16-2020, an ordinance amending Section 10-


131 of Chapter 10 - Buildings and Building Regulations. Motion carried 10-0. 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding Norse View Holdings Deed Restrictions to meet Zoning 


Requirements 


Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to approve the updates to the deed restrictions as outlined in the 


Council packet. Motion carried 9-0 with Boersma abstaining 


 


ADJOURNMENT: 


Motion by Boersma, second by Heili to adjourn at 7:32 p.m. Motion carried 10-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted, 


Jamin Friedl  








DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, August 17, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  1 


Location:   Online Attendance: GoToMeeting ID 767-773-013. 


Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair), Alderperson Ben Heili (Vice-Chair), 


Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Citizen Member John Kallas, Mayor Tim Swadley, 


Citizen Member Dustin Thoren 


Excused: None 


Absent: Alderperson Greg Jenson 


Others Present: Stoughton Director of Finance & Comptroller Jamin Friedl, Stoughton Utilities 


Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Director Jill Weiss 


Call to Order:  Utilities Committee Chairperson David Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 


Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities 


Committee consent agenda items. 


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Kallas, to approve the following consent agenda items as presented:  


a. Draft Minutes of the July 20, 2020 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


b. Stoughton Utilities July Payments Due List Report 


c. Stoughton Utilities June Financial Summary 


d. Stoughton Utilities June Statistical Report 


e. Stoughton Utilities July Activities Report 


f. Communications 


The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 


approved and/or placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


Consent Agenda:  


1. Draft Minutes of the June 15, 2020 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


2. Stoughton Utilities June Payments Due List Report 


3. Stoughton Utilities May Financial Summary 


4. Stoughton Utilities May Statistical Report 


Business:  


1. Award of the Telecommunications Make-Ready Work Contract to Hooper Corporation 


Discussion followed. 



bhoops

Highlight







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 20, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  1 


Location:   Online Attendance: GoToMeeting ID 993-247-837. 


Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair), Alderperson Ben Heili (Vice-Chair), 


Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Alderperson Greg Jenson, Mayor Tim Swadley, 


Citizen Member Dustin Thoren 


Excused: Citizen Member John Kallas 


Absent: None 


Others Present: Stoughton Director of Finance & Comptroller Jamin Friedl, Stoughton Utilities 


Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Director Jill Weiss 


Call to Order:  Utilities Committee Chairperson David Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 


Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities 


Committee consent agenda items. 


Motion by Jenson, the motion seconded by Hirsch, to approve the following consent agenda items as presented:  


a. Draft Minutes of the June 15, 2020 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


b. Stoughton Utilities June Payments Due List Report 


c. Stoughton Utilities May Financial Summary 


d. Stoughton Utilities May Statistical Report 


e. Stoughton Utilities June Activities Report 


f. Communications 


The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 


approved and/or placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


Consent Agenda:  


1. Draft Minutes of the May 18, 2020 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


2. Stoughton Utilities May Payments Due List Report 


3. Stoughton Utilities April Financial Summary 


4. Stoughton Utilities April Statistical Report 


Business:  


1. Reallocation of 2020 Water Capital Improvement Project Funding  


2. Determining that Threatened Damage to the Public Water Service Lines by a WDOT Construction 
Project Has Created an Emergency in Which the Public Health or Welfare of the City is Endangered 


3. Award of 2020 Water Service Line Replacement Construction Contract 5-2020 to Parisi Construction 
Co., Inc. 


4. Revised Agreement with WDOT for USH 51 Rehabilitation from Page Street to Hoel Avenue 


Discussion followed. 


 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 20, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  2 


Award of the Telecommunications Make-Ready Work Contract to Hooper Corporation:  Stoughton Utilities 


staff presented and discussed the ongoing citywide telecommunication system deployment currently being 


undertaken by TDS Metrocom, Inc.  As the owner of the utility poles in our service territory, Stoughton Utilities is 


obligated by our active licensing agreement for communications attachments and regulatory requirements to 


complete the construction work necessary to make the poles make-ready for new communications attachments.  


All costs associated with this effort is billed to the owner of the communications attachments, and there is no 


rate impact to Stoughton Utilities ratepayers.  To accommodate this work, Stoughton Utilities staff solicited bids 


for an overhead line construction contract.  Bids were tabulated and evaluated, and our electrical engineering 


consultant that facilitated the bidding process has recommended that the contract be awarded to Hooper 


Corporation of Madison Wisconsin. 


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Thoren, to approve and enter into an agreement with Hooper 


Corporation for the Electrical Distribution Line Pole Replacements Project S22-19F, conditioned upon approval 


as to form following attorney review, and recommend adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton 


Common Council at their July 28, 2020 meeting.  The motion carried 6 to 0. 


Status Update: TDS Metrocom Fiber Deployment Project:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed 


the ongoing citywide telecommunication system deployment currently being undertaken by TDS Metrocom, Inc.  


SU has significant involvement in this project, as staff receives and approves pole attachment permits and 


facilitates boring operations.  Staff has also been discussing the potential for obtaining a secured fiber optic 


communication network to our remote facility locations.  Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Utilities Round-Up Program:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton 


Utilities Round-Up Program.  A brief description and history of staff’s efforts to recruit new organizations to apply 


for funding was provided to the committee.  This is the second of two donations to be made using 2020 program 


funding, with an applicant pool of 18 local non-profit organizations.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Erdman, the motion seconded by Heili, to donate $1,000 from the Stoughton Utilities Round-Up 


Program fund to Stoughton Area Resource Team, Inc. (START).  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Wisconsin Public Service Commission Electric Billing Audit:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and 


discussed the recent billing audit of the electric utility conducted by the Wisconsin Public Service Commission 


(WPSC).  The WPSC conducts these audits to ensure that proper billing and collections procedures are in place 


and being followed so that customers’ bills are accurate and processes are consistent with the WPSC 


Administrative Code and Wisconsin State Statutes.   


The WPSC billing audit of Stoughton Utilities began in February 2019 and recently concluded, with one deficiency 


reported.  This deficiency was that billing statements for street lighting did not detail the quantity and type of each 


street and security light and pole being billed.  Updates have been made in our customer information system 


software to address this requirement, and such details will be included on future billing statements.  Discussion 


followed. 


Customer Collections Status Report:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed an update on the 


current status of customer collections as a result of the COVID-19 public health crisis, and the status of current 


customer delinquencies.   


The customer payment and delinquency data available at this time appears to indicate that although customer 


balances continue to increase, the number and amount of payments are increasing and the number of delinquent 


customers is decreasing.  Delinquent balances are largely being accrued by the same customers that also do 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 20, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  3 


not make payment whenever collection efforts are suspended, including annually during the winter cold-weather 


disconnection moratorium.   


Staff also discussed available energy assistance funding.  Staff has been proactively reaching out to delinquent 


customers by phone to inform them of expanded assistance availability, and as a result have noticed a significant 


increase (1,531%) in assistance payments received from the state program compared to the same period last 


year. 


Staff discussed our future collections efforts as we recover delinquencies resulting from the suspension of 


collection activities.  All collections were suspended in March, and the Wisconsin Public Service Commission 


has issued an order allowing utilities to resume collections as of July 15, 2020.  SU intends to make numerous 


attempts to contact delinquent customers, leading up to service disconnections of severely delinquent customers 


on August 26, 2020.  Special considerations will be given to all customers that experienced a household COVID-


19 infection at any time since March. 


Staff discussed our ongoing Community Recharge Customer Incentive, partnering with the Stoughton Chamber 


of Commerce.  Through the end of September, SU will double all Chamber Bucks purchases up to $50 per 


customer to help encourage spending at local businesses that may have been negatively impacted by COVID-


19.  This program is also available to assist with payment of Stoughton Utilities account balances. 


Discussion followed.  At the committee’s request, staff will continue to provide updates on customer 


delinquencies and cash flow on a quarterly basis. 


Status Update: Lead Service Line Replacement Programs:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed 


efforts that have occurred in the past year since the utility was notified of the lead action exceedance.  Many 


efforts have been completed or are currently underway as staff proceeds with the creation of a program to replace 


lead service lines throughout the City of Stoughton.  Efforts include: 


• Ongoing discussions with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) regarding potential 


financial assistance programs. 


• Lead service line identification and inventory record updates. 


• Submittal of parcel and lead service line data to the WDNR for the completion of an environmental impact 


study. 


• Council approval of an ordinance declaring lead service lines a public nuisance and mandating their 


removal. 


• Completion of the request for qualifications (RFQ) process for licensed plumbers and utility contractors 


interested in participating in the private lead service line replacement program.  This list of qualified 


contractors will be provided to property owners with lead service lines. 


• Completion of the replacement of publicly-owned lead service lines along West Main Street in the 


Wisconsin Department of Transportation construction project area. 


• Completion of the replacement of publicly-owned lead service lines in the Prospect, McKinley, and Grant 


Street neighborhood, and partnership with home owners replacing their privately-owned lead service 


lines as part of the same project. 


• Continuation of a public education program, including distribution of our annual Consumer Confidence 


Report that highlighted lead service lines and sampling results, and other educational and informational 


communications to the community on lead service lines. 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 20, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  4 


Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Utilities Environmental Sustainability:  Utilities Committee Vice-Chairman Heili presented this 


item and discussed that discussions have been ongoing at the City of Stoughton Community Affairs and Council 


Policy (CACP) Committee as well as at the Stoughton Utilities Committee related to environmental sustainability.  


This topic was to discuss topics that were discussed during the July 7, 2020 meeting of the CACP 


Stoughton Utilities staff discussed several topics related to environmental sustainability, including answers to 


questions that had been raised at the July 7, 2020 meeting of the City of Stoughton Community Affairs and 


Council Policy Committee related to renewable energy and green tariffs.  Staff informed the committee that WPPI 


Energy was preparing to take the rate tariff for the optional Choose Renewable Program to the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission to modify and reduce the customer participation costs.  Discussion followed. 


Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items:  Staff informed the committee that upcoming meeting topics include 


the annual wastewater collection system maintenance annual report (CMAR), updates on the lead service line 


replacement program, and updates to the Stoughton Utilities Choose Renewable program.  Discussion followed. 


Adjournment:  Being no further business before the committee, the Chair adjourned the regular Stoughton 


Utilities Committee Meeting at 6:51 p.m.   


Respectfully submitted 


Brian R. Hoops 


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


10:24AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


1 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Periods: - Through 08-20 As of: 8/6/2020


Thursday, August 06, 2020


Description


7430Company:


VO for check batch: 309798EP002023 516 WELLS FARGO BANK7/2/2020  35,566.35


WPPI-Renewable Energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solar 


Credit/WPPI-Larger Power/WPPI-Support 


Services/WPPI-Support Services/WPPI-Support 


Services/WPPI-Support Services


HC002024 009 WPPI7/14/2020  1,065,152.60


Us Cellular - July Ach/Us Cellular - July Ach/Us 


Cellular - July Ach


HC002025 004 Us Cellular - Ach7/30/2020  2,389.07


Alliant Energy - July Ach/Alliant Energy - July 


Ach/Alliant Energy - July Ach/Alliant Energy - July 


Ach/Alliant Energy - July Ach/Alliant Energy - July 


Ach/Alliant Energy - July Ach


HC002026 003 Alliant Energy - Ach7/30/2020  347.15


Pitney Bowes-July Ach/Pitney Bowes-July 


Ach/Pitney Bowes-July Ach/Pitney Bowes-July Ach


HC002027 318 PITNEY-BOWES INC-PURCHASE POWER7/30/2020  471.22


AT&T-July Ach/AT&T-July AchHC002028 952 AT&T7/30/2020  122.46


TDS Metrocom - July Ach/TDS Metrocom - July 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - July Ach/TDS Metrocom - July 


Ach


HC002029 007 TDS Metrocom - Ach7/30/2020  490.88


Delta Dental - July Ach/Delta Dental - July 


Ach/Delta Dental - July Ach


HC002030 001 Delta Dental - Ach7/30/2020  3,705.48


Pitney Bowes-July Ach/Pitney Bowes-July 


Ach/Pitney Bowes-July Ach/Pitney Bowes-July Ach


HC002031 318 PITNEY-BOWES INC-PURCHASE POWER7/30/2020  51.16


First Data Charges-July Ach/First Data 


Charges-July Ach/First Data Charges-July Ach/First 


Data Charges-July Ach


HC002032 421 FIRST DATA CHARGES7/30/2020  30.52


Charter Comm-July Ach/Charter Comm-July 


Ach/Charter Comm-July Ach/Charter Comm-July 


Ach


HC002033 547 Charter Communications-Ach7/30/2020  428.03


Gordon Flesch-July Ach/Gordon Flesch-July 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-July Ach/Gordon Flesch-July 


Ach


HC002034 856 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY, INC.7/30/2020  92.12


EBC - July Ach/EBC - July Ach/EBC - July 


Ach/EBC - July Ach


HC002035 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach7/30/2020  661.48







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


10:24AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


2 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Periods: - Through 08-20 As of: 8/6/2020


Thursday, August 06, 2020


Description


Federal Taxes-July Ach/Federal Taxes-July 


Ach/Federal Taxes-July Ach/Federal Taxes-July 


Ach


HC002036 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach7/30/2020  33,882.88


Client Analysis-July Ach/Client Analysis-July 


Ach/Client Analysis-July Ach/Client Analysis-July 


Ach


HC002037 020 Wells Fargo Bank-Ach7/30/2020  9,931.75


State Taxes-July Ach/State Taxes-July AchHC002038 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach7/30/2020  6,673.39


Dept of Rev-July Ach/Dept of Rev-July AchHC002039 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach7/30/2020  48,332.20


General Comm-Annual Maint.VC026702 377 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC7/31/2020 -480.00


H Oconnor-Customer RefundVC026932 302 HANNAH O'CONNOR7/31/2020 -115.39


DOA/DIV-Customer refundVC026937 046 DOA/DIV. OF ENERGY, HOUSE & COMM RESOURCES7/31/2020 -85.97


Globe-Pay Req #1CK026958 709 GLOBE CONTRACTORS, INC.7/9/2020  310,928.92


Diggers-LocatesCK026959 143 DIGGERS HOTLINE, INC.7/9/2020  900.95


Inkworks-adsCK026960 166 INKWORKS, INC.7/9/2020  316.74


R Webb-Customer RefundCK026961 241 RICHARD WEBB7/9/2020  17.87


Strand-19 Const/Strand-20 Const/Strand-Gen 


Eng/Strand-20 Const/Strand-19 Const


CK026962 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.7/9/2020  13,624.12


GLS Utility-June Locates/GLS Utility-June 


Locates/GLS Utility-June Locates


CK026963 727 GLS UTILITY LLC7/9/2020  24,173.30


Xylem-intll pumpCK026964 927 XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS USA INC7/9/2020  300.00


Resco-Supplies/Resco-SuppliesCK026965 400 RESCO7/9/2020  204.50


Woodward-Ads/Woodward-AdsCK026966 474 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA7/9/2020  340.68


Jims Tree- Tree WorkCK026967 780 JIMS TREE SERVICE INC7/9/2020  8,500.00


Inkworks-CCR suppliesCK026968 166 INKWORKS, INC.7/9/2020  555.98


Assoc Trust-Rev Bonds/Assoc Trust-Rev BondsCK026969 171 ASSOCIATED TRUST CO7/9/2020  475.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


10:24AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


3 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Periods: - Through 08-20 As of: 8/6/2020


Thursday, August 06, 2020


Description


N Brown-Customer RefundCK026970 304 NEAL BROWN7/9/2020  103.71


M Bluel-Customer RefundCK026971 315 MARCIA BLUEL7/9/2020  84.48


D Prechel-Customer RefundCK026972 823 DAVID PRECHEL7/9/2020  321.84


G Fox-1940 Jackson stCK026973 959 G. FOX & SON, INC.7/9/2020  2,400.00


City Stoton-July Vision/City Stoton-June Aflac/City 


Stoton-June Life Ins/City Stoton-June Life Ins/City 


Stoton-June Life Ins/City Stoton-June Life Ins/City 


Stoton-June Wa Twr/City Stoton-June Rent/City 


Stoton-June Rent/City Stoton-June Rent/More...


CK026974 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON7/9/2020  42,116.09


WI SCTF-July A SupportCK026975 133 WISCONSIN SCTF7/9/2020  176.77


Midwest-TrenchingCK026976 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC7/9/2020  260.00


Dunkirk-Customer RefundCK026977 781 DUNKIRK WATER POWER CO LLC7/9/2020  2,334.05


City Stoton-May Legal Shield/City Stoton-JF 


Wages/City Stoton-JF Wages/City Stoton-JF 


Wages/City Stoton-JF Wages/City Stoton-JF 


Wages/City Stoton-JF Wages/City Stoton-JF 


Wages/City Stoton-JF Wages/City Stoton-JF 


Wages/City Stoton-JF Wages/More...


CK026978 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON7/10/2020  8,517.80


WI DNR - Advance CourseCK026979 956 WI DNR - OPERATOR CERTIFICATION EA/77/15/2020  100.00


WI SCTF-Annual R & DCK026980 133 WISCONSIN SCTF7/23/2020  65.00


City Stoton-Stormwater/City Stoton-July 


Retirement/City Stoton-July Retirement/City 


Stoton-July Retirement


CK026981 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON7/23/2020  71,180.83


Kunz-Gloves/Kunz-GlovesCK026982 358 NATIONAL SAFETY APPAREL7/23/2020  228.39


PSC-AssessmentsCK026983 491 PUBLIC SVC. COMM. OF WI.7/23/2020  247.55


Vining Sparks-SafekeepingCK026984 584 VINING SPARKS IBG, L.P.7/23/2020  54.00


Harvest Farms-Emb CreditsCK026985 084 HARVEST FARMS, LLC7/23/2020  460.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


10:24AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


4 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Periods: - Through 08-20 As of: 8/6/2020


Thursday, August 06, 2020


Description


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Tre


nching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching


CK026986 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC7/23/2020  3,500.40


Border States-SuppliesCK026987 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY7/23/2020  197.68


Resco-InventoryCK026988 400 RESCO7/23/2020  6,486.95


Boardman-Professional 


Svcs/Boardman-Professional Svcs


CK026989 865 BOARDMAN & CLARK LLP7/23/2020  1,432.50


K Kuntz-Customer RefundCK026990 064 KATI KUNTZ7/23/2020  105.83


Stoton Elec-Customer RefundCK026991 146 STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTIL.7/23/2020  80.66


R Gerhard-Customer Refund/R Gerhard-Customer 


Refund/R Gerhard-Customer Refund


CK026992 562 RICHARD GERHARDS MAIN EVENT RESALE7/23/2020  425.46


D Hoffman-Customer RefundCK026993 701 DAVID HOFFMAN7/23/2020  193.80


M Maturo-Customer RefundCK026994 829 MICHELLE MATURO7/23/2020  144.15


K Hampton-Customer RefundCK026995 154 KEITH HAMPTON7/23/2020  31.81


J Quam-Customer RefundCK026996 208 JAMES QUAM7/23/2020  78.05


D Peterson-Customer RefundCK026997 458 DOROTHY PETERSON7/23/2020  117.36


J Rausch-Customer RefundCK026998 637 JASON RAUSCH OR JANELLE SOECKI RAUSCH7/23/2020  66.00


N Wittwer-Customer RefundCK026999 764 NICHOLAS OR NICHOLE WITTWER7/23/2020  162.09


WI SCTF-SupportCK027000 133 WISCONSIN SCTF7/23/2020  176.77


Start-DonationCK027001 368 STOUGHTON AREA RESOURCE TEAM7/24/2020  1,000.00


Resco-TDS MaterialsCK027002 400 RESCO7/24/2020  342.55


Strand-LSL Assist/Strand-Weebleworld/Strand-2020 


Const/Strand-2020 Const/Strand-WW 


scada/Strand-Weebleworld


CK027003 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.7/24/2020  38,063.55


Cree-InventoryCK027004 484 CREE INC.7/24/2020  8,905.00


BJ Elec-LightingCK027005 904 BJ ELECTRIC7/24/2020  879.39







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


10:24AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


5 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Periods: - Through 08-20 As of: 8/6/2020


Thursday, August 06, 2020


Description


Chamber-Comm RechargeCK027006 415 STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE7/30/2020  8,443.43


H Oconnor-Customer Refund/H Oconner-void ck 


026932


ZC027007 302 HANNAH O'CONNOR7/31/2020  0.00


DOA/DIV-Customer refund/DoaDiv-Void ck 026937ZC027008 046 DOA/DIV. OF ENERGY, HOUSE & COMM RESOURCES7/31/2020  0.00


General Comm-Annual Maint.ZC027009 377 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC7/31/2020  0.00


Great West-July A Def CompCK101967 463 GREAT-WEST7/10/2020  1,619.85


N Shore Bk-July A Def CompCK101968 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.7/10/2020  450.00


Great West-July B Def CompCK101969 463 GREAT-WEST7/23/2020  1,619.85


Seera-CTC FundsCK101970 603 SEERA-WIPFLI LLP7/23/2020  5,587.72


N Shore Bk-July B Def CompCK101971 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.7/23/2020  450.00


Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing


CK101972 852 INFOSEND, INC7/23/2020  3,334.71


Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing


CK101973 852 INFOSEND, INC7/24/2020  3,512.00


Company Total  1,784,043.51







Date:


Time:


User:


Thursday, July 02, 2020


10:34AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  ''Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


Import ID: 009010 Import # : 


 100.00920 000000  - FACEBK 3BFFZU29Q2740 06/04/2020EMPLOYMENT RECRUITMENT - JOURNEYMAN LINEMAN 36807430


 10.72642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WTP219280581824 06/05/2020SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 10.72642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0301308991824 06/12/2020SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 125.00920 000000  - FACEBK KPK2AV29Q2740 06/15/2020EMPLOYMENT RECRUITMENT - JOURNEYMAN LINEMAN 36807430


 10.72642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0303792606824 06/15/2020SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 125.00920 000000  - FACEBK 4MWECV29Q2740 06/17/2020EMPLOYMENT RECRUITMENT - JOURNEYMAN LINEMAN 36807430


 10.72642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0314475410824 06/19/2020SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 15.45642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0316781424824 06/19/2020SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES TO LAB 36807450


 175.00920 000000  - FACEBK ZPK35U68Q2740 06/22/2020EMPLOYMENT RECRUITMENT - JOURNEYMAN LINEMAN 36807430


 250.00920 000000  - FACEBK YHXKDVN8Q2740 06/29/2020EMPLOYMENT RECRUITMENT - JOURNEYMAN LINEMAN 36807430


 5.50921 000000  - MSFT   E0400B4C6E836 06/03/2020HOSTED SERVICES - MICROSOFT ONEDRIVE - MONTHLY 52507430


 2.00921 000000  - MSFT   E0400B4C6E836 06/03/2020HOSTED SERVICES - MICROSOFT ONEDRIVE - MONTHLY 52507450


 2.50851 000000  - MSFT   E0400B4C6E836 06/03/2020HOSTED SERVICES - MICROSOFT ONEDRIVE - MONTHLY 52507460


 62.87903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2020Credit card processing -Online MyAccount 52507430


 22.63903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2020Credit card processing -Online MyAccount 52507450


 30.19840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2020Credit card processing -Online MyAccount 52507460


 10.06233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2020Credit card processing -Online MyAccount 52507430


 1.10921 000000  - MSFT   E0400B4QKV836 06/03/2020HOSTED SERVICES - MICROSOFT SKYPE FOR BUSINESS TIER I - MONTHLY 52507430


 0.40921 000000  - MSFT   E0400B4QKV836 06/03/2020HOSTED SERVICES - MICROSOFT SKYPE FOR BUSINESS TIER I - MONTHLY 52507450


 0.50851 000000  - MSFT   E0400B4QKV836 06/03/2020HOSTED SERVICES - MICROSOFT SKYPE FOR BUSINESS TIER I - MONTHLY 52507460


 125.00903 000000  - VOICESHOT LLC954 06/03/2020Customer collections automated outbound calling - Funds refill 52507430


 45.00903 000000  - VOICESHOT LLC954 06/03/2020Customer collections automated outbound calling - Funds refill 52507450


 60.00840 000000  - VOICESHOT LLC954 06/03/2020Customer collections automated outbound calling - Funds refill 52507460


 20.00233 001099  - VOICESHOT LLC954 06/03/2020Customer collections automated outbound calling - Funds refill 52507430


 78.65921 000000  - MSFT   E0400B49AW836 06/03/2020HOSTED SERVICES - MICROSOFT SKYPE FOR BUSINESS TIER II - MONTHLY 52507430


 28.60921 000000  - MSFT   E0400B49AW836 06/03/2020HOSTED SERVICES - MICROSOFT SKYPE FOR BUSINESS TIER II - MONTHLY 52507450


 35.75851 000000  - MSFT   E0400B49AW836 06/03/2020HOSTED SERVICES - MICROSOFT SKYPE FOR BUSINESS TIER II - MONTHLY 52507460


 46.27903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2020Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507430


 16.65903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2020Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507450


 22.23840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2020Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507460


 7.40233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2020Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507430


 19.05921 000000  - THE UPS STORE 3617164 06/12/2020Shipping of SCADA SEL 3622 RMA 52507430


 42.58921 000000  - CDW GOVT #ZCG9734604 06/12/2020CELL PHONE CASES - BSIME, SOGRADY 52507430


 127.00903 000000  - USPS PO BOXES ONLINE824 06/16/2020PO Box Annual Renewal 52507430


 45.72903 000000  - USPS PO BOXES ONLINE824 06/16/2020PO Box Annual Renewal 52507450


 60.96840 000000  - USPS PO BOXES ONLINE824 06/16/2020PO Box Annual Renewal 52507460


 20.32233 001099  - USPS PO BOXES ONLINE824 06/16/2020PO Box Annual Renewal 52507430


 90.00920 000000  - AWWA.ORG105 06/26/2020Operator Membership Renewal 52507450


 15.99592 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 06/26/2020Fuses - EL SCADA substation equipment 52507430


 66.56592 000000  - ALLFUSES COM994 06/29/2020FUSES - EL SCADA SUBSTATION EQUIPMENT 52507430


 13.99592 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 06/29/2020Fuses - EL SCADA substation equipment 52507430


 173.99673 000000  - LINCOLN CONTRACTORS SUPPL818 06/26/2020DIAMOND SAW BLADE 87007450







Date:


Time:


User:


Thursday, July 02, 2020


10:34AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  ''Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 173.99675 000000  - LINCOLN CONTRACTORS SUPPL818 06/26/2020DIAMOND SAW BLADE 87007450


 11.98833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 06/10/2020BATTERIES FOR LAB 87407460


 269.34673 000000  - WOLF PAVING CO., INC.555 06/19/2020ASPHALT FOR MAIN BREAKS 87407450


 269.34831 000000  - WOLF PAVING CO., INC.555 06/19/2020ASPHALT FOR MANHOLE REPAIRS 87407460


 267.33673 000000  - WOLF PAVING CO., INC.555 06/19/2020ASPHALT FOR MAIN BREAKS 87407450


 267.33831 000000  - WOLF PAVING CO., INC.555 06/19/2020ASPHALT FOR MANHOLE REPAIRS 87407460


 14.54933 000000  - TRACTOR SUPPLY #2236994 06/24/2020PROPANE FOR FORKLIFT 52757430


 26.00642 000000  - WI STATE HYGIENE LAB675 06/02/2020FLUORIDE SAMPLES 74007450


 14.50642 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 06/03/2020WOOD LATH 74007450


 829.74641 000000  - HAWKINS INC309 06/11/2020CHEMICALS 74007450


 216.89642 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 06/12/2020SAMPLING SUPPLIES 74007450


 164.15677 000000  - ASSURED FLOW SALES994 06/18/2020GREASE FOR HYDRANT CAPS 74007450


 41.21933 000000  - BP#6251961LINMAR BP894 06/26/2020FUEL FOR TRUCK 22 74007450


 30.00642 000000  - NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE- IN974 06/26/2020NITRATE SAMPLE 74007450


 119.00920 000000  - AMAZON PRIME MS1YS73J0422 06/18/2020PRIME SUBSCRIPTION 52007430


 17.29593 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 06/23/2020MISC LINE SUPPLIES 52007430


 17.29594 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 06/23/2020MISC LINE SUPPLIES 52007430


 179.86833 000000  - THE UPS STORE 3617164 06/16/2020WET TESTING SAMPLES 87107460


 9.95833 000000  - KWIK TRIP  73900007393994 06/17/2020ICE FOR WET TESTING SAMPLES 87107460


 60.69833 000000  - THE UPS STORE 3617164 06/18/2020WET TESTING SAMPLES 87107460


 134.96833 000000  - THE UPS STORE 3617164 06/22/2020WET TESTING SAMPLES 87107460


 89.18926 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/01/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007430


 19.80926 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/01/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007450


 18.86854 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/01/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007460


 89.18926 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/08/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007430


 19.80926 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/08/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007450


 18.86854 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/08/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007460


 89.18926 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/15/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007430


 19.80926 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/15/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007450


 18.86854 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/15/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007460


 280.50932 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 06/16/2020JANITORIAL 40007430


 102.00932 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 06/16/2020JANITORIAL 40007450


 127.50834 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 06/16/2020JANITORIAL 40007460


 89.18926 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/22/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007430


 19.80926 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/22/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007450


 18.86854 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/22/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007460


 42.40592 000000  - IN  4 CONTROL INC541 06/23/2020SUB WORK 40007430


 599.62163 000000  - IN  4 CONTROL INC541 06/23/2020POLE YARD 40007430


 89.18926 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/29/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007430


 19.80926 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/29/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007450


 18.86854 000000  - CINTAS CORP809 06/29/2020UNIFORM CLEANING 40007460


 457.00831 000000  - FIRST SUPPLY LLC #2010550 06/15/2020MANHOLE RING MATERIALS 82007460


 63.49833 000000  - EMS INDUSTRIAL, INC.795 06/15/2020DIGESTER PUMP BEARINGS 82007460


 310.29833 000000  - HOMEDEPOT.COM115 06/22/2020EFFLUENT SAMPLE FRIDGE REPLACEMENT 82007460







Date:


Time:


User:


Thursday, July 02, 2020


10:34AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  ''Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 32.99834 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 06/22/2020MAILBOX AT PLANT 82007460


 353.82831 000000  - JET VAC ENVIRONMENTAL528 06/23/2020JET VAC NOZZLE REBUILD KIT 82007460


 2,003.70831 000000  - SEWER EQUIPMENT337 06/23/2020WART HOG CUTTING NOZZLES 82007460


 351.75831 000000  - MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT GROUP994 06/23/2020JET VAC REPAIRS 82007460


 229.86831 000000  - JET VAC ENVIRONMENTAL528 06/23/2020JET VAC REFILL HOSE 82007460


 799.99833 000000  - NCL OF WISCONSIN INC830 06/19/2020LAB SUPPLIES 83007460


 26.36833 000000  - SPEE-DEE DELIVERY SERVICE937 06/29/2020SAMPLES 83007460


 2.06934 000000  - TRACTOR SUPPLY #2236994 06/08/2020PROPANE 69607430


 17,220.38232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 06/01/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 122.11232 001099  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 087134 06/02/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 19.74593 000000  - AMAZON.COM MY3B25T51 AMZN422 06/02/2020SAFETY GLASSES 41007430


 19.74594 000000  - AMAZON.COM MY3B25T51 AMZN422 06/02/2020SAFETY GLASSES 41007430


 223.75232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 06/04/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 169.00232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 06/04/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 76.08594 000000  - AMZN MKTP US MY9ET6ZT2422 06/05/2020UG MATERIALS 41007430


 334.59232 001099  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 087134 06/10/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 266.75932 000000  - MONONA PLUMBING AND FIRE331 06/17/2020SPRINKLER INSPECTION 41007430


 97.00932 000000  - MONONA PLUMBING AND FIRE331 06/17/2020SPRINKLER INSPECTION` 41007450


 121.25834 000000  - MONONA PLUMBING AND FIRE331 06/17/2020SPRINKLER INSPECTION 41007460


 102.50593 000000  - STUART C. IRBY COMPANY355 06/18/2020WEDGE CLAMPS 41007430


 90.00107.14 000000 190212XX - 1STUART C IRBY355 06/18/2020WEDGE CLAMPS 41007430


 69.00934 000000  - CAPITAL EQUIPMENT994 06/18/2020FORK LIFT MAINTENACE 41007430


 510.00107.14 000000 190212XX - 1STUART C IRBY355 06/18/2020ALFO DEI-15 INSULATOR DEAD END 41007430


 19.31593 000000  - STUART C. IRBY COMPANY355 06/19/2020WEDGE CLAMPS 41007430


 1,150.00232 001099  - FIRST SUPPLY WFPG MAD550 06/23/2020WATER INVENTORY 41007450


 240.34593 000000  - C M HYDRAULIC TOOL SUPP983 06/25/2020PRESS REPAIR 41007430


 240.34594 000000  - C M HYDRAULIC TOOL SUPP983 06/25/2020PRESS REPAIR 41007430


 777.35232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 06/26/2020ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 1,992.75370 003300  - WESCO - # 7855521 06/26/2020ELECTRIC METERS 41007430


 13.67596 000000  - AMAZON.COM MS5MV8232422 06/29/2020ELECTRICAL NUTS 41007430


 35,566.35Total:







Stoughton Utilities 
Financial Summary 


June 2020 YTD 
 
Overall Summary: 
YTD 2020 operating income is $405,400, down $132,200 from 2019. $85,000 of the 
decrease is from electric. $43,700 is from wastewater. 
 
Electric Summary: 
2020 operating income was $129,500, down $85,000 from the prior year YTD. Locating 
expenses are up $37,000 over 2019 YTD.  An overheard inspection project accounts for 
another $27,000 of additional expense over the prior year. $63,600 of tree trimming 
costs have also been incurred YTD in 2020, which have been made up in part by lower 
payroll, technology, and other costs in 2020. 
 
Operating revenues were down $156,400 but were offset by $165,600 in reduced power 
costs. YTD kWh sales are down 2.28 million, or 3.3%.  
 
The rate of return is currently 0.82% compared to 1.36% at this point in time in 2019. 
Unrestricted cash balances are $4.7 million (4.3 months of sales).  
 
Water Summary: 
Operating revenues were down $2,100, or 0.2%, from prior YTD 2019 at $1,157,000. 
Total gallons sold YTD are about 2.4% lower than 2019. The large majority of the 
reduced gallons sold YTD were in May and June. Residential sales were up $24,000 
YTD, but commercial and industrial sales were down $25,000. This indicates that 
demand from housing is not decreasing but the drop in consumption is driven by current 
business factors. If the decrease trend continues, a water rate increase may be 
necessary. 
 
Operating expenses were up $1,600, or 0.2%, compared to the prior year. The rate of 
return is currently 1.73% compared to 1.90% at this point in time in 2019. Unrestricted 
cash balances are $0.77 million (4.1 months of sales).  
 
Wastewater Summary: 
2020 operating revenue was down $5,700 YTD, or 0.5%, from 2019. Regular sales 
were up $47,800 but surcharge revenues were down $53,500.  
 
Operating expenses were $956,400, which was up $37,900, or 4.1%, from the prior 
year. $32,800 is from increased operating and maintenance labor in 2020. $5,000 is 
from increased depreciation. 
 
Unrestricted cash balances were $1.0 million (6.2 months of sales).  
 
Submitted by: Ryan Wiesen 







Electric Water Wastewater Combined


Assets


Cash & Investments 5,809,536$         2,251,178$         2,374,837$         10,435,550$       


Customer A/R 1,769,884           248,159              226,599              2,244,642           


Other A/R 89,504                 47                        (1,271)                 88,281                 


Other Assets 739,424              129,953              16,041                 885,418              


Plant in Service 30,623,462         16,818,920         31,556,312         78,998,694         


Accumulated Depreciation (14,972,507)        (5,720,822)          (12,672,926)        (33,366,256)        


Plant in Service - CIAC 3,795,456           7,962,587           -                      11,758,043         


Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (1,945,735)          (2,359,487)          -                      (4,305,223)          


Construction Work in Progress 225,856              51,220                 66,654                 343,730              


GASB 68 Deferred Outflow 1,042,969           354,076              431,889              1,828,934           


Total Assets 27,177,848$       19,735,830$       21,998,135$       68,911,814$       


Liabilities + Net Assets


Accounts Payable 69,827$              63,185$              45,059$              178,071$            


Payable to City of Stoughton 289,197              222,000              -                      511,197              


Interest Accrued 20,830                 12,950                 14,146                 47,926                 


Other Liabilities 490,476              86,747                 97,342                 674,565              


Long-Term Debt 3,826,286           3,716,302           3,658,266           11,200,854         


Net Assets 21,746,259         15,385,178         17,918,469         55,049,906         


GASB 68 Deferred Inflow 734,974              249,468              264,852              1,249,294           


Total Liabilities + Net Assets 27,177,848$       19,735,830$       21,998,135$       68,911,814$       


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Balance Sheets


 As of June 30, 2020







 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 6,686,204$              1,124,176$              1,020,161$              8,830,541$              


Other 73,238                      32,781                      20,408                      126,427                    


   Total Operating Revenue: 6,759,442$              1,156,957$              1,040,570$              8,956,969$              


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 4,861,378                -                             -                             4,861,378                


Expenses (Including Taxes) 920,405                    487,333                    521,361                    1,929,099                


PILOT 235,500                    222,000                    -                             457,500                    


Depreciation 612,702                    255,870                    435,000                    1,303,572                


   Total Operating Expense: 6,629,985$              965,203$                 956,361$                 8,551,549$              


     Operating Income 129,457$                 191,754$                 84,209$                    405,420$                 


Non-Operating Income 208,735                    13,772                      21,660                      244,167                    


Non-Operating Expense (50,333)                     (43,482)                     (49,152)                     (142,967)                  


      Net Income 287,859$                 162,044$                 56,717$                    506,620$                 


 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 6,799,111$              1,124,220$              972,354$                 8,895,684$              


Other 116,765                    34,840$                    73,935$                    225,540                    


   Total Operating Revenue: 6,915,876$              1,159,059$              1,046,289$              9,121,224$              


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 5,027,004                -                             -                             5,027,004                


Expenses (Including Taxes) 849,525                    490,265                    488,428                    1,828,218                


PILOT 229,998                    219,000                    -                             448,998                    


Depreciation 594,900                    254,382                    430,002                    1,279,284                


   Total Operating Expense: 6,701,427$              963,647$                 918,430$                 8,583,504$              


     Operating Income 214,449$                 195,413$                 127,859$                 537,720$                 


Non-Operating Income 262,024                    25,426                      111,383                    398,832                    


Non-Operating Expense (84,132)                     (22,998)                     (55,500)                     (162,630)                  


      Net Income 392,340$                 197,840$                 183,741$                 773,921$                 


June 30, 2019


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement


June 30, 2020


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement







 


Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 129,457$            191,754$            


Average Utility Plant in Service 30,080,420         16,691,810         


Average Accumulated Depreciation (14,475,593)        (5,501,645)          


Average Materials and Supplies 266,696              40,090                


Average Regulatory Liability (77,564)               (119,802)             


Average Customer Advances 11,121                -                      


Average Net Rate Base 15,805,080$       11,110,453$       


June 2020 Rate of Return 0.82% 1.73%


June 2019 Rate of Return 1.36% 1.90%


December 2019 Rate of Return 2.87% 4.65%


Authorized Rate of Return 5.00% 5.00%


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Rate of Return


Year-to-Date June 30, 2020







Electric June 2020


Unrestricted (4.3 months sales) 4,751,123$           


Bond Reserve 460,722$              


Redemption Fund (P&I) 191,977$              


Depreciation 25,000$                


Designated 380,713$              


Total 5,809,535$           


Water June 2020


Unrestricted (4.1 months sales) 771,494$              


Bond Reserve 340,710$              


Redemption Fund (P&I) 48,248$                


Depreciation 25,000$                


Construction 758,163$              


Designated 307,562$              


Total 2,251,177$           


Wastewater June 2020


Unrestricted (6.2 months sales) 1,044,883             


DNR Replacement 1,156,771             


Redemption Fund (P&I) 42,557                  


Depreciation 33,283                  


Designated 97,342                  


Total 2,374,836             


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Cash and Investments Summary


 As of June 30, 2020


$4,751,123 , 82%


$460,722 , 8%


$191,977 , 3%


$25,000 , 0%


$380,713 
, 7%


Electric Cash - June 2020 


Unrestricted (4.3 months sales) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation Designated


$771,494 , 34%


$340,710 , 15%
$48,248 , 2%


$25,000 , 1%


$758,163 , 34%


$307,562 , 14%


Water Cash - June 2020


Unrestricted (4.1 months sales) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation Construction Designated


1,044,883 , 44%


1,156,771 , 49%


42,557 , 2%


33,283 , 1%


97,342 , 4%


Wastewater Cash - June 2020


Unrestricted (6.2 months sales) DNR Replacement
Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation
Designated







Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2019 KwH Purchased 2019 2020 KwH Purchased 2020 Peak 2019 Peak 2020


January 12,752,096 13,363,141 11,728,250 12,391,530 26,165 21,586


February 11,560,908 11,896,849 11,129,324 11,416,153 23,038 21,887


March 11,641,186 11,972,418 10,906,593 11,186,342 23,235 19,372


April 10,254,850 10,595,041 9,652,850 9,951,790 19,359 18,601


May 10,504,194 10,786,337 10,102,735 10,421,886 20,621 26,854


June 11,795,758 12,089,761 12,709,515 13,073,380 29,286 31,260


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 68,508,992 70,703,547 66,229,267 68,441,081


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2019 Gallons Pumped 2019 2020 Gallons Pumped 2020 2019 2020


January 36,143,000 39,813,000 34,224,000 40,776,000 1,466,000 1,719,000


February 33,948,000 36,797,000 34,338,000 36,978,000 1,443,000 1,424,000


March 36,020,000 38,991,000 37,037,000 41,146,000 1,419,000 1,468,000


April 34,264,000 37,730,000 34,367,000 39,015,000 1,465,000 1,513,000


May 37,645,000 40,546,000 34,896,000 39,801,000 1,557,000 1,533,000


June 38,429,000 43,316,000 36,321,000 44,175,000 2,109,000 1,818,000


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 216,449,000 237,193,000 211,183,000 241,891,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2019 Gallons Gallons 2019 2020 Gallons Gallons 2020 2019 2020


January 24,591,000 36,827,000 25,995,000 33,824,000 3.10 1.92


February 23,125,000 33,032,000 25,176,000 30,702,000 3.19 1.18


March 25,549,000 43,136,000 26,467,000 39,457,000 0.96 3.00


April 24,363,000 34,347,000 26,172,000 35,649,000 3.24 3.25


May 25,992,000 42,845,000 26,697,000 38,376,000 6.37 4.50


June 25,984,000 38,913,000 26,804,000 33,801,000 3.19 4.34


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 149,604,000 229,100,000 157,311,000 211,809,000 20.05 18.19


2020 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electic


Water


Wastewater








 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


Action: 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-126-2020 


 
Date Introduced:   August 25, 2020 


 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 


the following applicants: 


 


Name      Place of Business 


  Stephanie Williams     


  Hakimi Hassamuddin    Food Pantry 


  Miles Kristan     Tru Hotel 


  Tate Knutson     Tru Hotel     


     


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 


Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 


applicants. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 








 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Sidewalk Installation Policy for the City of Stoughton 


  


 
Fiscal Impact: $0 


 
File Number: 


 
R-123 -2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 25, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, the long-term goal of the City of Stoughton is to install and maintain sidewalks to promote 


a walkable and safe environment for its citizens and visitors. This policy attempts to prioritize the 


installation of new sidewalks consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and 


 


WHEREAS, the City’s current Sidewalk Installation Policy dated October 13, 1997 to guide sidewalk 


installation is proposed to be repealed and recreated, and 


 


WHEREAS, the proposed Sidewalk Installation Policy is intended to govern street reconstruction and 


sidewalk infill project, and 


 


WHEREAS, proposed Sidewalk Installation Policy has been reviewed by the Public Works Committee 


and recommends repealing the 1997 version and adopting the proposed Sidewalk Installation Policy; now 


therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby repeals the 1997 Sidewalk 


Installation Policy and approves the proposed Sidewalk Installation Policy. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R- 2020 - Sidewalk Installation Policy-July 2020.docx 







SIDEWALK INSTALLATION POLICY 


Public Works Approved Draft Policy 8-20-20 


I. PREAMBLE 


This policy has been implemented to promote pedestrian safety and walkability in the City of 


Stoughton by creating an interconnected network of sidewalks for recreation and destination travel. 


II. POLICY STATEMENT 


The long-term goal of the City of Stoughton is to install and maintain sidewalks to promote a 


walkable and safe environment for its citizens and visitors. This policy attempts to prioritize the 


installation of new sidewalks consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  The Common 


Council may approve a deviation from this Policy through a majority vote. 


III. NEW SUBDIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT OF VACANT PARCELS 


SIDEWALK ORDINANCE REGULATIONS 


A. Ord. 10-2c) – Requires sidewalks to be installed on vacant lots at the time of 


development prior to occupancy of the building. 


B. Ord. 66-706 – Requires all new subdivisions to have new sidewalks installed on 


both sides of every street including new subdivisions. 


I V .  ST RE ET RE CO NST R U CTIO N  AN D  I N FIL L S IDEW AL K  POL IC Y   


A. All streets being considered for major reconstruction (i.e. curb and gutter) will be 


planned for sidewalks as follows: 


1. Both sides of all collector traffic level streets. 


2. Both sides of identified key routes to schools. 


3. Both sides of identified key routes to parks. 


4. Both sides of routes with identified heavy foot traffic such as the downtown 


area. 


5. Whether to include sidewalk on either or both sides of existing local streets 


without existing sidewalks shall be determined on a case-by-case basis after 


consideration of the following factors: 


i. ADA accessibility 


ii. Available right-of-way 


iii. Vehicular and pedestrian traffic volume 







iv. Connectivity to existing sidewalks 


v. Excessive costs due to physical characteristics such as the need 


for extensive retaining walls 


vi. Proximity to parks, schools, churches and other highly traveled 


destinations 


vii. Environmental impacts such as trees and wetlands 


viii. Length of dead end street or cul-de-sac 


ix. Budgetary Impacts to the City 


 


B. Repairs to existing sidewalks will follow the City’s sidewalk replacement program 


and will be based on annual program funding. 


 


V. Sidewalk Installation Approval Process 


A. Staff identifies and submits Capital Improvement Project (CIP) road construction 


projects  


B. The CIP Committee reviews and recommends road construction projects or 


engineering design requests for approval by Committee of the Whole (COW). 


C. Requests displayed on website and social media. 


D. The Committee of the Whole (COW) recommends road construction projects or 


design requests for approval to City Council. 


E. Updated Requests displayed on website and social media. 


F. The City Council will hold a Public Hearing at a Budget Meeting. 


G. City Council approves road construction projects or design requests at the City 


Council Budget meeting. 


H. Updated requests displayed on website and social media. 


I. After the project gets approval in the capital budget, design for sidewalks shall 


commence and shall be designed by staff to fit within the above outlined policy.  


During preliminary design, constructability challenges and policy guidelines will be 


presented to the Public Works Committee for direction on how to proceed with the 


preliminary design.  During preliminary design, the Public Works Committee shall 


determine whether the preliminary design for any local street described in Section IV. 


A. 5 should be constructed with sidewalks on either or both sides of the local street.   


In making any such determination, the Public Works Committee shall consider the 


factors in Section IV. A. 5.   


J. Staff shall present the preliminary sidewalk design to solicit feedback from the 


following stakeholder groups:  


a. Public Works Committee 







b. From those property owners affected by sidewalk installation (Adjacent 


property owners shall be invited to a public meeting via letter sent through the 


United States Postal Service.)  


c. City Council 


K. Recommendations to deviate from the sidewalk installation policy shall be considered 


by the Public Works Committee and who will make a recommendation to the 


Common Council. 


L. Final approval to deviate from the sidewalk installation policy shall be voted on by 


the common council and the majority vote shall prevail.  Final approval of the 


placement of sidewalks on local streets described in Section IV. A. 5 shall be made by 


the common council, after considering the determination of the Public Works 


Committee during the preliminary design phase, and the factors in Section IV. A. 5.  


 


VI. COLLECTOR STREETS 


North-South collector streets include: King Street, Lincoln Avenue, Van Buren Street, Kings Lynn 


Road, Page Street, Division Street, Fourth Street, Hoel Avenue, Veterans Road, Racetrack Road, 


Oak Opening Drive, Johnson Street and Academy Street. East-West collector streets include: Main 


Street, Hamilton Street, Greig Trail, Kreideman Drive, Wilson Street, Milwaukee Street, Roby 


Road, Jackson Street, Forton Street, Jefferson Street, South Street, and Academy Street. 


 


 


S:\Planning\RJS\SIDEWALK\Draft Sidewalk Policy Following 7-28-2020 Council with Dregne Input.docx 







 


Public Works Committee - Draft 


Thursday, August 20, 2020 


(Virtual Meeting) 


 


Members Present: Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Sid Boersma, Fred Hundt and Mayor Swadley 


Absent/Excused:   


Staff:  Public Works Director Brett Hebert, Planning Director Rodney Scheel  


 


Guests:  Alder Tim Riley, Alder Greg Jensen  


 


Call to Order:  Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:08 PM 


 


1) Communications   


 Director Hebert updated the committee on all construction projects currently going on 


and their expected completion dates. 


 Alder Majewski asked about the ride quality of the newly paved portion of Hwy 51 


from Van Buren to Hoel.  Hebert stated that the city has reached out to the DOT voicing 


concerns about the ride quality of the asphalt overlay.  Discussions are still on-going at 


this time.    


 Alder Jenson spoke about wanting the City to look into a way to spread the cost of 


sidewalks amongst the neighborhood where work is being done or just have the City 


absorb the cost of the project within the overall project budget.  Essentially eliminating 


special assessments.  Mayor Swadley said that the City has already taken steps to look 


into changing how sidewalks, curb and gutter and aprons are assessed.  This topic will 


eventually be taken to the finance committee for review once a draft is ready for debate. 


 


 


2)    Approve July 16, 2020 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Reeves seconded by Boersma to 


 approve the minutes.  Motion carried 4-0. 


Old Business: 


3) Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Language Revision to the Sidewalk Installation 


Policy:   


After the July 28, 2020 City Council meeting, the proposed sidewalk policy was sent back to 


committee to address certain concerns that some alders had with the draft policy.   


- Alder Majewski stated that requiring staff to document every single decision that goes into 


the planning of a road construction project would be unnecessarily burdensome to an 


already strapped City work force.  Many of the items in the draft policy are already being 


done by staff, it just wasn’t outlined in the current policy.  Alder Majewski also stated that 


he wasn’t against the way the draft policy is put together, but he wanted to reduce any 


unnecessary paperwork for staff. 


- Director Hebert stated that any discussion surrounding recommended changes to policy or 


overall construction plans would be captured in the minutes from the public works 


committee.  This would offer the documentation that alders are seeking and not add any 


unnecessary paperwork to the process.  Hebert also stated that even though staff already 







 


does most, if not all, of the items laid out in the draft policy, the draft policy does offer the 


transparency in the process that both alders and the public were asking for. 


- Alder Reeves reiterated that many of the steps in the draft policy staff and the committee 


already do, but agreed that the draft policy will add transparency in the decision making 


process. 


- Alder Hundt liked the idea of using the minutes to create a record of any discussion 


proposing to deviate from policy.  He added that the minutes should reflect the items laid 


out in the draft policy under section IV (5) i-ix: 


 ADA accessibility 


 Available right-of-way 


 Vehicular and pedestrian traffic volume 


 Connectivity to existing sidewalks 


 Excessive costs due to physical characteristics such as the need for extensive 


retaining walls 


 Proximity to parks, schools, churches and other highly traveled destinations 


 Environmental impacts such as trees and wetlands 


 Length of dead end street or cul-de-sac 


 Budgetary Impacts to the City 


 


 


Motion by Boersma and seconded by Reeves to recommend approval of the draft 


sidewalk installation policy to the City Council at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 


Motion carried 4-0 with the Mayor voting yes. 


    


(4) Future Agenda Items:  None at this time 


 


(5) Adjourn 


Motion to adjourn by Reeves, seconded by Boersma to adjourn the meeting at 6:40 pm.  


Motion carried 4-0.   


 


Respectfully submitted by Brett Hebert 





		05a-R- 2020 - Sidewalk Installation Policy-AUG 2020

		05b-Draft Sidewalk Policy Approved at 8-20-19 PW Committee Meeting

		05c-PW Min August 20, 2020






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\08-25-2020\Atty Dregne Substandard - Nonconforming Amend - Clean Copy.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


An ordinance amending Zoning Code Section 78-407 & 78-408 of the Stoughton Municipal Code of 


Ordinances 


Committee 


Action:    


 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-17- 2020 First Reading:  


Second Reading: 


August 25, 2020 


September 8, 2020 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


1. Section 78-407 of the Municipal Code is amended as follows: 


 


Sec. 78-407. - Substandard lot regulations.  


 


(1)  Upon and after the effective date of this chapter, no lot shall be created which does not meet 


the minimum lot area requirements of each zoning district or which does not meet the lot dimension 


requirements of each zoning district.  


(2)  A lot of record existing upon the effective date of this chapter that does not meet the 


minimum lot area or lot dimension requirements of the zoning district in which it is located may 


be used in the same manner that existed at the effective date of this chapter, and may be used for 


any other lawful use that does not require a larger lot area or larger lot dimensions than the use 


that existed at the effective date of this chapter. 


 


2. Section 78-408 of the Municipal Code is amended as follows: 


 


Sec. 78-408. - Nonconforming structure regulations.  


(1)  General Provisions:  


A "legal nonconforming structure" means a dwelling or other building that existed lawfully upon 


the effective date of this chapter or an amendment to this chapter, but does not conform to one or 


more bulk, area, height or other dimensional requirements of this chapter.   


(2)  Continuance of a Nonconforming Structure:  


A legal nonconforming structure may be used in the same manner that existed at the effective 


date of this chapter, and may be used for any other lawful use that does not increase the 


nonconformity of the structure to the requirements of this chapter beyond the non-conformities 


associated with the existing use.  


(3)  Repair, rebuilding, and maintenance of certain legal nonconforming structures.  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\08-25-2020\Atty Dregne Substandard - Nonconforming Amend - Clean Copy.docx 


 


The provisions of Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(hb), and subsequent amendments thereto, are hereby 


incorporated in this Section by reference.  


(4)  Restoration or replacement of certain legal nonconforming structures.  


 


The provisions of Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(hc), and subsequent amendments thereto, are hereby 


incorporated in this Section by reference.  


 


See also Regulations for Nonconforming Uses set forth in this Chapter. 


 


3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:            


      Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:             


       Holly Licht, City Clerk 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2020\081020\Plan Com Info\Sec 78-407-408 Amend Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  August 4, 2020 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the August 10, 2020 Plan Commission Meeting and Common 
Council Meetings of August 25 and September 8, 2020. 
 
Consider approval of zoning ordinance amendments to sections 78-407 – Substandard Lot 
Regulations and 78-408 – Nonconforming Structure Regulations. 
This proposed zoning code amendment is to provide clarity for how a substandard lot and non-
conforming structures can be used in the City.  Currently, we believe the code is unenforcible.  Staff 
worked with City Attorney Matt Dregne to amend these sections of code. The ordinance is 
provided.  A public hearing and recommendation to Council is necessary. 
 
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\Atty Dregne Substandard - Nonconforming Amend.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


An ordinance amending Zoning Code Section 78-407 & 78-408 of the Stoughton Municipal Code of 
Ordinances 


Committee 
Action:    


Plan Commission recommends approval  - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -   - 2020 Date Introduced:   


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 


1. Section 78-407 of the Municipal Code is amended as follows: 
 


Sec. 78-407. - Substandard lot regulations.  
 


(1)  Upon and after the effective date of this chapter, no lot shall be created which does not meet 
the minimum lot area requirements of each zoning district or which does not meet the lot dimension 
requirements of each zoning district.  


(2)  A lot of record existing upon the effective date of this chapter that in a residential district 
(see section 78-102), which does not meet the minimum lot area (MLA) requirements each 
zoning district, or which does not meet the lot dimension requirements of theeach zoning district 
in which it is located may be used inutilized for a detached single family dwelling unit, provided 
the same manner that existed at measurements of such area and dimensions are equal to or 
greater than 80 percent of the effective daterequirements of this chapter, and may be used for any 
other lawful use that does not require a larger.  Said lot area or largershall not be more 
intensively developed (with multi-family or nonresidential uses) unless combined with one or 
more abutting lots (or portions thereof) so as to create a lot dimensions than which meets the use 
that existed at the effective daterequirements of this chapter. 


 
2. Section 78-408 of the Municipal Code is amended as follows: 


 
Sec. 78-408. - Nonconforming structure regulations.  
(1)  General Provisions:  


As set forth in Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(hb), a "nonconforming structure" means a dwelling or other 
building that existed lawfully before the current zoning ordinance or development regulation was 
enacted or amended, but that does not conform with one or more of the zoning ordinances or 
development regulations adopted as part of the current ordinance or regulation. The current use 
of the structure conforms to this Chapter; however, the structure itself does not comply with 
current regulations (perhaps as a result of development regulations such as setbacks, for 
example) but the structure did conform with the regulations in effect when constructed. The 







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\Atty Dregne Substandard - Nonconforming Amend.docx 
 


continued lawful use of a structure lawfully existing at the time of the adoption or amendment of 
a zoning ordinance may not be prohibited although the structure does not conform with the 
provisions of the newly adopted ordinance.  As required by law, the City's interpretation and 
application of the nonconforming structure regulations set forth in this Section shall be governed 
by state statutes relating to nonconforming structures, and any subsequent amendments thereto. 
Applicable provisions of Wis. Stat. A "legal nonconforming structure" means a dwelling or other 
building that existed lawfully upon the effective date of this chapter or an amendment to this 
chapter, but does not conform to one or more bulk, area, height or other dimensional 
requirements of this chapter.   


§ 62.23(7) relating to nonconforming structures, and subsequent amendments thereto, are hereby 
incorporated in this Section by reference. In the event of a conflict of law in this Chapter, Wis. 
Stat. § 62.23(7)(g) shall apply.  


(2)  Continuance of a Nonconforming Structure:  


A legal nonconforming structure may be used in the same manner that existed at the effective 
date of this chapter, and may be used for any other lawful use that does not increase the 
nonconformity of the structure to the requirements of this chapter beyond the non-conformities 
associated with the existing use.  


(3)  Repair, rebuilding, and maintenance of certain legal nonconforming structures.  


The provisions of Wis. Any nonconforming structure may continue as allowed by law.  


(3)  Repair, Maintenance, Renovation or Remodeling of a Nonconforming Structure:  


As prescribed by Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(hc), the City does not by this Section 78-408 prohibit, or 
limit based on cost, the repair, maintenance, renovation, or remodeling of a nonconforming 
structure.  


(4)  Structural Alterations and Repairs for Nonconforming Structures:  


As prescribed by Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(hc), the City does not by this Section 78-408 prohibit the 
restoration of a nonconforming structure if the structure will be restored to the size, location, and 
use that it had immediately before the damage or destruction occurred, without any limits on the 
costs of the repair, reconstruction, or improvement if all of the following apply:  


(a)  The nonconforming structure was damaged or destroyed on or after March 2, 2006.  


(b)  The damage or destruction was caused by violent wind, vandalism, fire, flood, ice, snow, 
mold, or infestation.  


Note— [Note: Notwithstanding the foregoing, where both (a) and (b) above apply, the size of a 
structure may be larger than the size it was immediately before the damage or destruction if 
necessary for the structure to comply with applicable state or federal requirements.]  


Stat. § 62.23(7)(hb), and subsequent amendments thereto, are hereby incorporated in this Section 
by reference.  







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\Atty Dregne Substandard - Nonconforming Amend.docx 


(4)  Restoration or replacement of certain legal nonconforming structures.  


 
The provisions of Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(hc), and subsequent amendments thereto, are hereby 
incorporated in this Section by reference.  


 
See also Regulations for Nonconforming Uses set forth in this Chapter. 


 
 


3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:            
      Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:    
 
Attest:             


       Holly Licht, City Clerk 







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\Substandard - Nonconforming Amend - Clean Copy.docx 


Sec. 78-407. - Substandard lot regulations.  
 
(1)  Upon and after the effective date of this chapter, no lot shall be created which does not meet 
the minimum lot area requirements of each zoning district or which does not meet the lot dimension 
requirements of each zoning district.  
(2)  A lot of record existing upon the effective date of this chapter that does not meet the 
minimum lot area or lot dimension requirements of the zoning district in which it is located may 
be used in the same manner that existed at the effective date of this chapter, and may be used for 
any other lawful use that does not require a larger lot area or larger lot dimensions than the use 
that existed at the effective date of this chapter. 


 
1. Section 78-408 of the Municipal Code is amended as follows: 


 
Sec. 78-408. - Nonconforming structure regulations.  
(1)  General Provisions:  
A "legal nonconforming structure" means a dwelling or other building that existed lawfully upon 
the effective date of this chapter or an amendment to this chapter, but does not conform to one or 
more bulk, area, height or other dimensional requirements of this chapter.   


(2)  Continuance of a Nonconforming Structure:  
A legal nonconforming structure may be used in the same manner that existed at the effective 
date of this chapter, and may be used for any other lawful use that does not increase the 
nonconformity of the structure to the requirements of this chapter beyond the non-conformities 
associated with the existing use.  


(3)  Repair, rebuilding, and maintenance of certain legal nonconforming structures.  
The provisions of Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(hb), and subsequent amendments thereto, are hereby 
incorporated in this Section by reference.  


(4)  Restoration or replacement of certain legal nonconforming structures.  
 
The provisions of Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(hc), and subsequent amendments thereto, are hereby 
incorporated in this Section by reference.  


 
See also Regulations for Nonconforming Uses set forth in this Chapter. 


 





		06a-O-17-2020

		06b-Zoning Ord Amendment 78-407  -  78-408 Substandard - Nonconforming






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2019 Wastewater 


treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


(CMAR). 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 6-0 


 
Fiscal Impact: None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-127-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 25, 2020 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City of Stoughton for Stoughton Utilities to operate a 


wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system to serve customers within the City of 


Stoughton, and 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has prepared a 2019 CMAR in conformance with Chapter NR 208 of 


the Wisconsin Administrative Code, and 


WHEREAS, Annual submittal of an electronic CMAR form (eCMAR) is required to be completed 


annually no later than June 30, and 


WHEREAS, The submission date for the 2019 CMAR was extended to August 31, 2020 by the Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources due to the ongoing COVID-19 public health crisis, and 


WHEREAS, on August 17, 2020 the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved and recommended the 


approval of the proposed Stoughton Utilities 2019 Wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer 


collection system Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) to the Common Council, now 


therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the proper city official(s) approve 


and adopt the Stoughton Utilities 2019 Wastewater Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR). 


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Tim Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, August 17, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  2 


Wastewater 2019 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR):  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and 


discussed the 2019 CMAR.  Staff informed the committee that annual submittal of an electronic CMAR form 


(eCMAR) is required to be completed no later than June 30, however the 2020 submission date was extended 


to August 31, 2020 due to the ongoing COVID-19 public health crisis.  Staff further informed the committee that 


there were no concerns noted in the CMAR.  Discussion followed.  


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Thoren, to approve the 2019 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


and recommend the approval and adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council 


on August 25, 2020.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Naming the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller as 


Authorized Representatives to File Applications for Financial Assistance from the State of Wisconsin 


Environmental Improvement Fund:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the requirement of any 


application for funding assistance from the State of Wisconsin Environmental Improvement Fund to designate a 


representative for filing financial assistance applications.  As part of its Lead Service Line (LSL) Replacement 


Program, Stoughton Utilities currently plans to apply for funding assistance from the State of Wisconsin 


Environmental Improvement Fund.  This funding will provide assistance to private property owners for the 


replacement of their privately-owned lead service line.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Kallas, to approve that the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the 


Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller be named as Authorized Representatives to file applications for 


financial assistance from the State of Wisconsin Environmental Improvement Fund, and be further authorized 


and empowered to do all things necessary in connection with any applications for financial assistance, and 


recommend the approval and adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on 


August 25, 2020.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 


Program Summary: Stoughton Utilities COVID-19 Community Recharge Incentive:  Stoughton Utilities staff 


presented and discussed the recently concluded Community Recharge incentive program offered to Stoughton 


Utilities customers in partnership with the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce.   


Staff informed the committee that program funds were exhausted on August 5, 2020, well ahead of schedule, 


and in the 30 days following the first promotions of the program, 347 customers purchased a total of 639 


Chamber Bucks Certificates.  Stoughton Utilities matched these purchases, and as a grand total, this program 


resulted in 1,378 Chamber Bucks certificates totaling $36,166 being printed to be spent at local Stoughton 


businesses.  


Staff further informed the committee that customer feedback was very positive, with information about the 


program and its benefits being shared on social media by numerous customers and local small businesses, and 


a sampling of customer feedback was presented.  Discussion followed. 


Customer Collections Status Report:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed an update on the 


current status of customer collections as a result of the COVID-19 public health crisis and recent actions taken 


by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).   


Staff informed the committee that the PSCW recently voted to extend the electric and water service disconnection 


moratorium until September 1, 2020, resulting in adjustments having to be made to SU’s collection schedule that 


had been previously presented to the committee.  Service disconnections will resume on September 2, delayed 



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


  


Date:   
  


August 12, 2020 


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Brian G. Erickson  


Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  Wastewater 2019 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) 


Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) requirements have been in existence since 1987, and 


the attached CMAR has been completed as required by Chapter NR 208 of the Wisconsin Administrative 


Code.  Annual submittal of an electronic CMAR form (eCMAR) is required to be completed no later than 


June 30; the 2020 submission date was extended to August 31, 2020 due to the ongoing COVID-19 public 


health crisis.   


The CMAR is a self-evaluation tool that promotes the owner's awareness and responsibility for wastewater 


collection and treatment needs, measures the performance of a wastewater treatment works during a 


calendar year, and assesses its level of compliance with permit requirements.  This report addresses both 


the City of Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility as well as the city’s sanitary sewer collection system. 


The purpose of the CMAR is to evaluate the wastewater treatment system for problems or deficiencies.  


Management, operation, and maintenance activities are described.  Owners identify proposed actions to 


prevent violations of WPDES permits and water quality degradation.  The CMAR program also 


encourages actions that: 


• Promote the owners’ awareness and responsibility for wastewater collection and treatment needs. 


• Maximize the useful life of wastewater treatment systems through improved operation & 


maintenance. 


• Initiate formal planning, design and construction for system upgrades. 


It is requested that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approve the annual Compliance 


Maintenance Annual Report, and recommend approval and adoption of the corresponding resolution to 


the Stoughton Common Council on August 25, 2020. 


 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Influent Flow and Loading


1. Monthly Average Flows and BOD Loadings
1.1 Verify the following monthly flows and BOD loadings to your facility.


Influent No.
701


Influent Monthly
Average Flow, MGD


x Influent Monthly
Average BOD


Concentration mg/L


x 8.34 = Influent Monthly
Average BOD


Loading, lbs/day
January 1.2354 x 219 x 8.34 = 2,254
February 1.2229 x 206 x 8.34 = 2,096


March 1.4301 x 192 x 8.34 = 2,293
April 1.2937 x 199 x 8.34 = 2,144
May 1.4599 x 270 x 8.34 = 3,284
June 1.2971 x 228 x 8.34 = 2,467
July 1.2139 x 265 x 8.34 = 2,685


August 1.2477 x 237 x 8.34 = 2,465
September 1.2427 x 262 x 8.34 = 2,716


October 1.3679 x 239 x 8.34 = 2,721
November 1.2649 x 252 x 8.34 = 2,661
December 1.2279 x 250 x 8.34 = 2,555


2. Maximum Monthly Design Flow and Design BOD Loading
2.1 Verify the design flow and loading for your facility.


Design Design Factor x % = % of Design
Max Month Design Flow, MGD 2.06 x 90 = 1.854


x 100 = 2.06
Design BOD, lbs/day 2655 x 90 = 2389.5


x 100 = 2655


2.2 Verify the number of times the flow and BOD exceeded 90% or 100% of design, points earned,
and score:


Months
of


Influent


Number of times
flow was greater


than 90% of


Number of times
flow was greater


than 100% of


Number of times
BOD was greater


than 90% of design


Number of times
BOD was greater


than 100% of design
January 1 0 0 0 0
February 1 0 0 0 0


March 1 0 0 0 0
April 1 0 0 0 0
May 1 0 0 1 1
June 1 0 0 1 0
July 1 0 0 1 1


August 1 0 0 1 0
September 1 0 0 1 1


October 1 0 0 1 1
November 1 0 0 1 1
December 1 0 0 1 0


 Points per each 2 1 3 2
 Exceedances 0 0 8 5
 Points 0 0 24 10


 Total Number of Points 34


34







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


3. Flow Meter
3.1 Was the influent flow meter calibrated in the last year?


Yes Enter last calibration date (MM/DD/YYYY)
04/08/2019


No
If No, please explain:


4. Sewer Use Ordinance
4.1 Did your community have a sewer use ordinance that limited or prohibited the discharge of
excessive conventional pollutants ((C)BOD, SS, or pH) or toxic substances to the sewer from
industries, commercial users, hauled waste, or residences?


Yes
No


If No, please explain:


4.2 Was it necessary to enforce the ordinance?
Yes
No


If Yes, please explain:


Sump pump inspections, grease trap's, Leaking lateral connections and industry discharges.


5. Septage Receiving
5.1 Did you have requests to receive septage at your facility?
Septic Tanks Holding Tanks Grease Traps


Yes Yes Yes


No No No


5.2 Did you receive septage at your faclity? If yes, indicate volume in gallons.
Septic Tanks


Yes gallons


No
Holding Tanks


Yes gallons


No
Grease Traps


Yes gallons


No
5.2.1 If yes to any of the above, please explain if plant performance is affected when receiving
any of these wastes.


6. Pretreatment
6.1 Did your facility experience operational problems, permit violations, biosolids quality concerns,
or hazardous situations in the sewer system or treatment plant that were attributable to
commercial or industrial discharges in the last year?


Yes
No


If yes, describe the situation and your community's response.


6.2 Did your facility accept hauled industrial wastes, landfill leachate, etc.?







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Yes
No


If yes, describe the types of wastes received and any procedures or other restrictions that were
in place to protect the facility from the discharge of hauled industrial wastes.


Total Points Generated 34
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 66


Section Grade D







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (BOD/CBOD)


1. Effluent (C)BOD Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for BOD or
CBOD


Outfall No.
001


Monthly
Average


Limit (mg/L)


90% of
Permit Limit
> 10 (mg/L)


Effluent Monthly
Average (mg/L)


Months of
Discharge


with a Limit


Permit Limit
Exceedance


90% Permit
Limit


Exceedance
January 25 22.5 3 1 0 0
February 25 22.5 4 1 0 0


March 25 22.5 3 1 0 0
April 25 22.5 3 1 0 0
May 25 22.5 4 1 0 0
June 25 22.5 4 1 0 0
July 25 22.5 2 1 0 0


August 25 22.5 2 1 0 0
September 25 22.5 2 1 0 0


October 25 22.5 3 1 0 0
November 25 22.5 3 1 0 0
December 25 22.5 3 1 0 0


* Equals limit if limit is <= 10


Months of discharge/yr 12
Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge 7 3
Exceedances 0 0
Points 0 0


Total number of points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to state waters, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge. Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months
of the year, the multiplication factor is 12/6 = 2.0


1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?


0


2. Flow Meter Calibration
2.1 Was the effluent flow meter calibrated in the last year?


Yes Enter last calibration date (MM/DD/YYYY)
04/08/2019


No 
If No, please explain:


3. Treatment Problems
3.1 What problems, if any, were experienced over the last year that threatened treatment?


None


4. Other Monitoring and Limits
4.1 At any time in the past year was there an exceedance of a permit limit for any other pollutants
such as chlorides, pH, residual chlorine, fecal coliform, or metals?


Yes  
No 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


If Yes, please explain:


4.2 At any time in the past year was there a failure of an effluent acute or chronic whole effluent
toxicity (WET) test?


Yes  
No 


If Yes, please explain:


4.3 If the biomonitoring (WET) test did not pass, were steps taken to identify and/or reduce
source(s) of toxicity?


Yes  
No 
N/A 


Please explain unless not applicable:


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Total Suspended Solids)


1. Effluent Total Suspended Solids Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for TSS:


Outfall No.
001


Monthly
Average


Limit (mg/L)


90% of
Permit Limit
>10 (mg/L)


Effluent Monthly
Average (mg/L)


Months of
Discharge


with a Limit


Permit Limit
Exceedance


90% Permit
Limit


Exceedance
January 30 27 6 1 0 0
February 30 27 7 1 0 0


March 30 27 7 1 0 0
April 30 27 8 1 0 0
May 30 27 10 1 0 0
June 30 27 9 1 0 0
July 30 27 7 1 0 0


August 30 27 6 1 0 0
September 30 27 6 1 0 0


October 30 27 8 1 0 0
November 30 27 8 1 0 0
December 30 27 8 1 0 0


* Equals limit if limit is <= 10


Months of Discharge/yr 12
Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge: 7 3
Exceedances 0 0
Points 0 0


Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to state waters, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge.
 Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months of the year, the multiplication
factor is 12/6 = 2.0


1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?


0


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Phosphorus)


1. Effluent Phosphorus Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for Phosphorus


Outfall No. 001 Monthly Average
phosphorus Limit


(mg/L)


Effluent Monthly
Average phosphorus


(mg/L)


Months of
Discharge with a


Limit


Permit Limit
Exceedance


January 1.3 0.463 1 0
February 1.3 0.573 1 0


March 1.3 0.569 1 0
April 1.3 0.496 1 0
May 1.3 0.500 1 0
June 1.3 0.489 1 0
July 1.3 0.402 1 0


August 1.3 0.418 1 0
September 1.3 0.215 1 0


October 1.3 0.364 1 0
November 1.3 0.478 1 0
December 1.3 0.356 1 0


 Months of Discharge/yr 12
 Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge: 10
 Exceedances 0


 Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to waters of the state, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge.
Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months of the year, the multiplication factor
is 12/6 = 2.0


1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?


0


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Biosolids Quality and Management


1. Biosolids Use/Disposal
1.1 How did you use or dispose of your biosolids? (Check all that apply)


Land applied under your permit
Publicly Distributed Exceptional Quality Biosolids
Hauled to another permitted facility
Landfilled
Incinerated
Other


NOTE: If you did not remove biosolids from your system, please describe your system type such
as lagoons, reed beds, recirculating sand filters, etc.
1.1.1 If you checked Other, please describe:


2. Land Application Site
2.1 Last Year's Approved and Active Land Application Sites
2.1.1 How many acres did you have?
1788.60 acres


2.1.2 How many acres did you use?
106.1 acres


2.2 If you did not have enough acres for your land application needs, what action was taken?


2.3 Did you overapply nitrogen on any of your approved land application sites you used last year?
Yes (30 points)
No


2.4 Have all the sites you used last year for land application been soil tested in the previous 4
years?


Yes
No (10 points)


N/A


0


3. Biosolids Metals
Number of biosolids outfalls in your WPDES permit:


3.1 For each outfall tested, verify the biosolids metal quality values for your facility during the last
calendar year.


Outfall No. 002 - SLUDGE
Parameter 80%


of
Limit


H.Q.
Limit


Ceiling
Limit


Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 80%
Value


High
Quality


Ceiling


Arsenic 41 75 <2.7 0 0
Cadmium 39 85 .94 0 0
Copper 1500 4300 380 0 0
Lead 300 840 28 0 0


Mercury 17 57 <1 0 0
Molybdenum 60 75 9.4 0 0


Nickel 336 420 14 0 0
Selenium 80 100 <6.7 0 0


Zinc 2800 7500 670 0 0


3.1.1 Number of times any of the metals exceeded the high quality limits OR 80% of the limit for
molybdenum, nickel, or selenium = 0
Exceedence Points


0     (0 Points)







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


1-2   (10 Points)
> 2   (15 Points)


3.1.2 If you exceeded the high quality limits, did you cumulatively track the metals loading at
each land application site? (check applicable box)


Yes
No (10 points)


N/A - Did not exceed limits or no HQ limit applies (0 points)
N/A - Did not land apply biosolids until limit was met (0 points)


3.1.3 Number of times any of the metals exceeded the ceiling limits = 0
Exceedence Points


0     (0 Points)
1     (10 Points)
> 1   (15 Points)


3.1.4 Were biosolids land applied which exceeded the ceiling limit?
Yes (20 Points)
No  (0 Points)


3.1.5 If any metal limit (high quality or ceiling) was exceeded at any time, what action was taken?
Has the source of the metals been identified?


0


4. Pathogen Control (per outfall):
4.1 Verify the following information. If any information is incorrect, use the Report Issue button
under the Options header in the left-side menu.


Outfall Number: 002
Biosolids Class: B
Bacteria Type and Limit:
Sample Dates: 01/01/2019 - 12/31/2019
Density:
Sample Concentration Amount:
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: Yes
Process: Anaerobic Digestion
Process Description: Mixed in an anaerobic digester tank at 95 degrees


F. for more than 15 days.


4.2 If exceeded Class B limit or did not meet the process criteria at the time of land application.
4.2.1 Was the limit exceeded or the process criteria not met at the time of land application?


Yes (40 Points)
No


If yes, what action was taken?


0


5. Vector Attraction Reduction (per outfall):
5.1 Verify the following information. If any of the information is incorrect, use the Report Issue
button under the Options header in the left-side menu.







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Outfall Number: 002
Method Date: 12/31/2019
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: Injection when land apply
Requirement Met: Yes
Land Applied: Yes
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):


5.2 Was the limit exceeded or the process criteria not met at the time of land application?
Yes (40 Points)
No


If yes, what action was taken?


0


6. Biosolids Storage
6.1 How many days of actual, current biosolids storage capacity did your wastewater treatment
facility have either on-site or off-site?


>= 180 days (0 Points)
150 - 179 days (10 Points)
120 - 149 days (20 Points)
90 - 119 days (30 Points)
< 90 days (40 Points)
N/A (0 Points)


6.2 If you checked N/A above, explain why.


0


7. Issues
7.1 Describe any outstanding biosolids issues with treatment, use or overall management:


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Staffing and Preventative Maintenance (All Treatment Plants)


1. Plant Staffing
1.1 Was your wastewater treatment plant adequately staffed last year?


Yes
No


If No, please explain:


Could use more help/staff for:


1.2 Did your wastewater staff have adequate time to properly operate and maintain the plant and
fulfill all wastewater management tasks including recordkeeping?


Yes
No


If No, please explain:


2. Preventative Maintenance
2.1 Did your plant have a documented AND implemented plan for preventative maintenance on
major equipment items?


Yes (Continue with question 2) 


No (40 points)




If No, please explain, then go to question 3:


2.2 Did this preventative maintenance program depict frequency of intervals, types of lubrication,
and other tasks necessary for each piece of equipment?


Yes
No (10 points) 


2.3 Were these preventative maintenance tasks, as well as major equipment repairs, recorded and
filed so future maintenance problems can be assessed properly?


Yes


Paper file system
Computer system
Both paper and computer system


No (10 points)


0


3. O&M Manual
3.1 Does your plant have a detailed O&M and Manufacturer Equipment Manuals that can be used
as a reference when needed?


Yes
No


4. Overall Maintenance /Repairs
4.1 Rate the overall maintenance of your wastewater plant.


Excellent
Very good
Good
Fair
Poor


Describe your rating:







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


We continue to operate with little to no failures. We have an equipment replacement schedule
that we work with our consulting engineers on. All our equipment maintenance is followed by
the manufactures recommendations. Staff stays diligent on all maintenance schedules.


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Operator Certification and Education


1. Operator-In-Charge
1.1 Did you have a designated operator-in-charge during the report year?


Yes (0 points) 
No  (20 points) 


Name:
BRIAN G ERICKSON


Certification No:
28016


0


2. Certification Requirements
2.1 In accordance with Chapter NR 114.56 and 114.57, Wisconsin Administrative Code, what level
and subclass(es) were required for the operator-in-charge (OIC) to operate the wastewater
treatment plant and what level and subclass(es) were held by the operator-in-charge?


Sub
Class


SubClass Description WWTP OIC
Advanced OIT Basic Advanced


A1 Suspended Growth Processes X X
A2 Attached Growth Processes
A3 Recirculating Media Filters
A4 Ponds, Lagoons and Natural
A5 Anaerobic Treatment Of Liquid
B Solids Separation X X
C Biological Solids/Sludges X X
P Total Phosphorus X X
N Total Nitrogen
D Disinfection X X
L Laboratory X X
U Unique Treatment Systems
SS Sanitary Sewage Collection X NA NA NA


2.2 Was the operator-in-charge certified at the appropriate level and subclass(es) to operate this
plant? (Note: Certification in subclass SS, N and A5 not required in 2019; subclass SS is basic level
only.)


Yes (0 points) 
No  (20 points) 


0


3. Succession Planning
3.1 In the event of the loss of your designated operator-in-charge, did you have a contingency plan
to ensure the continued proper operation and maintenance of the plant that includes one or more
of the following options (check all that apply)?


One or more additional certified operators on staff 
An arrangement with another certified operator 
An arrangement with another community with a certified operator 
An operator on staff who has an operator-in-training certificate for your plant and is expected to
be certified within one year
A consultant to serve as your certified operator 
None of the above (20 points) 


If "None of the above" is selected, please explain:


0


4. Continuing Education Credits







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


4.1 If you had a designated operator-in-charge, was the operator-in-charge earning Continuing
Education Credits at the following rates?
OIT and Basic Certification:


Averaging 6 or more CECs per year. 
Averaging less than 6 CECs per year. 


Advanced Certification:
Averaging 8 or more CECs per year. 
Averaging less than 8 CECs per year. 


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Financial Management


1. Provider of Financial Information
Name:  


Jamin Friedl


Telephone:
608-873-6691 (XXX) XXX-XXXX


E-Mail Address
(optional):


2. Treatment Works Operating Revenues
2.1 Are User Charges or other revenues sufficient to cover O&M expenses for your wastewater
treatment plant AND/OR collection system ?


Yes (0 points) 


No (40 points)


If No, please explain:


2.2 When was the User Charge System or other revenue source(s) last reviewed and/or revised?
Year:


2019
0-2 years ago (0 points) 


3 or more years ago (20 points)


N/A (private facility) 


2.3 Did you have a special account (e.g., CWFP required segregated Replacement Fund, etc.) or
financial resources available for repairing or replacing equipment for your wastewater treatment
plant and/or collection system?


Yes (0 points) 


No (40 points) 


0


REPLACEMENT FUNDS [PUBLIC MUNICIPAL FACILITIES SHALL COMPLETE QUESTION 3]
3. Equipment Replacement Funds
3.1 When was the Equipment Replacement Fund last reviewed and/or revised?
Year:


2019
1-2 years ago (0 points)


3 or more years ago (20 points)


N/A


If N/A, please explain:


3.2 Equipment Replacement Fund Activity


3.2.1  Ending Balance Reported on Last Year's CMAR $ 1,148,644.00


3.2.2 Adjustments - if necessary (e.g. earned interest,
audit correction, withdrawal of excess funds, increase
making up previous shortfall, etc.)


$ 0.00


3.2.3 Adjusted January 1st Beginning Balance $ 1,148,644.00


3.2.4 Additions to Fund (e.g. portion of User Fee,
earned interest, etc.) + $ 15,246.00







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


3.2.5 Subtractions from Fund (e.g., equipment
replacement, major repairs - use description box
3.2.6.1 below*) - $ 0.00


3.2.6 Ending Balance as of December 31st for CMAR
Reporting Year $ 1,163,890.00


All Sources: This ending balance should include all
Equipment Replacement Funds whether held in a
bank account(s), certificate(s) of deposit, etc.


3.2.6.1 Indicate adjustments, equipment purchases, and/or major repairs from 3.2.5 above.


3.3  What amount should be in your Replacement Fund? $ 1,163,890.00
Please note: If you had a CWFP loan, this amount was originally based on the Financial
Assistance Agreement (FAA) and should be regularly updated as needed. Further calculation
instructions and an example can be found by clicking the SectionInstructions link under Info
header in the left-side menu.


3.3.1 Is the December 31 Ending Balance in your Replacement Fund above, (#3.2.6) equal to, or
greater than the amount that should be in it (#3.3)?


Yes
No


If No, please explain.


0


4. Future Planning
4.1 During the next ten years, will you be involved in formal planning for upgrading, rehabilitating,
or new construction of your treatment facility or collection system?


Yes  -  If Yes, please provide major project information, if not already listed below.


No


Project
#


Project Description Estimated
Cost


Approximate
Construction


Year
1 2021 Slip Lining project. Jefferson, Monroe alley, Mandt Park Way and Vernon St 150000 2021


2 Phosphorus Bulk Chemical Storage Tank Project. 225000 2022
3 2022 South St from Page to Van Buren St 355000 2022
4 Taft, Prairie, Madison, and McKinley Street 996000 2023
5 Chicago, Giles, Page and Berry Street. 1139000 2024
6 Academy Street: Moline to South St. 558000 2022
7 Division and Giles St. 210000 2025
8 Sludge transfer pump, Gravity belt thickener and Final clarifier rebuilds 90000 2021


5. Financial Management General Comments


ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND USE
6. Collection System
6.1 Energy Usage
6.1.1 Enter the monthly energy usage from the different energy sources:


COLLECTION SYSTEM PUMPAGE: Total Power Consumed
Number of Municipally Owned Pump/Lift Stations: 6







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Electricity Consumed
(kWh)


Natural Gas Consumed
(therms)


January 2,243 0


February 2,213 0


March 2,119 1


April 2,098 0


May 1,687 2


June 1,713 0


July 1,372 1


August 1,363 0


September 1,313 1


October 1,365 0


November 1,709 1


December 1,888 0


Total 21,083 6
Average 1,757 1


6.1.2 Comments:


6.2 Energy Related Processes and Equipment
6.2.1 Indicate equipment and practices utilized at your pump/lift stations (Check all that apply):


Comminution or Screening
Extended Shaft Pumps
Flow Metering and Recording
Pneumatic Pumping
SCADA System
Self-Priming Pumps
Submersible Pumps
Variable Speed Drives
Other:


6.2.2 Comments:


6.3 Has an Energy Study been performed for your pump/lift stations?
No
Yes


Year:


By Whom:


Describe and Comment:







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


6.4 Future Energy Related Equipment


6.4.1 What energy efficient equipment or practices do you have planned for the future for your
pump/lift stations?


None for now.


7. Treatment Facility
7.1 Energy Usage
7.1.1 Enter the monthly energy usage from the different energy sources:


TREATMENT PLANT: Total Power Consumed/Month
Electricity
Consumed


(kWh)


Total Influent
Flow (MG)


Electricity
Consumed/


Flow
(kWh/MG)


Total Influent
BOD (1000 lbs)


Electricity
Consumed/


Total Influent
BOD


(kWh/1000lbs)


Natural Gas
Consumed
(therms)


January 63,943 38.30 1,670 69.87 915 1,668


February 69,388 34.24 2,027 58.69 1,182 1,792


March 69,008 44.33 1,557 71.08 971 3,075


April 69,190 38.81 1,783 64.32 1,076 2,577


May 62,478 45.26 1,380 101.80 614 1,544


June 70,661 38.91 1,816 74.01 955 1,094


July 65,486 37.63 1,740 83.24 787 634


August 68,868 38.68 1,780 76.42 901 81


September 70,578 37.28 1,893 81.48 866 91


October 67,130 42.40 1,583 84.35 796 209


November 65,185 37.95 1,718 79.83 817 364


December 34,832 38.06 915 79.21 440 998


Total 776,747 471.85 924.30 14,127


Average 64,729 39.32 1,655 77.03 860 1,177


7.1.2 Comments:


7.2 Energy Related Processes and Equipment
7.2.1 Indicate equipment and practices utilized at your treatment facility (Check all that apply):


Aerobic Digestion
Anaerobic Digestion
Biological Phosphorus Removal
Coarse Bubble Diffusers
Dissolved O2 Monitoring and Aeration Control
Effluent Pumping
Fine Bubble Diffusers
Influent Pumping
Mechanical Sludge Processing
Nitrification
SCADA System
UV Disinfection
Variable Speed Drives
Other:







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


7.2.2 Comments:


7.3 Future Energy Related Equipment


7.3.1 What energy efficient equipment or practices do you have planned for the future for your
treatment facility?


None at this time


8. Biogas Generation


8.1 Do you generate/produce biogas at your facility?
No
Yes


If Yes, how is the biogas used (Check all that apply):
Flared Off
Building Heat
Process Heat
Generate Electricity
Other:


9. Energy Efficiency Study


9.1 Has an Energy Study been performed for your treatment facility?
No
Yes


Entire facility
Year:


2014
By Whom:


Focus on Energy and WPPI
Describe and Comment:


The WWTP operations has implemented energy efficiency standards. Energy efficient motors,
VFD;s, power monitors, and SCADA controls.


Part of the facility
Year:


By Whom:


Describe and Comment:







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems


1. Capacity, Management, Operation, and Maintenance (CMOM) Program
1.1 Do you have a CMOM program that is being implemented?


Yes
No


If No, explain:


1.2 Do you have a CMOM program that contains all the applicable components and items
according to Wisc. Adm Code NR 210.23 (4)?


Yes
No (30 points)
N/A


If No or N/A, explain:


1.3 Does your CMOM program contain the following components and items? (check the
components and items that apply)


Goals [NR 210.23 (4)(a)]
Describe the major goals you had for your collection system last year:


We completed 2019 sanitary sewer projects. This consisted of replacing Sewer mains,
manholes and laterals. We also inspected sump pumps, cleaned over half the sewer mains and
televised sewers.


Did you accomplish them?
Yes
No


If No, explain:


Organization [NR 210.23 (4) (b)]


Does this chapter of your CMOM include:


Organizational structure and positions (eg. organizational chart and position descriptions)
Internal and external lines of communication responsibilities
Person(s) responsible for reporting overflow events to the department and the public


Legal Authority [NR 210.23 (4) (c)]
What is the legally binding document that regulates the use of your sewer system?
Municipal Code of Ordiance
If you have a Sewer Use Ordinance or other similar document, when was it last reviewed and
revised? (MM/DD/YYYY) 3/27/2018
Does your sewer use ordinance or other legally binding document address the following:


Private property inflow and infiltration
New sewer and building sewer design, construction, installation, testing and inspection
Rehabilitated sewer and lift station installation, testing and inspection
Sewage flows satellite system and large private users are monitored and controlled, as
necessary
Fat, oil and grease control
Enforcement procedures for sewer use non-compliance


Operation and Maintenance [NR 210.23 (4) (d)]
Does your operation and maintenance program and equipment include the following:


Equipment and replacement part inventories
Up-to-date sewer system map







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


A management system (computer database and/or file system) for collection system
information for O&M activities, investigation and rehabilitation
A description of routine operation and maintenance activities (see question 2 below)
Capacity assessment program
Basement back assessment and correction
Regular O&M training


Design and Performance Provisions [NR 210.23 (4) (e)]


What standards and procedures are established for the design, construction, and inspection of
the sewer collection system, including building sewers and interceptor sewers on private
property?


State Plumbing Code, DNR NR 110 Standards and/or local Municipal Code Requirements
Construction, Inspection, and Testing
Others:


Overflow Emergency Response Plan [NR 210.23 (4) (f)]


Does your emergency response capability include:


Responsible personnel communication procedures
Response order, timing and clean-up
Public notification protocols
Training
Emergency operation protocols and implementation procedures


Annual Self-Auditing of your CMOM Program [NR 210.23 (5)]


Special Studies Last Year (check only those that apply):


Infiltration/Inflow (I/I) Analysis
Sewer System Evaluation Survey (SSES)
Sewer Evaluation and Capacity Managment Plan (SECAP)
Lift Station Evaluation Report
Others:


0


2. Operation and Maintenance
2.1 Did your sanitary sewer collection system maintenance program include the following
maintenance activities? Complete all that apply and indicate the amount maintained.
Cleaning 50   % of system/year


Root removal 2   % of system/year


Flow monitoring 0   % of system/year


Smoke testing 0   % of system/year


Sewer line
televising 5   % of system/year


Manhole
inspections 5   % of system/year


Lift station O&M 52   # per L.S./year


Manhole
rehabilitation 1   % of manholes rehabbed


Mainline
rehabilitation 1   % of sewer lines rehabbed


Private sewer
inspections 0   % of system/year







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Private sewer I/I
removal 1   % of private services


River or water
crossings 100   % of pipe crossings evaluated or maintained


Please include additional comments about your sanitary sewer collection system below:


We continue to work with consulting engineers to update our collection system. We also
implemented a GIS data mapping database for manhole inspections, televising and cleaning the
collection system.


3. Performance Indicators
3.1 Provide the following collection system and flow information for the past year.


45.55 Total actual amount of precipitation last year in inches


34.48 Annual average precipitation (for your location)


59 Miles of sanitary sewer


6 Number of lift stations 


0 Number of lift station failures 


0 Number of sewer pipe failures


4 Number of basement backup occurrences


22 Number of complaints


1.225 Average daily flow in MGD (if available)


2.407 Peak monthly flow in MGD (if available) 


Peak hourly flow in MGD (if available)


3.2 Performance ratios for the past year:
0.00 Lift station failures (failures/year)


0.00 Sewer pipe failures (pipe failures/sewer mile/yr)


0.02 Sanitary sewer overflows (number/sewer mile/yr)


0.07 Basement backups (number/sewer mile)


0.37 Complaints (number/sewer mile)


2.0 Peaking factor ratio (Peak Monthly:Annual Daily Avg)


0.0 Peaking factor ratio (Peak Hourly:Annual Daily Avg)


4. Overflows


LIST OF SANITARY SEWER (SSO) AND TREATMENT FACILITY (TFO) OVERFLOWS REPORTED **
Date Location Cause Estimated


Volume (MG)
0 12/2/2019 1:06:00 PM -


12/2/2019 2:00:00 PM
200 Block of Forest Street Plugged Sewer 0.0003 - 0.0003


** If there were any SSOs or TFOs that are not listed above, please contact the DNR and stop work on this section until
corrected.
What actions were taken, or are underway, to reduce or eliminate SSO or TFO occurences in the future?


The cause of this failure was from a brick manhole. We pulled out old bricks from the flowline that caused the SSO. We
had the top section of this manhole replaced and the flowline in the bench repaired. We have this section of sewer main to
be replaced in the near future. We also implemented A GIS manhole inspection program. We went through the entire
collection system and inspected all manholes.


5. Infiltration / Inflow (I/I)
5.1 Was infiltration/inflow (I/I) significant in your community last year?







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Yes
No


If Yes, please describe:


5.2 Has infiltration/inflow and resultant high flows affected performance or created problems in
your collection system, lift stations, or treatment plant at any time in the past year?


Yes
No


If Yes, please describe:


5.3 Explain any infiltration/inflow (I/I) changes this year from previous years:


We continue to replace our aging infrastructure and inspect sump pump discharges.


5.4 What is being done to address infiltration/inflow in your collection system?


Replacing mains, laterals and manholes. Sump pump inspections.


Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100


Section Grade A







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Grading Summary
WPDES No: 0020338


SECTIONS LETTER GRADE GRADE POINTS WEIGHTING
FACTORS


SECTION
POINTS


 Influent D 1 3 3
 BOD/CBOD A 4 10 40
 TSS A 4 5 20
 Phosphorus A 4 3 12
 Biosolids A 4 5 20
 Staffing/PM A 4 1 4
 OpCert A 4 1 4
 Financial A 4 1 4
 Collection A 4 3 12


 TOTALS 32 119
 GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA) = 3.72


Notes:
A = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
B = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
C = Recommendation Range (Response Required)
D = Action Range (Response Required)
F = Action Range (Response Required)







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:


8/3/2020 2019


Resolution or Owner's Statement


 


Name of Governing
Body or Owner:


Date of Resolution or
Action Taken:


Resolution Number:


Date of Submittal:  
 


ACTIONS SET FORTH BY THE GOVERNING BODY OR OWNER RELATING TO SPECIFIC CMAR
SECTIONS (Optional for grade A or B. Required for grade C, D, or F):
Influent Flow and Loadings: Grade = D


Effluent Quality: BOD: Grade = A


Effluent Quality: TSS: Grade = A


Effluent Quality: Phosphorus: Grade = A


Biosolids Quality and Management: Grade = A


Staffing: Grade = A


Operator Certification: Grade = A


Financial Management: Grade = A


Collection Systems: Grade = A
(Regardless of grade, response required for Collection Systems if SSOs were reported)


ACTIONS SET FORTH BY THE GOVERNING BODY OR OWNER RELATING TO THE OVERALL
GRADE POINT AVERAGE AND ANY GENERAL COMMENTS
(Optional for G.P.A. greater than or equal to 3.00, required for G.P.A. less than 3.00)
G.P.A. = 3.72





		07a-Resolution - CMAR

		07b-Utilities - CMAR

		2020-08-12 2.2- CMAR - Report.pdf

		Influent Flow and Loading

		Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (BOD/CBOD)

		Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Total Suspended Solids)

		Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Phosphorus)

		Biosolids Quality and Management

		Staffing and Preventative Maintenance (All Treatment Plants)

		Operator Certification and Education

		Financial Management

		Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems

		Grading Summary

		Resolution or Owner's Statement







